A SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
248 E. FOOTHILL BLVD, MONROVIA, CA 91016
8:00 A.M. - DECEMBER 7, 2022

SPECIAL NOTICE
Teleconference Accessibility

Pursuant to the newly adopted provisions of the Brown Act and consistent with the Board's Resolution ratifying
the declaration of a state of emergency by the State of California in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Upper District will hold its board meeting via teleconference or the most rapid means of communication
ovailable ot the time. Instructions to participate in the teleconference are below:

Attendee Zoom Webinar Link Meeting ID: 890 4245 4280
https://us02web.zoom,us/j/89042454280

Telephone Dial: Meeting 1D: 890 4245 4280
1 (669) 900-6833 US

Public comments may be made through teleconference when prompted by the President during the public

comment period. Public comments may also be provided by emailing venessa@usgvmwd.org in advance of
the meeting. Please indicate "PUBLIC COMMENT" in the subject line.

If you hove difficulty connecting to the teleconference line, please coll (626) 443-2287 or email
ruben@usqvmwd.org. It may take a few minutes to join Zoom or connect via telephone so please join early.

AGENDA

I. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
2. ROLL CALL OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS
3. ADOPTION OF AGENDA [1]

4. PUBLIC COMMENT
Anyone wishing to discuss items should do so now. A three-minute time limit on remarks is

requested.
5. COMMITTEE REPORTS (2] - None

6. CONSENT CALENDAR [1]

(a) Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on November 9, 2022 at
8:00 a.m.

(b) List of Demands
(c) Financial Reports — October 2022

1. Financial Statements
2. Director’s Public Outreach
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(d) Resolution No. 12-22-651, Re-ratifying the Proclamation of a State of Emergency by
Governor Newsom and Reauthorizing Remote Teleconference Meetings.

(e) Receive and file the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022,

ACTION/DISCUSSION ITEMS [1]

(a) Award of Water Education Grants for FY 2022-23 (Staff memorandum enclosed.)

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors approve the funding of 24 grant applications
for water conservation education programs per Upper District’s FY 22-23 Water
Education Grant Program for a total amount of $24,660.85.

(b) Resolution No. 12-22-652, Honoring and Commemorating the Outstanding Service and
Accomplishments of Brian Bowcock, Three Valleys Municipal Water District, Board
Director. (Resolution No. 12-22-652 enclosed.)

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 12-22-652, as
presented.

(¢) Amendment of Lease Agreement with the San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership.
(Staff memorandum enclosed.)

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors ratify Amendment 1 to the lease
agreement with the San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership effective
December 1, 2022.

(d) Agreement with the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California for the
Reverse Cyclic Program. (Draft agreement enclosed.)

Recommendation

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the General Manager to enter
into an agreement with the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California for the
Reverse Cyclic Program.

INFORMATION ITEMS (These items are for the information of the Board of Directors and require
no action) [2]

(a) Press Releases and News Articles.
ATTORNEY’S REPORT [2]

ENGINEER’S REPORT [2]
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16.
17.

18.

19,

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT [2]
METROPOLITAN REPORT - [2]

WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY REPORT - (2]
WATERMASTER REPORT - 2]

AB 1234 COMPLIANCE REPORT — [2]

DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS [2]

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS [1]

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION - None

ADJOURNMENT - To a regular meeting of the Board of Directors to be held on
January 11, 2023 at 8:00 a.m. via teleconference or the most rapid means of

communication available at the time.

LEGEND: [1] INDICATES ACTION ANTICIPATED BY BOARD OF DIRECTORS ON THIS ITEM
[2] INDICATES INFORMATION ITEM - NO BOARD ACTION NECESSARY

PRESIDENT ED CHAVEZ, PRESIDING

To request special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Upper District office at (626) 443-2297

American Disabilities Act Compliance (Government Code Section 54954.2(a)) m

or venessa@usgvmwd.org at least 24 hours prior to meeting.
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6. (a)
Minutes

A REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
602 E. HUNTINGTON DRIVE, SUITE B, MONROVIA, CALIFORNIA 91016

8:00 A.M. — November 9, 2022

Pursuant to the newly adopted provisions of the Brown Act and consistent with the Board’s resolution ratifying the declaration of a
state of emergency by the State of California in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Upper District held a regular meeting of the
Board of Directors via zoom teleconference on November 9, 2022, at the hour of 8:00 a.m.

ROLL CALL

OTHERS PRESENT

ADOPTION OF AGENDA

T

PUBLIC COMMENT

COMMITTEE REPORTS

DIRECTORS Chavez, Garcia, Santana, and Fellow.

PRESENT:

DIRECTORS Treviiio.

ABSENT:

STAFF Tom Love, Genetal Manager; Steve O’Neill, District Counsel;
PRESENT: Steve Johnscm Consulting Engineer; Evelyn Rodriguez,

Executive’ Manager - Finance and Administration; Patricia
Cortez ‘ﬂxecuuve Manager - Government and Community
Affally; Venessa Navarrette, Executive Assistant; Ruben
,ﬁa legos Project Ass,}stant Priscilla Lu, Accounting/Financial
“Analyst; Jennifer Afuilar, Water Use Efficiency Analyst; and

> 'tigalcx;zia Rodriguez, Administrative Assistant.
4..
Andy Bullington, Anteneh‘ Tﬁsfa\rc, Anthony Alberti, Cris Fealy, C Venegas, Dan Arrighi,
Dave ﬂlchalko David Musi £y Iecmy Savron, Jose Martinez, Kelly Gardner, Stephanie
Morho;. Ste.ve ’Kiggms, wa r Magana.

_.On motlon 'by Secﬁtary Garcia, seconded by Director Fellow, the agenda was
ﬁﬂopted as presemcd by the following roll call vote:

AYE
AYE
AYE
AYE
ABSENT

Next scheduled committee meeting dates are as follows:

(a) Administration and Finance — January 3, 2023, at 4:00 p.m.
(b) Water Resources and Facility Management — January 4, 2023 at 4:00 p.m.
(c) Government Affairs and Community Outreach — November 14, 2022, at 4:00 p.m.



CONSENT CALENDAR

CONSIDER APPROVAL OF GENERAL
MANAGER’S PERFORMANCE
EVALUATION AND AMENDED
CONTRACT.
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Secretary Garcia moved to approve Consent Calendar items (a) through (d). Vice
President Santana seconded the motion, which was approved by the following roll
call vote:

FELLOW: AYE
GARCIA: AYE
SANTANA: AYE
CHAVEZ: AYE
TREVINO: ABSENT

(a) Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Directors held on October 12, 2022, at
8:00 a,m.
(b) List of Demands
(c) Financial Reports — September 2022.
1.Financial Statements.
2.Quarterly Report on District Investments
3.Director’s Public Outreach 22-23
(d) Resolution No. 11-22-650, Ré-ratifving the Proclamation of a State of Emergency
by Governor Newsom and ] uthonzmg Remote Teleconference Meetings.

Steve O’Neill gave a brief Backgroumd on the item. He shared that there are three
items up for approva,i*m the amended employment contract for the General
Manager - adjustmegit to the salary, term, “and medical benefits upon termination
without cause mﬁeath Steve reported that any changes made to the benefits for
the General Managgr Have to be adjusted for all employees accordingly. He
explalned that the reca}nmendatlon is to make these amendments to the General

40

ggg,g contract and’ : CLIlESth the General Manager discuss the proposed

The GeneraLManagﬁ'k shared that the amendments are as follows:

S 1, In@gease the salary to $300,000

© 2. Extend the term of the contract for one year to June 30, 2025
B R@ﬁr&e medical benefit adjustment to 60 years of age or 5 years of service
“Under the provision of either termination without cause or death.

Siwe O’Neill clarified that this is not a new contract but is in fact an amendment
t6 the existing contract.

Director Fellow moved to approve the motion to amend the General Manager’s
contract in the areas of salary, term, and provisional retiree medical benefits.
Secretary Garcia seconded the motion, which was approved by the following roll
call vote:

FELLOW: AYE
GARCIA: AYE
SANTANA: AYE
CHAVEZ: AYE
TREVINO: ABSENT
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EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT Steve O’Neill gave a brief background on the item. He reported that any changes
EMPLOYEES PERSONNEL MANUAL made to the retiree benefits for the General Manager have to be adjusted for all
AND EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK employees accordingly.

AMENDMENTS.

The General Manager clarified that the provisional retiree medical benefits would
only apply to employees hired prior to July 1, 2020.

Vice President Santana moved to approve amendments to the Executive
Management Employees Personnel Manual related to certain retiree benefits; and
instruct staff to incorporate the same changes to the Employee Handbook to be
presented for board approval at a future meeting.

Secretary Garcia seconded the motion, which was approved by the following roll
call vote:

FELLOW: AYE
GARCIA: AYE
SANTANA: AYE
CHAVEZ: AYE
TREVINO: ABSE

INFORMATION ITEMS The following 1tems hsted on the agenﬁa for the information of the Board were
read and ordere.'g{rccewed and filed:
"?,u. n.
(a) Press Releases ahd Newgpaper Articles.

p

ATTORNEY’S REPORT Disg:i ouﬁst;l reported.:@!lorkmg with staff on transactional matters including:
the actlcm itenis ‘ﬁ?r w.goday’s meeting, the audit letter, agreement with Kelly
Services, and Lssues;ii’elated to the new building renovation and move to the new

5 "B&lldmg

heC Q{:@I‘Manager requested that District Counsel provide a brief explanation
f the Governor’s Executive Order related to remote meetings. District Counsel
reported that the board has been meeting according to AB 361. He shared that a
d‘gﬁﬁared state of emergency and local health officials requesting social distancing
tiieasures are the main provisions for allowing remote meetings. District Counsel
added that the Governor is rescinding the state of emergency in February 2023
which will remove the condition allowing use of AB 361. He shared that there has
been some legislation recently allowing remote meetings under very specific
conditions. He explained than in February 2023, there will be two ways to meet
remotely. One is through the pre-pandemic Brown Act which allows Directors to
participate remotely as long as the location is made available to the public and
noticed on the agenda, and the agenda be posted at that location. The other option
is through AB 2449 which allows for remote participation but does not require
making the location available to the public. However, AB 2449 requires the
Director show just cause or an emergency for that provision. The just cause is
highly specific but includes childcare and health issues and limits the number of
times the Director is able to utilize remote participation. District Counsel stated
that he prepared a summary for the Board to serve as reference for future meetings.

ENGINEER’S REPORT The District Engineer provided a report on hydrologic conditions, basin deliveries,
reservoir storage, and rainfall averages. He reported that the recent storm provided
approximately 5 inches of rain, considered high for this time of year. He shared
that the about 15,000 acre feet of health and safety water was delivered during
October. He stated that the Baldwin Park Key Well groundwater elevation was
177.8 feet as of November 4, 2022, noting about a foot increase in the Key Well.
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He then reported that no notices of wells shutdown due to contamination were
received during the month of October 2022,

The following is a summary of contamination ranges found in samples under Title
22 from 10 wells during September 2022.

Contaminant Range (ppb) MCL b
PCE ND -0.8 5%
TCE ND 5%

A detailed written report was provided in the Board’s agenda packet.

GENERAL MANAGER'’S REPORT The General Manager reported that Upper District has transitioned to the new
building, commending staff on their hard work to get to this point. He shared that
there are still some issues with the contract and contractor, but they are being
worked through at this point. "

The General Manager repqgﬁd that Metropolitan has supplied some scenarios for
next year to address the wa@suppfy Jissues. He shared that it is very likely that
some form of alIocatmn will happen over the whole service area depending on the
SWP allocation. He ‘explained that the .drought actions and water supply will be

dlscussed in mﬁre deté,ﬁl at the Watermaster Basin Management Committee

METROPOLITAN REPORT
“ind Phil Page. He requested that the Board adjourn the meeting in honor of these
twp former Metropohtan Directors.
't'h.'\z-!q.ﬁ)z. !L
_ A written report was also provided in the Board’s agenda packet.
WATER QUALITY AUTHOMY "% Pesident Chavez reported that there is a vacancy on the WQA board for an
REPORT Pl alternate. He cxplamed that this seat will be voted on by pumpmg right holders
 throughout the region and weighed based on the amount of pumping rights each
~ holds. He added that the ballots have been mailed out and that he will share the
election results as they conclude.
A summary report was also provided in the Board’s agenda packet.
WATERMASTER REPORT A summary report was provided in the Board’s agenda packet.
AB 1234 COMPLIANCE REPORT A summary report was provided in the Board’s agenda packet.
DIRECTOR’S COMMENTS Director Fellow wished Steve Johnson a happy birthday and congratulated

Director Santana on her election results.

Director Garcia shared how thankful she was for the rain over the last two days
and how excited she is about the new building. She expressed her appreciation for
the hard work of staff during this time.



FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

ADJOURNMENT

ATTEST

SECRETARY

SEAL
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Director Santana thanked Director Fellow and congratulated him on his election
results as well. She shared that the new building was one of her priorities and she
is happy that the transition has taken place.

President Chavez congratulated the winners on the election results from last night.
He then requested that the Board also adjourn in memory of Elsie Lopez, his
mother-in-law, who passed away recently.

None.

None.

President Chavez asked if there were other business to come before the Board.
There being none, the meeting was adjourned in memory of Phil Hawkins, Phil
Pace, and Elsie Lopez to a special meeting of the Board of Directors to be held on
December 7 2022, at 8:00 a.m. vm teleconference or the most rapid means of
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Attachment 1

Consent Item 6 (b)
November 9, 2022

Demands numbered 21740 through 21779 on the General Fund Account of the Upper District at Citizens Business Bank totaling $702.619.95 and
demands numbered 1065 through 1072 on the Water Fund Account at the same bank in the amount of $820,250.61.

21740

21741

21742

21743

21744

21745

21746

21747

21748

21749

21750

21751

21752

21753

21754

21755

21756

21757

21758

21759

21760

21781

21762

Void

David Zuniga

Void

American Restore

Orbit Event Rentals, Inc.

B and H Signs

Unisource Solutions, Inc,

Unisource Solutions, Inc.

Marjani Builders, Inc.

Aaron Read & Associates, LLC

Accent Computer Solutions, Inc.

ACI Consulting Corporation
ACWA
ACWAJ/JPIA

Aleshire & Wynder, LLP

Best, Best & Krieger, LLP

B and H Signs

BizFed

California Special Districts Association

Clear Channel Outdoor

Downtown Arcadia Improvement
Association

Ecotech Services, Inc.

G3LA, LLC

Printer Error

Inv. D008, VIP Catering, WaterFest 2022
(Previously paid 10/12/22)

Printer Error

Inv. 09/14/22Q, 10% Deposit, Stair Coating for New Building
(Previously paid 10/12/22)

Inv. 49644-2, 2nd Payment, WaterFest 2022
(Previously paid 10/14/22)

Inv. 7698Q, 50% Deposit, Plaque & Portrait Poster,
(Previously paid 10/19/22)

Inv. 32366, 50% Deposit, Moving Ser\nce
(Previously paid 10/19/22)

Inv. 32366A, Final Payment, Moviy
(Previously paid 11/02/22),7;

Inv. APP8, District Tenant Improvement Frojecr
(Board approved 02/09/22, Prevfoud}::gam 10/24/22)

cacy Servites, September 2022

Inv. 152707, IT Managema -.Swpon‘k‘ August 2022

3,093.13
Inv. 153773 4o Managemant Support - September 2022 1,956.52
In\{,} 154173, i'}:'Managameni Support October 2022 1,954.44
MamgemeqLSmpert November 2022 2,973.19
M“‘l’l‘r‘J-},
(}4 1, Sage Consdtlng Services, October 2022
2023, 2&23 Aﬂnual Agency Dues
Inv. 0653?66 Haa1th Insurance Premium - November 2022
Proqusmnal Services, September 2022
‘nv. 70914, Retainer 4,267.00

Inv, 70915, Transactional Fees 39.40
Inv 70916, Transactional Fees

Inv. 847112, Lobbying Services through September 30, 2022
(Board approved 12/09/20)

Inv. 20015, Final Payment, F"isque & Portrait Poster

Inv. 4854, 2023 Membership Dues

Inv. 2023, 2023 Membership Dues

Inv. 13153035, 09/26/22 - 10/23/22 WaterFest 2022 Ads

Inv. Q4 Sponsorship, Halloween Haunting Fair Sponsorship

Inv. 2421, Water Bottle Fill Station, September 2022

Inv. 1051, Water Conservation Webinar, September 2022 1,500.00

Inv. 1059, Water Conservation Webinar & Flyers, October 2022 1,750.00

5,420.10

1,761.75

3,469.30

13,000.00

2,994.78

11,800.00

11,800.00

299,883.65

10,000.00

9,977.28
637.50
s

21,185.00

26,591.05

9,726.50

7,500.00

2,994.78
6,000.00
8,810.00
22,000.00

500.00

7,500.00

3,250.00



21763
21764

21765

21766

21767

21768

21769

21770

21771

21772

21773

21774

21775

21776

21777

21778

21778

Green Media Creations
Joey C. Soto

Kelly Services, Inc.

Land's End Business Outfitters
Orbit Event Rentals, Inc.

Rogers, Anderson, Malody and Scott, LLP

Spectrum Reach/Charter

Stetson Engineers, Inc.

Upper District Payroll Fund

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System

Versatel
Via Promotionals, Inc.

Watereuse Association

WLC Architects

Edward L. Chavez

Charles M. Trevifio

Jennifer Santana

Inv. 1642, September 2022, Video Editing & Voiceover, WaterFest 2022
Inv. #96, Grant Writing Services, September 2022
Temporary Staff Services

Inv, 4202729722, W/E 10/15/22
(Board approved 02/07/19)

Inv. SIN 10604919, WaterFest 2022 Logo ltems
Inv. 49644-3, Final Payment, WaterFest 2022

Inv. 71411, Progress Billing for FY 21/22 Audit - September 2022
(Board approved 02/09/22)

Inv. 860006549, WaterFest 2022 Save the Date Ads
Inv. 860000548, WaterFest 2022 Save the Date Ads

Inv. 2533-198, General Engineering Support Services, September 2022

Inv. SEP 22, Reimbursement for Payroll and Payroll Ta:qe:s {Wr Employees
Inv. SEP 22D, Reimbursement for Payroll Taxes fo -.

CalCard Changes through 10/22/22
Membership/Other
Mestings, Travel, Conferences s, % %
Computer Systems/Office Equipmer uBﬁiles!Malntename ,§amcerhlities
Conservation Program Expeme%‘fidwanon and Outraach \k"'

1\ ;
Inv. 22631Q), Telephone Relﬂcaﬁbnﬁ»\ : P
Inv. 20491, WaterFest 2022 Logo Ilerns

Inv. D47327, 2023 Mferﬁbe
‘L).- --_.\,.-.

Inv. 21, Constructlon Aﬂmlnlstra

(Board approved 03(12@0)

Direghibe Co‘rh ensation, Gitober 2022
1 Vs Dlstrkﬂ Business
ﬁggnngﬂ raval E;gganses!AHbWa nce
Less" fa;;f,éﬂ Comip, 5"

Less Ta Wlihheld

Dues

as, September 2022

"‘..'.'u":__;,

2ctor's Ccmrpsnsatlon October 2022
10 T ys Distfict Business
Meetitig/ Travel Expenses/Allowance
Less Deferred Comp.

./Director's Compensation, October 2022

4 Days District Business

Meeting/Travel Expenses/Allowance
Less Deferred Comp.
Less Taxes Withheld
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500.00
1,122.50
615.43
462.08
1,649.87
11,500.00
1,600.00
1,787.80 3,287.80
16,303.41
117,948.95
18,871.77 136,820.73
1,794.91
1,966.58
9,851.14
12,602.20 26,214.83
2,001.56
670.14
15,015.00
2,250.00
2,550.00
516.87
(1,610.00)
(1,401.77) 55.10
2,550.00
377.87
(500.00)
(539.01) 1,888.86
1,020.00
516.87
(500.00)
(155.82) 881.05
TOTAL $ 702,619.95



1065

1066
1067
1068

1069

1070

1071

1072

Central Basin MWD

City of Industry City Hall
City of Industry City Hall
Metropolitan Water District

San Gabriel Valley MWD

San Gabriel Valley Water
Company

Suburban Water System

Sanitation District of Los
Angeles County

Invoice No. USGV-SEP22, Purchase of 6.8 AF of Recycled Water in August 2022
(Previously paid 11/02/22)

Invoice No. SEP-22, Purchase of 77.3 AF of Recycled Water in September 2022
Invoice No. SEP-22CIP, CIP Charge for September 2022 @ $98 per AF
Invoice No. 10924, Purchase of 415.9 AF of Treated Water in September 2022

Invoice No. 545, 77.75 AF of Water Delivered through the Alhambra/MWD
Exchange Agresment in September 2022 @ $200 per AF

Invoice No. 22-22271, O&M Cost for FY 2021-22

Invoice No. 6702, Phase (1B Normal Operating Charge, October 2022

Invoice No. 37769, Contract No. 4101 & 4101A - Fiscal Year 2021/22
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$ 4,939.86

24,426.80
7,575.40

451,258.64

15,550.00

26,274.60

1,667.76

288,557.55

Purchase of 1,797.38 AF of Recycled Water $ 267,791.65

Chlorine Residual Chemical Cost 8,915.00

Pump Operation & Maintenance 11,850.80
TOTAL

$  820,250.61



6.(b)
List of Demands

December 1, 2022
General Fund

Board of Directors

Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Submitted herewith for action by the Board of Directors of the Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District are the following demands on the District's General Fund
Account at Citizens Business Bank:

21780

21781

21782

21783

21784

21785
21786
21787

21788

21788
21780

21791

21792

21793

21794
21795
21796
21797

21798

21799
21800

21801

21802

City of Monrovia

Upper District Revolving Fund

Foothill Technolegy Center, LLC

Aaron Read & Associates, LLC

Accent Computer Solutions, Inc.

ACI Consulting Corporation
ACWA/JPIA
Aleshire & Wynder, LLP

Best Best & Krieger, LLP

Civic Publications. Inc.

EcoTech Services, Inc.

G3LA,LLC
H.J. Vast, Inc.
i
Joey C. Soto “‘.,r;r
Fly
La Opinion *"i?&".h-."_

fk'n
I
MadMen Marketing Consultants, LLC ‘&:;.

Media Marketing Services, Inc.
San Gabriel Valley Newspaper

Spectrum Reach/Charter

Stetson Engineers, Inc.

Upper District Revolving Fund

U.S. Bank Corporate Payment System

WLC Architects

R
g5

Inv. 25843, Change of Address Permit
(Previously paid 11/16/22)

Replenish Revolving Fund Acount - October 2022
Office Supplies 1,299.57
Computer Systems/Equipment/Maintenance/Insurance/Outside Services 4,679.92
Director's Outreach 2,200.00
Meeting/Travel/Conferences/Dues/Assesments/Memberships 74.37
Telephone/Utllities/Bullding Maintenance 1,901.27
Workers Comp 2,896.82
Water Conservation Program Expenses 3,201.68
WR Operation & Maintenance/Permits/Water Purchases/PM/Public Info 69,691.30
Medical/ODA Reimbursement/Processing Fee/Retirement Plan/Overdeposit 2,935.31
(Previously paid 11/16/22)

Inv. NOW22ZLEA, Office Lease - November 2022
(Board approved 04/09/11. Previously paid 11/16/22)

Inv. 212413, State and Legislative Advocacy Services, October 2022
(Board approved 12/09/20)

Inv. 155207, IT Management Support, December 202@;
(Board approved 10/16/15)

Inv. IN-004289, Sage Consulting Services
Inv. 0895285, Health Insurance Premiul

Professional Services, October 2022+

Inv. 71511, Reatainer o g 4,267.00
Inv. 71512, Transactional Fegs 315.20
2,189.40

Inv. 71513, Transacﬁunal Fees
(Board apprved 04/13/22)

Inv. 951529, Lobbyn MES through Octobe
(Board appro; m

Inv. 24 r Bottle FIII Elaﬂon' Octobar 2022
“"Uh;%{e ved 06/06:22)

;MZ Waj&r Conservatiof Webinar, October 2022 1,500.00
nv.

gt

G.Wr@&sﬂmqﬁnn Webinar, November 2022 1,600.00
Inv. 566! "ﬁacuﬂty System Deactivation, October 2022

In\r.‘.ﬁ?, Gran / ﬂ'tin_q Services, October 2022
(Enard ved 06/08/22)

Inv. 1@491022. Water Conservation Ads - October 2022

Inv. 0009082, Website Support - June 2021 - March 2022

“Inv. USG W221128, Bottled Water Program

Inv. 0000554449, WaterFest Ads, October 2022

Inv. 5000110886, WaterFest 2022 Save the Date Ads 1,500.00
Inv. 500011087, WaterFest 2022 Ads 1,801.20

Inv. 2533-199, General Engineering Support Services, October 2022

Replenish Revolving Fund Acount - November 2022

Office Supplies 115.62
Computer Systems/Equipment/Maintenance/Insurance/Outside Services 1,613.37
Director's Outreach 100.00
Meeting/Travel/Conferences/Dues/Assesments/Memberships 1,183.92
Telephone/Utilities/Bullding Maintenance 3,448.75
Water Conservation Program Expenses 2,051.56

Medical/ODA Reimbursement/Processing Fee/Retirement Plan/Overdeposit 6,391.97
(Previously paid 12/02/22)

CalCard Changes through 11/22/22
Meetings, Travel, Conferences 1,804.28
Computer Systems/Office Equipment/Supplies/Maintenance & Service/Utilities 3,299.93
Conservation Program Expenses, Education and Outreach 912.98

Inv. 22, Construction Administration Services, October 2022
(Board approved 08/12/20)

Page 10f2

$

405.00

88,880.24

20,751.00

10,000.00

2,789.91

722.50
26,567.05

6,771.60

7.500.00

4.987.00
4,950.00

3,000.00
625.00
805.00

1,750.00
5,000.00
3,297.00

6,590.40

3,301.20
9,019.80

14,905.19

6,017.19
4,500.00



21803
21804

21805

21806

21807

21808

21809

World Journal LA, LLC
Aleshire & Wynder, LLP

Upper District Payroll Fund

Anthony Fellow

Edward Chavez

Charles M. Trevifio

Jennifer Santana

Inv. 3717682, WaterFest 2022 Ad, October 2022

Professional Services, November 2022
Inv, 72585, Retainer
Inv. 72586, Transactional Fees
Inv, 72587, Transactional Fees
(Board approved 04/13/22)

Inv. OCT 22, Reimbursement for Payroll and Payroll Taxes for Employees
Inv. OCT 22D, Reimbursement for Payroll Taxes for Directors
(Previously paid 12/02/22)

Director's Compensation, November 2022
9 Days District Business

10 Days MWD Business

Meeting/Travel Expenses/Allowance

Less Deferred Comp.

Less Taxes Withheld

Director's Compensation. November 2022
10 Days District Business

Meeting/Travel Expenses/Allowance

Less Deferred Comp.

Less Taxes Withheld

Director's Compensation, November 2022
8 Days District Business

Meeting/Travel Expenses/Allowance

Less Deferred Comp.

LBSS_ Taxes Withheld

Director's Compensation, November 2022,
6 Days District Business
Meeting/Travel Exnansesmlmvanca
Less Deferred Comp.
Less Taxes Withheld

Page 2 of 2

December 1, 2022
General Fund

1,360.00

4,267.00
157.60
5,580.50 10,005.10

—

120,916.15

6,908.16

127,824.31

2,285.00

2,550.00
516.87
(500.00)

(1.535.77) 3,326.10

2,550.00

1,467.44
{1,610.00)
(1,401.77) 1,005.67

2,040.00

516.87

(500.00)

(427.57) 1,629.30

1,530.00
516.87
(1,850.00)
(194.84) 2,03

TOTAL 8§ 37828750




Board of Directors
Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

December 1, 2022
Water Fund

Submitted herewith for action by the Board of Directors of the Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District are the following demands on the District's Water Fund Account
at Citizens Business Bank:

1073

1074
1075

1076

1077

1078

Central Basin MWD

City of Industry City Hall
City of Industry City Hall

Metropolitan Water District

San Gabriel Valley MWD

Suburban Water System

Invoice No. USGV-OCT22, Purchase of 7.1 AF of Recycled Water in September 2022
(Previously paid 11/16/22)

Invoice No. OCT-22, Purchase of 51.4 AF of Recycled Water in October 2022
Invoice No. OCT-22CIP, CIP Charge for October 2022 @ $98 per AF

Invoice No. 10954, Purchase of 292.8 AF of Treated Water and 14,708.5 AF of
Untreated Water in October 2022

Invoice No. 546, 98.55 AF of Water Delivered through the Alhambra/MWD
Exchange Agreement in October 2022 @ $200 per AF

Invoice No. 6705, Phase |IB Normal Operating Charge, November 2022

TOTAL

$ 5,142.91

16,242.40

5,037.20

12,322,142.75

18,710.00

1,667.76

S 1236904302
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I ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING REVENUES

UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND BUDGET COMPARISON
FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 30, 2022

Water Rat

evenues
Tier 1 Treated
Tier 1 Untreated

Upper Surcharge Tier 1 Treated
Upper Surcharge Tier 1 Untreated
MWD Capacity Charge Revenue
Gross MWD Standby Charge-Revenue Reconciliation
MSGB Watermaster-Ready-to-Serve

Revolving Revenue
MSGB Watermaster-SG River Watermaster

Other Administrative Revenues

Interest/Investment Earmnings
Taxes
Other Income (Loss)

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE REVENUES

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND REVENUES |

Recycled Water Revenues

Recycled Water Sales

Upper Recycled Water Surcharge Revenue
Metropolitan Water District LRP Funds

Parcel/Standby Charge
Prop 84 Passthrough Grant
Interest/Investment Earnings

Capital Program Revenues

Grants - Other

Water Conservation Revenues

Conservation Program Contributions

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECT FUND REVENUES

r

OTHER FUND REVENUES

Water Quality and Supply Program Revenues

Rate Stabilization Fund Revenues

Interest/Investment Earnings

Interest/Investment Earnings

TOTAL OTHER FUND REVENUES

Page 1
AMOUNT OF PERCENT OF
FY ACTUAL FY ACTUAL FY 2022-23 BUDGET BUDGET
MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REMAINING REMAINING
67% @10-31-22
887,310 2,857,147 3,520,500 663,353 19%
- 904,953 23,970,000 23,065,047 96%
78,666 253,514 309,000 55,486 18%
- 269,533 3,090,000 2,820,467 91%
72,285 147,620 349,800 202,180 58%
- 743,109 1,894,000 1,150,891 61%
6,300 25,200 75,600 50,400 67%
Sub Total 1,044,561 5,201,076 33,208,900 28,007,824 84%
- 98,500 105,000 6,500 6%
Sub Total - 98,500 105,000 6,500 6%
25,079 (2,513) 35,400 37,913 107%
. 112,214 500,000 387,786 78%
- 11,246 24,000 12,754 53%
Sub Total 25,079 120,947 559,400 438,453 78%
1,069,640 5,420,523 33,873,300 28,452,777 84%
48,517 217,129 465,000 247,871 53%
189,093 786,559 1,098,000 311,441 28%
19,304 64,215 106,000 41,785 39%
- 64,971 2,050,000 1,985,029 97%
3,780 4,320 - (4,320) 0%
2,438 (736) 6,000 6,736 112%
Sub Total 263,132 1,136,458 3,725,000 2,588,542 69%
- - - - 0%
Sub Total - - - - 0%
8,158 210,278 570,000 359,722 63%
Sub Total 8,158 210,278 570,000 359,722 63%
271,290 1,346,736 4,295,000 2,948,264 69%
3,877 (145) 31,600 31,745 100%
Sub Total 3,877 (145) 31,600 31,745 100%
1,122 (204) 2,300 2,504 109%
Sub Total 1,122 (204) 2,300 2,504 109%
4,999 (349) 33,900 34,249 101%
TOTAL REVENUES 1,345,929 6,766,910 38,202,200 31,435,290 82%




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND BUDGET COMPARISON
FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 30, 2022

| ADMINISTRATIVE AND OPERATING EXPENSES |

Personnel Expenses
Employee Salaries
Employee Benefits
Retired Employee Benefits
Employee Travel/Conference
Sub Total

Director Expenses
Director Compensation
Director Benefits
Retired Director Benefits
Director Public Outreach
Director Travel/Conference
Sub Total

Pension ense
CalPERS-Employees, Directors, Retirees
Sub Total

Office Expenses
Office Supplies/Equipment
Equipment Operations & Maintenance
Computer Systems
Dues and Assessments
Meeting Expense
Sub Total

Facility Expenses
Building Maintenance
Liability/Property Insurance
Office Lease
Telephone/Utilities
Sub Total

Professional Services
Legal/Financial
Engineering
Auditor
Outside Services
Public Information/Outreach
Sub Total

Other Expenses
Election Costs

Sub Total

Allocation to Projects and Programs
Salaries/Overhead Allocated to Projects

Sub Total
TOTAL
Water Purchases
Tier 1 Treated
Tier 1 Untreated
MWD Capacity Charge
MWD Ready-to-Serve Charge
Sub Total
Revolving Expenses
San Gabriel River Watermaster
Sub Total
TOTAL

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Page 2
AMOUNT OF PERCENT OF
FY ACTUAL FY ACTUAL FY 2022-23 BUDGET BUDGET

MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REMAINING REMAINING
67% @10-31-22
100,294 429,503 1,416,000 986,497 70%
17,858 79,553 278,000 198,447 1%
6,532 30,514 100,000 69,486 69%
3,391 10,856 50,000 39,144 78%
128,075 550,426 1,844,000 1,293,574 70%
27,850 68,745 216,000 147,255 68%
14,007 48,848 170,000 121,152 1%
1,335 5,531 32,000 26,469 83%
2,316 5,573 25,000 19,427 78%
4,321 9,792 50,000 40,208 80%
49,829 138,489 493,000 354,511 72%
11,633 288,455 450,000 161,545 36%
11,633 288,455 450,000 161,545 36%
2,409 10,348 40,000 29,652 T4%
1,184 8,721 26,000 17,279 66%
298 8,429 60,000 51,571 86%
- 13,816 75,000 61,184 82%
360 1,713 35,000 33,287 95%
4,251 43,027 236,000 192,973 82%
2,079 3,514 45,000 41,486 92%
- 13,292 65,000 51,708 80%
20,751 62,253 21,000 (41,253) -196%
1,901 5,657 55,000 49,443 90%
24731 84,616 186,000 101,384 55%
8,239 27,696 105,000 77,304 74%
12,710 50,583 120,000 69,417 58%
- 10,500 30,000 19,500 65%
2,673 8,941 55,000 46,059 84%
- - 3,500 3,500 100%
23,622 97,720 313,500 215,780 69%
- - 212,000 212,000 100%
- - 212,000 212,000 100%
(100,342) (401,368) (1,204,100) (802,732) 67%
(100,342) (401,368) (1,204,100) (802,732) 67%
141,799 801,365 2,530,400 1,729,035 68%
651,624 2,637,247 3,520,500 883,253 25%
- 618,550 23,970,000 23,351,450 9%
- 88,755 348,800 261,045 75%
- 918,782 2,972,300 2,053,518 69%
651,624 4,263,334 30,812,600 26,549,266 86%
- 98,500 105,000 6,500 6%
- 98,500 105,000 6,500 6%
651,624 4,361,834 30,917,600 26,555,766 86%
793,423 5,163,199 33,448,000 28,284,801 85%




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND BUDGET COMPARISON

FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 30, 2022

Page 3
AMOUNT OF PERCENT OF
FY ACTUAL FY ACTUAL FY 2022-23 BUDGET BUDGET
MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REMAINING REMAINING
| RECYCLED WATER PROGRAM EXPENSES | 67% @10-31-22
Water Purchases-Recycled Water 45,231 145,247 465,000 319,753 69%
SWRCB Loan Repayment 86,782 188,281 791,000 602,719 76%
Salaries and Overhead Allocation 5,175 20,700 62,100 41,400 67%
Standby Charge Development/Implementation - 3,210 18,200 14,990 82%
Engineering - General 4,372 4,475 45,000 40,525 90%
Lobbyist 7,500 30,000 90,000 60,000 67%
Legal and Financial - - 3,000 3,000 100%
Public Information - 1,433 5,000 3,567 71%
Operation and Maintenance Phase I/IIA 62,196 122,706 273,000 150,294 55%
Operation and Maintenance Phase IIB 9,163 50,823 126,600 75,777 60%
Sub Total 444,489 790,945 1,878,900 1,087,955 58%
TOTAL RECYCLED WATER EXPENSES 444,489 790,945 1,878,900 1,087,955 58%
| CAPITAL PROGRAM EXPENSES [
San Gabriel Valley Water Recycling Project
Direct Reuse Program - - 105,000 105,000 100%
USG Connections - - 30,000 30,000 100%
Legal and Financial - - 2,000 2,000 100%
Sub Total - - 137,000 137,000 100%
Other Capital Program Expenses
District Headquarters 635,082 1,546,663 635,000 (911,663) -144%
Sub Total 635,082 1,546,663 635,000 (911,663) -144%
TOTAL CAPITAL PROGRAM EXPENSES 635,082 1,546,663 772,000 (774,663) -100%
| STORMWATER PROGRAM EXPENSES ]
Stormwater Program
Salaries and Overhead Allocation 3,392 13,568 40,700 27,132 67%
Sub Total 3,392 13,568 40,700 27,132 67%
TOTAL STORMWATER EXPENSES 3,392 13,568 40,700 27,132 67%




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MONTHLY FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND BUDGET COMPARISON

FOR THE MONTH ENDED OCTOBER 30, 2022

Page 4
AMOUNTOF PERCENT OF
FY ACTUAL FY ACTUAL FY 2022-23 BUDGET BUDGET
MONTH YEAR-TO-DATE BUDGET REMAINING REMAINING
WATER CONSERVATION 67% @10-31-22
PROGRAM EXPENSES
WATER USE EFFICIENCY
Residential Programs
Member Agency Administered Programs 3,240 10,897 200,000 189,003 95%
Regional Rebate Program 5,636 10,844 20,000 9,156 46%
Sub Total 8,876 21,841 220,000 198,159 90%
Commercial/lndustrial/lnstitution Programs
Member Agency Administered Programs - 8,850 330,000 321,150 97%
Regional Rebate Program - - 20,000 20,000 100%
Sub Total - 8,850 350,000 341,150 97%
Allocation to Conservation Programs
Salaries & Overhead 19,942 79,768 239,300 158,532 67%
Sub Total 19,942 79,768 239,300 159,532 67%
TOTAL WATER USE EFFICIENCY EXPENSES 28,818 110,459 808,300 698,841 B6%
EDUCATION & COMMUNITY OUTREACH
Watershed Programs
Natural Vegetation Restoration Program - - 20,000 20,000 100%
Sub Total - - 20,000 20,000 100%
Educational Programs
Water Awareness Youth Art Contests 3,399 5,349 11,000 5,651 51%
Educational Activities 680 20,008 100,000 79,992 80%
Solar Cup - - 10,000 10,000 100%
Memberships - 27,773 130,000 102,227 79%
Educational Materials/Grant Program B (510) 55,000 55,510 101%
Educational Outreach Programs/Events 42,944 74,951 130,000 55,049 42%
Sub Total 47,023 127,571 436,000 308,429 71%
Outreach and Information Programs
Public Workshops/Seminars 3,500 6,750 35,000 28,250 B1%
Conservation Devices/ltems 618 18,436 40,000 21,564 54%
Bottled Water Program 615 5,757 15,500 9,743 63%
Community/Industry Sponsorships 3,000 12,350 35,000 22,650 65%
Displays/Fairs/Presentations 125 1,022 2,500 1,478 59%
Conferences/Meetings 1,379 4,845 6,500 1,655 25%
Public Information 6,243 153,287 80,000 (73,287) -92%
Technical Assistance 1,005 30,949 70,000 39,051 56%
Legal/Financial 1,660 2,049 10,000 7.951 80%
Sub Total 18,145 235,445 294,500 59,055 20%
Allocation to Conservation Programs
Salaries & Overhead 38,758 155,032 465,100 310,068 B67%
Sub Total 38,758 155,032 465,100 310,068 67%
TOTAL EDUCATION & COMMUNITY OUTREACH ’
EXPENSES 103,926 518,048 1,215,600 697,552 57%
TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENSES 132,744 628,507 2,024,900 1,396,393 69%
IWATER QUALITY AND SUPPLY PROGRAM EXPENSES |
Policy 9-00-8 Groundwater Remediation Projects
Engineering for Water Supply Projects 1,331 15,950 42,000 26,050 62%
Legislative Consultant - 40,214 130,000 89,786 69%
Outside Services - - 10,000 10,000 100%
Sub Total 1,331 56,164 182,000 125,836 69%
Other Expenses
Integrated Resources Plan - - 10,000 10,000 100%
Water Supply Reliability Plan/Emergency Preparedness - - 5,000 5,000 100%
Legal and Financial 717 2,988 6,000 3,012 50%
Salaries and Overhead Allocation 33,075 132,300 396,900 264,600 B7%
Sub Total 33,792 135,288 417,900 282,612 68%
TOTAL WATER QUALITY AND SUPPLY EXPENSES 35,123 191,452 599,900 408,448 68%
TOTAL EXPENSES 2,044,253 8,334,334 38,764,400 30,430,066 79%




UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY OF CASH AND INVESTMENTS
October 31, 2022

Page 5
| CASH AND INVESTMENT BALANCES
Amount ($)
Cash Account Balances
General Fund-Checking 5 185,486.52
Water Fund-Checking T27.414.53
Revolving Fund 14,055.07
Revolving Payroll Fund 216,910.87
Total Cash Account Balances § 1,123.866.99
Investment Account Balances Market Value Cost/Book Value
Local Agency Investment Fund § 10,633,575.32 % 10,833575.32
Other Investments 5.461,835.04 5.703,687.07
Total Investment Account Balances § 16,095,410.36 $ 16,337.272.39
Total Cash and Investment Balances $§ 17.219,277.35
| DISTRICT FUND BALANCES |
Capital Program Fund:
Water Recycling Program $ 1,386,310.00
Conservation and Education Program 160.214.00
Water Quality and Supply Program 6.529,264.00
Sub Total 8,075,788.00
Rate Stabilization Fund 632,161.00
General Fund (Operations and Administration) B,511.328.35
Total Fund Balances $  17,219,277.35

MANAGEMENT STATEMENT: It is the opinion of management that all fund balances are in compliance with all applicable
statutes and the current investment policy of the District. It is also the opinion of management that projected cash flow
liquidity is adequate to meet the next six months of expected obligations of the District.

DISTRIC RESERVE FUND BALANCES
Conservation and
w R i
at;: u;;"‘::f ng 'Educatlﬁrﬁl% Program
8%
General (Operations Water Quality and
and Administration) Supply Program
49% 38%
Rate Stabilization
4%
B Water Recycling Program B Conservation and Education Program
B Water Quality and Supply Program B Rate Stabilization
® General (Operations and Administration)
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6. (c-2)
Financial Reports
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Outreach Program Expenses
For the period of October 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022

Director Chavez

Paid Date Description Amount Check # Recipient
09/03/22 1ST Annual Pub Craw!l Sponsorship 500.00 23315 Industry Hills Rotary Foundation
10/01/22 SCWUA Top Golf Tournament Sponsorship 115.90 21727 UU.S. Bank Corporate

Total 615.90
Outreach Fund Balance

4,384.10



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Qutreach Program Expenses
For the period of October 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022

Director Fellow

Paid Date Description Amount Check # Recipient
07/07/22 Membership Dues: 10/01/22 - 09/30/23 307.00 23262 Monrovia Chamber of Commerce
Total 307.00

Outreach Fund Balance 4,693.00



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Outreach Program Expenses

For the period of October 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022

Director Trevifio

Paid Date

Description Amount Check # Recipient
07/07/22  San Gabriel Valley Megamix Expo Sponsorship 500.00 23261 San Gabriel Chamber of Commerce
08/10/22  Membership Renewal 2022-2023 50.00 23294 Temple City Chamber of Commerce
10/03/22  Day of The Dead Fundraiser Sponsorship 500.00 23338 Vecinos De South Pasadena
10/03/22 2022 Virtual Tiger Run Sponsorship 300.00 23339 South Pasadena High School Tiger Booster
10/20/22  Annual Harvest & Installation Dinner 300.00 23356 San Gabriel Chamber of Commerce
Total __1,65000_

Outreach Fund Balance

3,350.00
——



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Outreach Program Expenses
For the period of October 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022

Director Santana

Paid Date

Description

Amount Check #

Recipient

07/21/22
07/21/22
07/28/22
08/10/22

Boxing Program Sponsorship

Summer Concerts Sponsorship
Membership Renewal 2022-2023

2022 Golden Plate Awards Sponsorship

Outreach Fund Balance

Total

500.00 23265
150.00 23266

50.00 23280
500.00 23300

1,200.00

3,800.00

City of Duarte Boxing Program

City of Duarte

Baldwin Park Business Association
Foothill Unity Center, Inc.



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
Director Public Qutreach Program Expenses
For the period of October 1, 2022 through October 31, 2022

Director Garcia

Paid Date Description Amount Check # Recipient
07/28/22 2022 Film Festival Sponsorship 450.00 23279 Film It West Covina

08/10/22 2022 Water Educations Symposium Sponsorship 250.00 23302 Water Education for Latino Leaders
10/03/22 Second Annual Golf Tournament Sponsorship 350.00 23335 Covina Valley Optimist

10/03/22 Annual Oak Tree Challenge 5K/1Mile Run/Walk Sponsorship 500.00 23341 Charter Oak Education Foundation
10/06/22 Travel Baseball League Sponsorship 250.00 23342 Cory Lidle Foundation

Outreach Fund Balance 3,200.00



6. (d)
" Consent

RESOLUTION NO. 12-22-651

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, RE-
RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY GOVERNOR
NEWSOM, AND REAUTHORIZING REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE
BOARD FOR THE NEXT MEETING

WHEREAS, the Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District ("District”) is committed
to preserving and nurturing public access and participation in meetings of the Board of Directors;
and

WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for
remote teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without
compliance with the requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the
existence of certain conditions: and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors on November 9, 2022 adopted Resolution Number
11-22-650, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the legislative bodies of District to
conduct remote teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision
(b) of section 54953 and these emergency conditions persist to exist; and

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Delta and Omicron variant viruses and the fact that not all people have been vaccinated have
caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within the District
boundaries that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, and facilities
of the District, and desires to affirm a local emergency exists and re-ratify the proclamation of
state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California; and

WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors
does hereby find that the District’s legislative bodies shall continue to conduct their meetings
without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as
authorized by subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that the Board shall continue to comply with
the requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph
(2) of subdivision (e) of section 54953 by providing virtual and audio access to the public, staff
and Directors.

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE UPPER SAN GABRIEL
VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this
Resolution by this reference.

Section 2.The Board of Directors hereby considers the conditions of the state of
emergency in the District boundaries and proclaims that since a local emergency persists
throughout those boundaries, and in view of the fact that substantial part of the population
remains unvaccinated and COVID-19 virus continues to mutate to new variants, holding in-person
meetings would create a health risk to the public, staff and Directors.
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Section 3. The Board hereby ratifies the Governor Newsom'’s Proclamation of State of
Emergency.

Section 4. The staff and consultants of the District are hereby authorized and directed to
take all actions necessary to carry out the intent and purpose of this Resolution including,
continuing to conduct open and public meetings in accordance with Government Code section
54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act.

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption and shall be
effective until such time the Board of Directors, at a noticed meeting, makes additional findings
or adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to
extend the time during which the District’s legislative bodies may continue to teleconference
without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953.

PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 7th day of December, 2022.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:

ABSENT:

Ed Chavez, President

ATTEST:

Katarina Garcia, Secretary

(SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steve O'Neill, District Counsel
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Board of Directors:
MNovember 1, 2022 Anthony R. Fallow, Ph.D

Divigron 1

Division 2
The Honorable Board of Directors Efw r:;v;:
Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Division 4

Division 5

The Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District (Upper District) staff is pleased to present the
Upper District's Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2022. This report is prepared in accordance with the guidelines set forth by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB).

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information
contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control established for
this purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, this effort
provides reasonable, rather than absclute, assurance that the financial statements contain no
matenal misstatements.

Rogers, Anderson, Malody & Scott, LLP, Certified Public Accountants, has issued an unmodified
{(*clean”) opinion on the financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022, The independent
auditor's report is located at the front of the financial section of this report.

The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

Profile of the Upper District

History

Upper District, formed by voters in the San Gabriel Valley on December 8, 1959 to help solve water
problems in the rapidly developing San Gabriel Valley, was incorporated on January 7, 1960. On
March 12, 1963, residents of the District voted to annex to the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California (MWD), to provide supplemental water, first from the Colorado River and later
the State Water Project, to replenish local groundwater supplies.

Upper District played a vital role in determining water rights within the Main San Gabriel Basin by
acting as plaintiff in the 1873 court case of the Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District,
Plaintiff, v. City of Alhambra, et al, Defendants. This case brought about the creation of the Main San
Gabriel Basin Watermaster (Watermaster), ordered by the court to administer and enfarce provisions
of the Judgment.

Upper District's service area covers approximately 144 square miles and includes all or parts of 18
cities and portions of unincorporated Los Angeles County with more than 950,000 residents. Upper
District partners with many public and private entities to provide a sustainable, high quality water
supply to residents and businesses within the greater San Gabriel Valley. Consistent with its motto
of “Where Solutions Flow,” Upper District is widely recognized for its customer service orientation,
community invaolvement, and creativity in promoting water quality, water recycling, and water
conservation.

402 E. Huntingtan Drive, Suite B Monrevia, CA 91018 | (628) 443-22%7 (phone] | (626) 443-0617 [fax) www, uigvmwd. arg
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Vision
Upper District aims to support a high quality of life in the greater San Gabriel Valley by providing
valued water services.

Mission
Upper District's mission is to consistently meet our region's need for reliable, high quality and
affordable water.

Core Values
Upper District team, consisting of Board and staff, will embody the following core values in
conducting the business of the district:

» Transparency — Our team will interact with all in a fair, open and honest manner.

# Professionalism — Our team will professionally, respectfully, and responsively serve the
needs of its customers.

= Integrity — Our team will consistently adhere to high moral and ethical principles.

# Collaborative — Our team is collaborative, supporting each other's efforts, loyal to one
another, and cares for each other both personally and professionally.

#» Innovative — Our team will encourage and value the introduction of new ideas and methods.

Service Area

Five elected Directors, each serving a 4-year term and representing a designated geographic area
within the Upper District's boundaries, govern the Upper District. Additionally, as a member agency
of the MWD, the Upper District appoints one representative to the MWD Board of Directors. The
Upper District also has representation on the San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority and
Watermaster Boards.

Most of the water imported into the Upper District service area is used to replenish the Main San
Gabriel Groundwater Basin (the Basin). A small percentage is purchased by city water departments
and private water utilities for direct sale to customers.

B DivISION 1
I OvISION 2
I DIVISION 3
R oviISION 4
DIVISION 5



Upper District Board of Directors

Division 1 — Director Anthony R. Fellow, Ph.D
Representing all or portions of Arcadia, Bradbury,
El Monte, Monrovia, and Temple City

Division 2 — Director Charles M. Trevifio
Representing all or portions of Rosemead, San Gabriel, South
Pasadena, South San Gabriel and Temple City

Division 3 —= Director Ed Chavez

Representing all or portions of Avocado Heights, Bassett, City
of Industry, Hacienda Heights, La Puente, Spy Glass Hill,
South El Mante, and Valinda

Division 4 — Director Katarina Garcia
Representing all or portions of Azusa, Covina, Glendora, and
West Covina

Division 5 — Director Jennifer Santana
Representing all or parts of Baldwin Park, Duarte, El Monte
and Irwindale

-lii-



Local Economy

Two years into the coronavirus pandemic, the economy is in a period of transition with signs
suggesting a return to a more normal state of affairs. The introduction of vaccine against COVID-19
likely muted the severity of the virus in 2021. But it is undeniable that the pandemic brought about
permanent changes within industries.

California followed its own path in working through the coronavirus pandemic over the last two
years. By mid-year 2021, the California economy achieved a growth trajectory that outpaced the
nation as a whole. However, while California has significantly recovered from the economic
downturn caused by the pandemic, significant challenges remain particularly in industries
dependent on in-person interaction.

While the number of payroll jobs in the nonfarm sectors of the state economy is still 2.8% shy of the
pre-pandemic peak level in February 2020, this is a considerable improvement from a year ago
when the job count was 10% below peak. The state has also performed well in terms of economic
activity. California’s forecasted gross domestic product in 2021 is 6.7%, a 9.5% increase from 2020
levels.

California faces distinct challenges regarding housing affordability and accessibility that have only
been aggravated by the pandemic. During the pandemic, the state lost population for the first time
in over 100 years. Higher home prices and interest rates caused affordability to erode while near
term concerns such as inflation and the price of gasoline also have become the focal points of
attention.

Los Angeles County is quickly recovering from the negative economic and social effects of the
COVID-19 pandemic. Gross county product is expected to grow by 6.8 percent in 2021 and is
projected to grow by another 4.6 percent in 2022. The unemployment rate in Los Angeles County
continued to fall in 2021, falling to about 7% in November. Housing in the Los Angeles region has
significantly increased in value throughout the pandemic, closing 2021 at 2.5 times higher than the
value of a typical home in the country. While the increase in Los Angeles home values is expected
to slow in the coming years, high housing costs will continue to remain an important characteristic
of the region.

Over the last year and a half, the San Gabriel Valley has regained much of the ground it lost during
the 2020 recession. Job creation gained momentum as more industries increased the pace of
hiring, most notably in the pandemic-devastated service sectors. As more Valley residents returned
to work, the unemployment rate declined to a post-pandemic low. The annual unemployment rate
for 2021 was 8.9% and is forecasted to drop to 5.3% in 2022.

Like the nation and most of California, Los Angeles County and the San Gabriel Valley economies
are displaying solid fundamentals, but rising headwinds present a risk. There is the prospect of
significant policy tightening by the Federal Reserve to combat higher inflation and conflict in Europe
risks fueling higher inflation and tighter financial conditions. The worst of the Covid-19 pandemic
appears to be fading into the distance, but the potential for new variants remains. Still, the rapid
improvement in the public health situation has set the stage for robust consumption growth in the
months ahead.

Sources: San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership’s 2022 Economic Forecast Report, Los Angeles County Economic
Development Corporation's Economic Forecast 2022, and the September 2022 UCLA Anderson Forecast.
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Major Initiatives

Consistent with its mission, the Upper District strives to assist local retail water providers manage
their water supply safely and cost-effectively by improving water quality and increasing supply
reliability. This is a challenging goal because faciors such as climate, water quality legislation,
regulations, government policy, economics, population, and market demand change and, thus, affect
the Upper District's planning and operations. Upper District's primary function has been to provide
supplemental water to its retail water providers, sourced from the State Water Project, the Colorado
River, and more recently, in the form of recycled water.

Imported Water Deliveries

In December 2014, Upper District executed a ten-year extension to the current purchase order with
MWD, retaining the ability to purchase about 67,000 acre feet per year of the less expensive Tier 1
water.

Recognizing the long-term drought conditions and the continuing decline of the Basin level, the
stakeholders, consisting of producers, responsible agencies and Watermaster, developed a water
resource development assessment to purchase untreated water for stormwater augmentation (RDA
Il Program) in May 2017. Unlike an earlier version of this program, which provided for Watermaster’s
pre-purchase of replacement water, the RDA Il Program supplements the lack of local stormwater
replenishment by purchasing imported Tier | water. There is no “right of recovery” using a water
right, by any Basin producer. Funding for this program is obtained by an annual assessment against
every acre foot of production regardless of whether the producer is within or above its production
rights.

A new cyclic storage agreement was executed by Upper District, Metropolitan and Watermaster and
executed in March 2022. The new agreement allows Metropolitan to deliver and store up to 200,000
acre-feet of water in the Main San Gabriel Basin (Basin) in advance of demand for water by
Watermaster and Upper District, with a ten-year term.

As Callifornia grapples with yet another historically dry year, January to March 2022 being the driest
January to March period in California history, Upper District continued to work closely with
Metropolitan, Watermaster and the producers to develop potential short-term and long-term actions
to reduce dependence on State Water Project (SWP) supplies. In an effort to get Colorado River
water (CRW) into the basin, a Quagga Mussel Control Plan has been developed and will be
submitted for approval to the Department of Fish and Wildlife and the Los Angeles Flood Control
District. The Provisional Quagga Mussel Control Plan includes provisions for control and
containment, post-delivery eradication, and testing and monitoring for confirmation. Four sections
of the San Gabriel River have been identified and control methods and monitoring strategies have
been developed for each reach. This effort can potentially save up to 50 thousand acre-feet of SWP
supplies annually.

In December 2021, Upper District and Watermaster executed a three-year purchase agreement
aimed at addressing the variability of untreated water sales and the growing gap between
Metropolitan's readiness-to-serve (RTS) charge and the standby charge revenue Metropolitan
collects on behalf of Upper District. Under the agreement, Watermaster commits to purchase a set
amount of water each fiscal year sufficient to meet the District's required debt coverage ratio.

Integrated Resources Plan (IRP)

Completed in 2012, Upper District's IRP defines a long-term strategy for investments in a balanced
portfolio of water supplies that are reliable and affordable. Upper District is currently implementing
the strategy defined in the IRP, which includes the Recycled Water Program described in the next
section.



Upper District is working on updating the Integrated Resource Plan to address significant changes
regarding potential water resource programs and supply availability and strives to work with all
stakeholders to implement innovative conservation, recycling, and storm water capture projects to
improve long-term water supply reliability.

Recycled Water Program

Recycled water is a key element of Upper District's overall strategy of supplementing local water
supplies. Recycled water is being used throughout California to irrigate golf courses, parks, freeway
landscaping and crops. It is also being used to replenish groundwater basins, to serve as a barrier to
seawater intrusion, and by industry for cooling processes and other purposes. Recycled water
directly offsets the need to import increasingly expensive water that is pumped from the sensitive
Bay-Delta ecosystem.

Upper District's success in proactively advancing water recycling is largely attributable to the support
of its partners: the United States Bureau of Reclamation (USBR); State Water Resources Control
Board; Metropolitan Water District; Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County; Watermaster, local
retail water providers and many others who have contributed to the successful development of
recycled water in the San Gabriel Valley.

Direct Reuse

The Direct Reuse Program includes the phased construction of a recycled water distribution system
used to provide water for irrigation purposes. Over $51 million has been invested to construct a
direct reuse recycled water distribution system consisting of more than 24 miles of distribution
pipeline. The major components of the direct reuse system are summarized below. All components
of the system are in service.

Whittier Narrows — The Upper District's Whittier Narrows Water Recycling Project supplies
the 2,500 acre Whittier Narrows Recreation Area with about 400 million gallons of recycled
water each year. The recycled water provides irrigation for a large public park, soccer,
baseball, and softball fields as well as the 18-hole Whittier Narrows Golf Course.

South El Monte High School — In 2007, Upper District converted South El Monte High School
to recycled water for irrigating campus green areas and athletic fields. Recycled water used
at the high school conserves nearly 17 million gallons of drinking water each year, enough to
supply about 100 households.

Rose Hills Memorial Park — In early 2006, Upper District converted about half of the Rose
Hills Memorial Park (Rose Hills) to recycled water for irrigation purposes. Prior to using
recycled water, Rose Hills used approximately 388 million gallons (1,200 acre-feet) per year
or about 1,000,000 gallons per day of drinking water for irrigation. By using recycled water,
Rose Hills reduced their drinking water demand by about 600 acre-feet per year, saving
about 500,000 gallons of drinking water per day or enough drinking water to supply about
1,200 average single-family homes each year. As part of this project, an additional 21 million
gallons of recycled water per year are provided to Rio Hondo College, Mill Elementary
School and Gateway Pointe Industrial Park for irrigation purposes.

In 2014, Upper District assisted Rose Hills in obtaining $500,000 in Proposition 84 grant
funds to expand the recycled water system and serve an additional 600 acre-feet per year.
This effort required Rose Hills to contribute $500,000 towards the needed improvements
which were completed in 2016, increasing the use of recycled water by another 600 acre-feet
per year.
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Rosemead Extension — The San Gabriel Valley Water Recycling Project Phase IIA —
Rosemead Extension consists of recycled water pipelines extending north and west from the
Whittier Narrows Recreation Area to supply approximately 98 million gallons of recycled
water per year to Southern California Edison corporate headquarters, Panda Express
corporate headquarters, Walmart and several nurseries, schools, and businesses.

City of Industry — In 2010, the Upper District's City of Industry Water Recycling Project began
providing recycled water for irrigation purposes by extending an existing recycled water
pipeline, stretching from the City of Industry through Hacienda Heights, to West Covina. The
project supplies more than 260 million gallons of recycled water per year for irrigation to a
landfill, golf course, baseball complex, schools, parks, medians, and green belts in the San
Gabriel Valley.

South El Monte and El Monte Extension — In 2014, Upper District assisted the San Gabriel
Valley Water Company in obtaining $1.28 million in Proposition 84 grant funds to expand the
Whittier Narrows Recycled Water system to serve an additional 95 acre-feet per year of
recycled water in South El Monte and El Monte. The San Gabriel Valley Water Company
provided approximately $2.13 million to complete the facilities needed.

La Puente Valley County Water District Recycled Water System - In 2014, Upper District
assisted the La Puente Valley County Water District in obtaining $428,000 in Proposition. 84
grant funds to construct a recycled water system to serve 60 acre-feet per year of recycled
water in La Puente and the City of Industry. The La Puente Valley County Water District will
provide $1.57 million to complete the facilities needed. The construction award was
approved in in December 2019, with construction beginning in the first quarter of 2020. The
pipeline construction is complete with remaining work focused on individual customer
connections.

Storm Water

MillerCoors Storm Water Capture Project

Upper District facilitated several meetings with Vulcan, MillerCoors, the LAFCD and Watermaster to
determine feasible means of including MillerCoors’ east pit as part of the LAFCD storm water
capture system. LAFCD, Vulcan, and MillerCoors discussed the most feasible means to develop a
storm water capture facility that meets the needs of all parties. At this time, no additional discussions
are underway.

MS4 Stormwater Permit

Upper District staff participated in extensive discussions with the Council of Government Water
Committee members on the MS4 stormwater permit and the potential to use regional facilities to
reduce the cost of compliance. A technical study of the Peck Lake Park area was prepared for use
by the Flood Control District and cities that currently benefit from the use of Peck Lake.

Water Use Efficiency

The effects of climate change and continuing drought-like conditions have left many groundwater
basins at low or near record low levels. Upper District continues to maintain a proactive and
innovative conservation outreach program for our residents in the San Gabriel Valley. For FY 21/22,
Upper District continued to implement residential and commercial water use efficiency programs.
Upper District's approach is in keeping with the State’s long-term framework for conservation and
drought planning titled, "Making Conservation a California Way of Life", which outlines
implementation of EO-B-37-16.
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The COVID-19 pandemic continued to be a considerable challenge throughout FY 21/22, as the
Governor continued to issue mandates that prohibited large events, and limited activities across the
state and county. While the pandemic restrictions were issued in March 2020, the effects of the
stay-at-home order and social distancing remained in effect through the first half of FY 21/22 which
resulted in events being reformatted to fit a virtual setting and projects being altered to permit
distancing.

Water Conservation and Education

Water conservation is a vital and cost-effective method of preserving our water supply and is a
critical aspect of an effective, sustainable water supply program. Throughout California and the San
Gabriel Valley, cities, water companies, utilities, and water districts are deeply involved in
conservation and public education efforts that promote water use efficiency. Informing residents,
businesses, and our youth about water use efficiency remains a top priority of Upper District's public
education program.

Residential Programs

Residential Rebate Program - Through Metropolitan’s SoCal Water Smart Regional
Residential Rebate Program, Upper District's residents are offered rebates for retrofitting
several types of high water-use fixtures/equipment. Rebate items include the following: High-
Efficiency Clothes Washers (HECW), Premium High Efficiency Toilets (PHET), Weather-
Based Irrigation Controllers (WBIC), Rotating Sprinkler Nozzles, Soil Moisture Sensor
Systems (SMSS), Hos Bib Irrigation Controllers (HBIC), Rain Barrels, Cisterns, and turf
removal. Rebates were paid for 69,541 residential devices during the fiscal year that will
produce approximately 594-acre feet (193,355,552 gallons) of lifetime water savings.

Residential Landscape Survey and Retrofit Program — During FY 21/22, 295 surveys were
completed and multiple water efficient irrigation devices were provided through a purveyor-
run residential survey and retrofit landscape program. The program provided these locations
with large landscape areas an opportunity to update their irrigation systems to include a
WBIC, efficient sprinkler systems, and even replacement irrigation lines to efficiently meet
the needs of the landscape. Upper District provided a total of $12,968 in incentive payments
to the producers for this program through MWD’s Member Agency Administered Program.

Commercial, Industrial, and Institutional (CIl) Program

Cll Rebate Program — Through Metropolitan’s SoCal Water Smart Commercial Rebate
Program, Southern California businesses are eligible for rebates to help encourage water
use efficiency. This program offers rebates on a wide variety of water-saving technologies
including premium PHETs and Zero Water Urinals (ZWU), Ultra-Low Water Urinals (ULWU),
WBICs, Central Computer Irrigation Controllers (CCIC), SMSS, HBIC, Large Rotary Nozzles,
In-Stem Flow Regulators, pH-Cooling Tower Controller (pH-CTC), Cooling Tower
Conductivity Controller (CTCC), Dry Vacuum Pumps, Connectionless Food Steamers, Ice-
Making Machines, and turf removal. Rebates were paid for 336 Cll devices during FY 21/22
that will produce approximately 50 acre feet (16,292,550 gallons) of lifetime water savings.

Water Fill Station Program — During FY 21/22, Upper District continued its Water Filling
Station program (WFS) which involves the installation of water bottle filling stations at
designated public facilities located within Upper District's service area with high pedestrian
traffic or provide recreational activity. The program provides accessibility to tap water,
highlighting the quality of tap water while providing an alternative to one-time use plastic
bottles. The production, packaging, and transportation of one-time use plastic bottles is both
water and energy intensive. The aftermath of using one-time plastics is a long-term negative
impact on the environment.
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The success of the WFS program resulted in several water producers stepping forward to
fund additional water fill stations, expanding the program far beyond the original number of
site installation pilot projects. The WFS program benefits local communities, delivering
positive environmental impacts while highlighting the safety of local drinking water.
Accommodating this partnering approach capitalized on the economies of scale, ensured
consistent program guidelines, maintained a consistent regional water use efficiency
message to the public, and created a successful partnering endeavor between the Upper
District and its water producers. A total of 43 WFS were installed during FY 21/22.

Education and Community Outreach Programs

Watershed Restoration Program — This program is a cooperative partnership between the
Upper District and the U.S. Forest Service that incorporates volunteers into efforts to protect
and maintain the local watershed. Program activities typically include collection of native
seeds, planting of saplings, and trash removal. During FY 21/22, the volunteer events
continued to be cancelled due to the COVID-19 pandemic.

4th-6th Grade Sustainable Watershed Education Program — The partnership with the
Discovery Science Foundation provides exciting 4th-6th grade student curriculum that
focuses on water use efficiency, highlights watershed issues, and groundwater awareness.
Offered free to participating schools, the program includes interactive assemblies for fourth
and fifth graders and in-class hands-on workshops for sixth graders.

During FY 21/22, 2,515 students from 16 schools participated in the assemblies and hands-
on workshops. Due to COVID-19, the program has been revamped to include options for
virtual learning and the program was expanded to 7" grade utilizing STEM curriculum for the
science-based workshops.

Upper District also offers a number of free class trips to the Discovery Cube’s Los Angeles or
Santa Ana locations. The trip includes free admission for up to 60 students and a $250
transportation grant. Many of the schools that were offered the class trips, declined to
participate this past year due to continuing pandemic restrictions at their respective school
districts. Upper District will continue to honor this option to those schools that qualified this
past fiscal year.

Water Efficiency Workshops — Upper District and MWD had to make changes to the water
efficiency workshop format to allow for social distancing. Virtual workshops became the norm
for FY 21/22 and a total of 344 individuals virtually attended 10 workshops hosted by Upper
District during FY 21/22.

Solar Cup — Sponsored by MWD, Solar Cup is a youth program that provides high school
teams the hands-on opportunity to build solar powered boats that they compete in race and
endurance categories. Due to COVID-19, Solar Cup was held in a virtual format for
FY 21/22. Solar Cup 2022 will be an online STEAM-focused program where students will
learn skills by working as a team and selecting from a menu of activities that cover a wide
range of STEAM fields including robotics, solar power vehicles, utilizing CAD software,
building online gaming, social media messaging, visual arts and dream job skills. At the end
of the five-month program, there was a competition with ten different challenges for the
teams to compete within. Upper District supported two teams for entry into the FY 21/22
event.
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Water Awareness Art Contest — Upper District's “Water is Life” art contest inspires students
to think about how important water is to all life and encourages youth to express the value of
water through their artwork. The contest has 4 categories: K-2, 3-5, 6-8 and 9-12" grade.
Due to the continuation of the COVID-19 pandemic resulted in schools continuing a virtual
learning structure, Upper District hosted the contest using virtual submission and voting. 117
posters were submitted from 12 schools.

Water Education Grant Program — The Upper District's Water Education Grant Program
(WEGP) offers teachers an opportunity to apply for grants of up to $1,000 for proposed
school projects that are related to water. A total of 28 applications amounting to $22,672.68
were awarded for the 2021/22 school year.

Water Conservation Booths — Upper District maintains an aggressive grassroots outreach
campaign to educate the residents of the San Gabriel Valley. Informational booths on water
conservation are hosted by Upper District at city sponsored events such as summer
concerts, community, and environmental fairs. Due to COVID-19, there were no events from
July 2021 until March 2022. However, Upper District was able to participate in 13 outreach
booths for the remainder of FY 21/22.

Waterfest — Upper District hosts an annual conservation event in partnership with the Los
Angeles County Department of Parks and Recreation. This educational event for residents,
families and children features interactive educational booths, environmental displays,
informative presentations, free water-saving materials, raffles and more. Due to the COVID-
19 pandemic, WaterFest was cancelled and readapted into a virtual conservation giveaway
program marketed as Conserve-a-palooza.

Conserve-a-palooza — Conserve-a-palooza is a virtual conservation program that was
adapted in lieu of Upper District's annual WaterFest. For five weeks, residents within Upper
District's service area have the opportunity to participate by answering weekly conservation
trivia. Randomly selected participants received water-use efficiency devices as giveaways.
Prizes range from high-efficiency washer machines to native plant vouchers.

San Gabriel Valley Water Smart Award — In 2015, Upper District unveiled the San Gabriel
Valley Water Smart Award which recognizes cities, businesses, elected officials and/or
community partners for their efforts in promoting water conservation through education,
advocacy, or community engagement. The SGV Water Smart Awards are normally awarded
during the WaterFest event; however, due to the COVID-19 pandemic, Upper District did not
host the award recognition ceremony in 2020.

News Splash Newsletter — Upper District continued its monthly communication to residents
through its monthly e-newsletter called “News Splash”. In an effort to actively engage
residents and key regional stakeholders, each monthly edition includes water related news,
information on Upper District's conservation and educational programs, water smart
waorkshops, and water saving resources.

Upper District's Website — Upper District's website features a streamlined format and meets
all accessibility and public access guidelines for special districts. To inform residents during
Metropolitan's Water Shortgage Emergency Plan in June 2022, and subsequent drought
actions taken by Upper District, the agency refreshed the website to provide valuable water
conservation materials, and resources to its 17 cities and 22 water producers through a
dedicated Drought page. The web page contained communication materials specific to the
local water supply in a “producer/city” tool kit and updated educational resources in the
“teacher/parent” tool kit. .




Upper District's "Where Solutions Flow” Tours — Upper District has actively engaged the
region's local elected officials by offering educational programs on key water policies and
issues that affect the San Gabriel Valley. Upper District, in partnership with the Main San
Gabriel Basin Watermaster, MWD, the Army Corps of Engineers, LA County Flood Control
District, and San Gabriel Valley Water Company, have provided educational tours of the San
Gabriel Valley water infrastructure. For FY 21-22, Upper District held an in person Water 101
in April 2022 for local city council members, city staff and state and federal legislative offices
to provide a timely overview of local water operations, current water supply, regional drought
actions and a virtual tour of local infrastructure utilizing the newly created “Where Solutions
Flow” video.

Speakers’ Bureau Presentations — Upper District Board members and management make
numerous presentations to city councils, school boards, chambers of commerce and other
community organizations. These presentations provide stakeholders with information about
the history of the Upper District, local water issues and challenges, recycled water projects,
water-related legislation, and water conservation programs. During FY 21/22, Upper District
resumed its “State of the District” presentations to all 17 cities in its service area including
chambers and community organizations. The briefing included an update on local water
supply, drought actions and water conservation calls to action.

Drought Messaging Campaign — Due to Metropolitan's Water Shortage Emergency Plan,
Upper District adopted its own Water Shortage Emergency Plan that called for a mandatory
reduction of water use by 20 percent and a mandatory 2 day a week outdoor watering
schedule. The Upper District board also committed to increasing its conservation messaging
and advertising throughout its service area. Upper District embarked on a unique
conservation messaging campaign utilizing the services of 789 inc.,, to develop new
messaging, artwork and a comprehensive ad buy campaign that included social media,
billboards, transit shelters and mobile ad buys for an eight-week summer campaign.
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Relevant Financial Policies

Internal Control Structure

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an internal control structure that
ensures that assets are protected from loss, theft, or misuse. The internal control structure also
ensures that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal control structure
is designed to provide reasonable assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (a) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely
to be derived, and (b) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments by
management.

Investment Policy

Annually, the Board of Directors adopts an investment policy consistent with the requirements of the
California Government Code. In order of priority, three fundamental criteria are followed by the
Upper District in the investment program:

(a) Safety of Principal - Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that first seeks to
ensure the preservation of principal in the portfolio. Each investment transaction shall
be entered into after taking into consideration the quality of the issuer, the underlying
security or collateral, and diversification of the portfolio.

(b) Liquidity - Investments shall be made so that the maturity date is compatible with
cash flow needs and safety of principal.

(c) Return on Investment - Investments shall be undertaken to produce an acceptable
rate of return after first considering safety of principal and liquidity and the prudent
investor standard.

During fiscal year 2021/22, all funds were invested in accordance with Upper District's investment
policy.

Designated Reserve Palicy

Upper District's adopted Designated Reserve Fund Policy sets prudent levels of reserve funds to
provide financial resources not only during emergencies or planned capital projects but also for
scheduled and unscheduled expenses such as operation and maintenance, debt service and
stabilization of rates. The Reserve Fund Policy establishes the following six designated reserves,
each with its own recommended minimum, target, and maximum levels: 1) Emergency Reserve; 2)
Operating Reserve; 3) Pay-go Capital Improvement and Replacement Reserve; 4) Capital Reserve;
5) Revenue Stabilization Reserve; and 6) Water Banking Reserve.

Budget Process and Controls

Budgets are often used as a performance tool for measuring accountability of public agencies to its
stakeholders. Though not legally required to do so, Upper District annually adopts a budget not only
as a management tool for planning and control purposes but also to demonstrate its commitment to
fiscal responsibility and transparency. Upper District also uses the budget as a communication tool
that shows how the District intends to allocate its resources in support of its mission, goals and
objectives.

Developing and monitoring the budget is an ongoing process. Upper District conducts a series of
budget workshops to encourage stakeholder participation and input prior to adoption of the final
budget. Monthly financial statements showing budget-to-actual comparison and analysis are
presented to management and the Board of Directors to facilitate review and assessment throughout
the fiscal year.
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Water Rates

Pursuant to Water Code Section 71614 et seq., Upper District establishes water rates and charges
through a resolution by the Board of Directors. Prior to adoption of the water rates and charges,
workshops are held to solicit input from all stakeholders.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Upper District for its annual
comprehensive financial report for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This was the 11th
consecutive year that the Upper District has achieved this prestigious award. To be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
annual comprehensive financial report. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting
principles and applicable program requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a pericd of one year only. We believe that our current annual
comprehensive financial report continues to meet the Cerificate of Achievement Program's
requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report was accomplished by the combined efforts of Upper District staff. We
appreciate the dedicated efforts and professionalism that our staff members bring to the Upper

District. We would also like to thank the members of the Board of Directors for their continued
support in the planning and implementation of Upper District's fiscal policies.

Respectfully submitted,

Thomas A. Love Evelyn M. Rodriguez
General Manager Director of Finance and Administration
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ROGERS, AMDERSON, MALODY & SCOTT, LLP

Independent Auditor's Report
735 E Carnegis Dr. Suite 100

San Bernardino, TA 91408

sl Honorable Member of the Board of Directors
PRSI F Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Famscpa. net

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Upper San
Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District {(Upper District) as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise Upper District's basic financial statements as
listed in the table of contents.

M ANAGZNS 7 S TA] In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of Upper District, as of
June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as accounting
systems prescribed by the California State Controller's office and state
regulations governing special districts.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America (GAAS), the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States, and the State Controller's
Minimum Audit Requirements for California Special Districts. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of Upper District and to meet our
other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion,

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

Upper District's management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal contral relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate
whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
Proud Memberof raise substantial doubt about Upper District's ability to continue as a going
AlliottGlobalAlliance concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including
any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly
thereafter.

-
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material
if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment
made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

+ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Upper District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

¢ Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Upper District's ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and analysis and the schedules listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial
report. The other information comprises the introductory section and statistical section but does not
include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the wark
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstaterment of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited Upper District’s 2021 financial statements, and we expressed an unmodified
audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 28, 2021. In our opinion,
the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, is
consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been derived.

Other Matter

Prior-Year Comparative Information

The financial statements include summarized prior-year comparative information. Such information does
not include sufficient detail to constitute a presentation in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction
with the government's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2021, from which such
summarized information was derived.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 27,
2022, an our cansideration of Upper District's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting or an compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Upper District's
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

ft?m, Andereon, MnJav?' 2 deot, LLP.

San Bernardino, California
October 27, 2022
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

The following Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) provides an overview of the financial
performance and activities of the Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District (Upper District)
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022. We encourage readers to consider the information
presented here in conjunction with the transmittal letter in the Introductory Section and with the basic
financial statements and related notes which follow this section.

Required Financial Statements

Upper District is a wholesale water utility enterprise and presents its financial statements using the
economic resources measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. As an enterprise
fund, Upper District's basic financial statements include the statement of net position, statement of
revenues, expenses and changes in net position and statement of cash flows. The financial
statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the financial statements and
provide more detailed data.

The statement of net position presents information on all Upper District's assets and deferred
outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, with the difference between
the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a
useful indicator of whether the financial position of Upper District is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position presents information showing
how Upper District's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are recognized on the accrual basis.

The statement of cash flows is related to the other financial statements by the way it links changes in
assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources to the
effect on cash and cash equivalents over the course of the fiscal year.

The notes to the financial statements provide useful information regarding Upper District's significant
accounting policies, and they explain significant account balances and activities, certain material
risks, obligations, commitments, contingencies and subsequent events, if any.

Financial Highlights

> During fiscal year 2021/22, the producers and Watermaster made combined imported water
purchases of about 49,700 acre feet, a decrease of about 10,300 acre feet compared to prior
fiscal year's.

» Under the three-year purchase agreement with Watermaster, about 8,200 acre feet of
untreated water were sold at cost.

» Capital expenditures during the fiscal year consisted mostly of costs associated with the
renovation of Upper District's new office amounting to about $2.23 million.

> Limited in-person conservation events and programs were held during fiscal year 2021/22 as
COVID-19 concerns linger.

More information on the financial statement variances is covered in the next sections.



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Financial Analysis of Upper District

The statements of net position and the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position report provide an indication of Upper District's financial health. It provides a basis for
evaluating the capital structure and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of Upper District.

The following tables summarize Upper District's financial condition and the changes in its net
position for the past two years.

Statements of Net Position

Consolidated Statements of Net Position

June 30 Change
2022 2021 Dollar
(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Percentage
Assets
Current assets $ 26,224 $ 25716 $ 508 1.98%
Capital assets, net 55,799 54,668 1,131 2.07%
Total assets 82,023 80,384 1,639 2.04%
Deferred outflows of resources 1,838 1,755 83 4.73%
Liabilities
Current liabilities 4,145 3,655 490 13.41%
Noncurrent liabilities 8,480 11,608 (3,128) -26.95%
Total liabilities 12,625 15,263 (2,638) -17.28%
Deferred inflows of resources 2,026 338 1,688 499.41%
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 48,485 46,706 1,779 3.81%
Unrestricted 20,724 19,831 893 4.50%
Total net position $ 69,209 $ 66,537 $ 2,672 4.02%

As shown above, Upper District's total assets exceeded liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $69.21 million and $66.54 million as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively, or an increase in
net position of $2.67 million between 2022 and 2021,

Assets

To help address the rapidly declining Basin levels, Upper District began pre-purchasing untreated
water for cyclic storage in 2015. As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, Upper District's cyclic storage
account has about 8,000 and 6,600 acre feet of water, respectively, reported as part of current
assets in Upper District’'s statements of net position.

The increase in net investment in capital assets of about $1.78 million during fiscal year 2021/22 is
attributable to renovation costs for the new district headquarters offset by the annual provision for
depreciation.



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Liabilities

The decrease in Upper District's noncurrent liabilities as of June 30, 2022 is mainly attributable to
decreases in net pension liability, primarily from net investment gains, and net OPEB liability, mainly
from additional contributions and net investment gains. In addition, Upper District continued to pay
down its state revolving loan, reducing amount owed to CSWRCB by $0.65 million and $0.64 million
for fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Net Position

A large portion of Upper District's net position consists of net investment in capital assets. Capital
assets are used by Upper District to provide services to its customers and are, therefore, not
available for spending. Consequently, as Upper District continued to invest in its recycled water
program to improve water supply reliability, net investment in capital assets will generally increase.

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

The statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position provide information on the nature
and sources of these changes. For the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, Upper District’s
net position increased by $2.67 million and $3.95 million, respectively, as shown by the table below.

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

June 30 Change
2022 2021 Dollar
(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Percentage
Operating revenue

Water revenue $ 47,256 $ 55,708 $ (8,452) -15.17%
Water conservation 507 31 476 1535.48%
Other operating revenue 1,077 115 962 836.52%
Total operating revenue 48,840 55,854 (7,014) -12.56%
Total operating expenses 50,990 57,164 (8,174) -10.80%
Operating loss (2,150) (1,310) (840) 64.12%
Standby charges 4,192 4,244 -52 -1.23%
Investment eamnings, taxes, other 475 764 (289) -37.83%
Net nonoperating revenues 4,667 5,008 (341) -6.81%
Income before contributions 2,517 3,698 (1,181) -31.94%
Capital contributions 155 249 (94) -37.75%
Change in net position 2,672 3,947 $ (1,275) -32.30%

Net position, beginning of year 66,538 62,591

Net position, end of year $ 69,210 $ 66,538

Operating Revenues

Upper District received $1 million from Sunny Slope Water Company (SSWC) in fiscal year 2021/22
as repayment for grant funds provided by Upper District in 2011 and 2012 for the construction of
SSWC'’s liquid-phase granular activated carbon treatment vessel. The grant agreement required
SSWC's repayment of funds should project costs be recouped from responsible parties.



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

During fiscal year 2021/22, producers significantly scaled back on their water purchases for cyclic
storage. In addition, about 8,200 acre feet of untreated water were sold at cost pursuant to a three-
year purchase agreement between Watermaster and Upper District. Because of these, untreated
water sales revenue decreased by $8.74 million.

Nonoperating Revenue/Expenses and Capital Contributions

Nonoperating revenue, generally consisting of standby charges, investment earnings and taxes,
have remained relatively stable over the years. In fiscal year 2021/22, Upper District's standby
charge rate was set at $10 per acre per year or $10 per parcel less than one acre per year. This
charge, generating about $2 million, provides funding for the recycled and water conservation
programs. MWD levies a separate standby charge, set at $9.27 per acre or portion thereof per year,
on behalf of Upper District. This charge, generating about $1.90 million, is used to offset MWD's
RTS charge.

Operating Expenses
Upper District purchases imported water from MWD and sets its rates based on MWD's prevailing
rates plus a per-acre-foot surcharge.

During fiscal year 2021/22, producers significantly scaled back on their water purchases for cyclic
storage decreasing untreated water purchases by $6.74 million.

Cancellation or postponement of various water conservation events and projects continued during
2021/22, keeping programs costs for the fiscal year low.

Capital Asset Administration
As of June 30, 2022 and 2021, Upper District's investments in capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation, amounted to $55.80 million and $54.67 million, respectively. The following is a
summary of capital assets:

June 30 Change
2022 2021 Dollar

(in thousands) (in thousands) (in thousands) Percentage
Intangible utility plant $ 657 $ 657 % - 0.00%
Construction in progress 11,098 8,866 2,232 25.17%
Water recycling 52,1086 52,106 - 0.00%
Building and improvements 3,548 3,548 - 0.00%
Furniture and equipment 441 441 - 0.00%
Other 116 116 - 0.00%
Subtotal 67,966 65,734 2,232 3.40%
Less accumulated depreciation (12,166) (11,064) (1,102) 9.96%
Net capital assets $ 55,800 $ 54670 % 1,130 2.07%

For more information regarding Upper District's capital assets, please refer to Note 4 of the Notes to
Financial Statements.



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Management’s Discussion and Analysis
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

Long-term Debt

Construction activities for the City of Industry Project were partially funded by a State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan from the California State Water Resources Control Board (CSWRCB) which, as of
June 30, 2022 and 2021, amounted to $7,313,702 and $7,961,230, respectively. Detailed
information on Upper District's long-term debt is presented under Note 6 in the Notes to Financial
Statements.

Water Rates and Other Charges

On May 26, 2021, the Board of Directors approved the adoption of a water standby or availability of
service charge at $10 per acre of land or $10 for each parcel of land less than an acre within Upper
District's service area for fiscal year 2021/22. This charge generates about $2 million in revenues.

In August 2021, the Board of Directors approved the water rates and charges for the different
classes of water effective January 1, 2022. Upper District's water rates for the last ten fiscal years
are presented on page 50 of the statistical section.

Conditions Affecting Current Financial Position

Subsequent to extensive discussions with the producers and Watermaster to address the increasing
Metropolitan’s net readiness-to-serve (RTS) charge, Upper District entered into a three-year
agreement with Watermaster setting minimum purchase commitment for untreated water. Under the
agreement executed in December 2021, Watermaster commits to purchase a set amount of water
each fiscal year sufficient to meet the District's required debt coverage ratio. Untreated sales in
excess of the annual purchase commitment will not carry Upper District's surcharge. The letter
agreement aims to address the variability of untreated water sales and the growing gap between the
District's share of the RTS charge and the standby charge revenue collected by Metropolitan on
Upper District’s behalf.

Shortly after signs of the COVID-19 pandemic first appeared in California in 2020, Upper District, like
most agencies, immediately transitioned staff to a teleworking schedule with minimal disruption in
essential service delivery. As vaccines were rolled out and COVID-19 cases declined in Los Angeles
County, Upper District was able to fully transition staff to pre-pandemic schedule in the office in June
2021. However, planned events and projects that involve face-to-face encounters continued to be
cancelled during fiscal year 2021/22 as concerns about the virus persist.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide Upper District's funding sources, customers, stakeholders
and other interested parties with an overview of Upper District's financial operations and overall
financial condition. Should the reader have questions regarding the information included in this
report or wish to request additional financial information, please contact Upper District's Director of
Finance and Administration at 602 E. Huntington Drive, Suite B, Monrovia, California 91016.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022
(With comparative data for prior year)

2022 2021
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 2) $ 12985645 § 11,984 460
Investments 5,514,984 6,162,244
Receivables:
Water sales 2,331,242 1,473,647
Grants - 3,800
Other 484 188 214,090
Prepurchased water 4,767,823 5,749,227
Prepaid expenses 129,736 128,904
Total current assets 26,223,618 25,716,372
Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets, not being depreciated (Note 4) 11,755,204 9,522,471
Capital assets, net of depreciation (Note 4) 44 043,793 45,145,324
Total noncurrent assets 55,798,997 54,667,795
Total assets 82,022,615 80,384,167
Deferred outflows of resources
Pension related (Note 7) 1,553,034 641,535
OPEB related (Note 9) 285,067 1,113,066
Total deferred outflows of resources 1,838,101 1,754,601
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable:
Metropolitan Water District 1,427 442 1,790,814
Other 1,662,188 1,016,120
Accrued liabilities 321,419 124,677
Unearned revenue 33,750 30,375
Due to State Water Resources Control Board, current portion 659,217 647,529
Compensated absences, current portion (Note 5) 40,812 45,807
Total current liabilities 4,144 828 3,655,322
Noncurrent liabilities:
Net pension liability (Note 7) 1,583,206 2,752,218
Net OPEB liability (Note 9) 203,341 1,496,461
Due to State Water Resources Control Board, net of current portion 6,654,485 7,313,701
Compensated absences, net of current portion (Note 5) 39,244 45,621
Total noncurrent liabilities 8,480,276 11,608,001
Total liabilities 12,625,104 15,263,323
Deferred inflows of resources
Pension related (Note 7) 1,448,870 77,508
OPEB related (Note 9) 577,009 260,355
Total deferred inflows of resources 2,025,879 337,863
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 48,485,295 46,706,565
Unrestricted 20,724,438 19,831,017
Total net position $ 69,209,733 § 66,537,582

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-9-
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

(With comparative data for prior year)

Operating revenues
Water revenue
Water conservation
Other revenues

Total operating revenues
Operating expenses
Sources of supply
Water quality and supply program
Water recycling
Conservation
Depreciation
General and administrative
Total operating expenses
Operating loss
Nonoperating revenues (expenses)
Standby charges
Investment earnings (losses)
Taxes
Total nonoperating revenues
Income before contributions
Capital contributions
Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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2022 2021
47255010 $ 55708272
507,026 30,769
1,076,993 114,802
48,839,929 55,853,843
41,556,927 48,111,188
3,443,095 3,216,926
828,869 895,068
1,802,740 1,265,465
1,101,531 1,106,869
2,257,145 2,568,452
50,990,307 57,163,968
(2,150,378) (1,310,125)
4,191,638 4,244,157
(257,620) 54,657
733,186 708,881
4,667,204 5,007,695
2,516,826 3,697,570
155,325 249,226
2,672,151 3,946,796
66,537,582 62,590,786
69,209,733 § 66,537,582




Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Statement of Cash Flows
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022
(With comparative data for prior year)

2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash received from customers $ 47,709,411 § 55,596,513
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (46,161,778) (52,280,398)
Cash payments for employees for services (3,135,976) (4,157,983)
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities (1,588,343) (841,868)
Cash flows from noncapital financing activities
Cash received from property taxes 733,186 708,881
Cash received from standby charges 4,191,638 4,244,157
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities 4,924 824 4,953,038
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets (2,232,733) (292,704)
Repayment of project finance agreements (647,528) (636,047)
Capital contributions 155,325 249,226
Net cash provided by (used for) capital and related financing activities (2,724 936) (679,525)
Cash flows from investing activities
Cash received from sale and maturity of investments 495 897 1,489,960
Acquisition of investments B (2,485,791)
Investment earnings (losses) (106,257) 54,657
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities 389,640 (941,174)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 1,001,185 2,490,471
Cash and cash equivalens, beginning of year 11,984,460 9,493,989
Cash and cash equivalens, end of year $ 12,985,645 $ 11,984,460

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-11-



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Statement of Cash Flows
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022
(With comparative data for prior year), (continued)

2022 2021
Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash
provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating loss $ (2,150,378) $ (1,310,125)
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss
to net cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation 1,101,531 1,106,869
(Increase) decrease in assets and deferred outflows
of resources:
Receivables (1,133,893) (263,805)
Prepurchased water 981,404 -
Prepaid expenses (832) 5,833
Deferred outflows of resources (83,500) (827,310)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 479,438 364,643
Unearned revenue 3,375 6,475
Compensated absences (11,372) 5,604
Deferred inflows of resources 1,688,016 (136,350)
Net pension liability (1,293,120) (6,920)
Net OPEB liability (1,169,012) 213,218
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities $ (1,588,343) $ (841,868)
Schedule of non-cash operating, noncapital and capital related
financing and investing activities
Fair value adjustment $ (155,408) $ (71,853)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
-12-
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Description of the entity

Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District (Upper District), which comprises an
area of approximately 144 square miles, was incorporated on January 7, 1960 under the
provisions of the Municipal Water District Law of 1911, as amended, (now cited as “The
Municipal Water District Law of 1911”, Division 20, California Water Code) as a result of
a special election held on December 8, 1959. On March 12, 1963, the voters of Upper
District elected to join the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California. On
November 2, 1965, the citizens of West Covina voted to join Upper District.

Adjudication proceedings, which established the legal determination of water rights of
individual pumpers in the area in relation to the safe yield of the total water basin, were
completed on December 29, 1972. The decree established a Watermaster, the Main San
Gabriel Basin Watermaster, who took over the function of levying and collecting the
assessments that had previously been levied and collected by Upper District through its
reimbursement contract and replenishment funds.

Upper District's mission is to consistently meet our region’s need for reliable, high quality
and affordable water.

Basis of accounting and measurement focus

Upper District is considered an enterprise fund for financial reporting purposes. The
accompanying financial statements have been prepared using the economic
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and the Uniform Systems of Accounts for Water
Utility Districts as prescribed by the Controller of the State of California. Under this basis
of accounting and measurement focus, revenues are recognized when they are earned
and expenses are recognized when they are incurred, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they were
levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the providers have been met.

Net position

Sometimes Upper District will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted
(e.g., grant proceeds) and unrestricted resources. In order to calculate the amounts to
report as restricted net position and unrestricted net position in the financial statements,
a flow assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered
to be applied. It is the District's policy to consider restricted net position to have been
depleted before unrestricted net position is applied.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Net position (continued)
Net position is categorized as follows:

e Net investment in capital assets — This component of net position consists of
capital assets, including restricted capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages,
notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. If there are significant unspent related debt
proceeds at year-end, the portion of the debt attributable to the unspent proceeds
are not included in the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Rather, that
portion of the debt is included in the same net position component as the unspent
proceeds.

e Restricted — This component of net position consists of constraints placed on
resources through external constraints imposed by creditors (such as through
debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation.

o Unrestricted — This component of net position consists of resources that do not
meet the definition of “restricted” or "net investment in capital assets.”

Upper District distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with an entity’s ongoing operations. Upper
District defines operating revenues as those realized by Upper District in exchange for
providing its primary services for water sales and water programs including conservation
and recycled water. Nonoperating revenues are those derived from the investment of
cash reserves and from entities other than customers and other ancillary sources.

Pension

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources related to pension, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the Upper District's California Public Employees' Retirement System
(CalPERS) plan (Plan) and additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this
purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized
when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at
fair value.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Postemployment benefits other than pensions (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense information about the
fiduciary net position of the Upper Districts OPEB Plan and additions to/deductions from
the Plan's fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the Plan. For this purpose, the Plan recognizes benefit payments when due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value,
except for money market investments and participating interest-earning investment
contracts that have a maturity at the time of purchase of one year or less, which are
reported at cost.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, and changes
therein, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Risk management

Upper District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. It is a member of the
Association of California Water Agencies Joint Powers Insurance Authority (Insurance
Authority). The Insurance Authority is a risk-pooling, self-insurance authority, created
under the provisions of California Government Code Sections 6500 et. seq. The purpose
of the Insurance Authority is to arrange and administer programs of insurance for the
pooling of self-insured losses and to purchase excess insurance coverage.

On June 30, 2022, Upper District participated in the self-insurance program of the
Insurance Authority as follows:

Property Loss — The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per
occurrence and has purchased excess insurance coverage up to $500,000,000, with
deductibles ranging from $2,500 to $50,000.

General, Auto and Public Officials Errors and Omissions Liability — The Insurance
Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $5,000,000 and has purchased excess
insurance coverage up to $55,000,000.

Cyber Liability — The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $5,000,000 per
occurrence subject to a $5,000,000 aggregate limit.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Risk management (continued)

Fidelity: Public Employee Dishonesty, Forgery or Alteration, Computer Fraud & ERISA —
The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to $100,000 per occurrence, with
$1,000 deductible.

Workers’ Compensation — The Insurance Authority has pooled self-insurance up to
$2,000,000 each for workers’ compensation and employers’ liability. The Insurance
authority purchases excess coverage up to the statutory limit of $4,000,000.

There were no settlements in excess of the insurance coverage in any of the three prior
fiscal years.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents have been
defined as deposits and highly liquid investments with maturity of 90 days or less at the
date of purchase.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value (the value at which financial instruments could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
liquidation sale). Changes in fair value that occur during a fiscal year are recognized as
investment income reported for that fiscal year. Investment income includes interest
earnings, changes in fair value, and any gains or losses realized upon the liquidation or
sale of investments.

Capital assets and depreciation

Capital assets are recorded at cost. If applicable, donated assets are stated at
acquisition value on the date donated. The provision for depreciation is computed using
the straight-line method over the estimated service lives of the capital assets. Upper
District uses differing capitalization thresholds for the classes of assets based on
materiality. Upper District's policy is to review for capitalization those expenditures
greater than $500 that have a useful life of more than one year. Estimated service lives
for Upper District's classes of assets are as follows:

Distribution system 50 years
Building 50 years
Building improvements 10 - 15 years
Furniture and equipment 2 - 10 years
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Unearned revenue

Unearned revenue is water revenue paid by customers, as well as rental revenue paid by
a lessee in the current period but is yet to be earned by Upper District.

Compensated absences

Upper District's policy is to permit employees to accumulate a limited amount of earned
vacation and sick leave. Accumulated vacation time is accrued at year-end to account for
Upper District's obligation to the employees for the amount owed. It is management's
belief that the majority of the obligation will be utilized during the course of the next fiscal
year. Vacation pay is payable to employees at the time a vacation is taken, cashed out,
or upon termination of employment. Normally, an employee cannot accrue more than
thirty days of vacation each year. Sick leave is payable when an employee is unable to
work because of illness. Upon retirement, an employee will be paid for any unused sick
leave.

Overhead absorption

Certain operating expenses are allocated to capital assets using management's
allocation of manpower and service estimates that are directly related to the construction
of capital assets.

Contributions for capital acquisitions/construction

Contributions for capital acquisitions/construction represent cash and capital asset
additions contributed to Upper District by federal, state, and local granting agencies.

Reclassifications

Upper District has reclassified certain prior year information to conform to current year
presentation, with no effect on net position.

Budgetary policies

Upper District adopts an annual non-appropriated budget for planning, control, and
evaluation purposes. Budgetary control and evaluation are affected by comparisons of
actual revenues and expenses with planned revenues and expenses for the period.
Encumbrance accounting is not used to account for commitments related to unperformed
contracts for construction and services.

Allowance for doubtful accounis
Upper District recognizes bad debt expense relating to receivables when it is probable

that the accounts will be uncollectible. As of June 30, 2022, all receivables were deemed
collectible.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 1:

NOTE 2:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Property taxes

The County bills and collects property taxes on behalf of numerous special districts and
incorporated cities, including Upper District. The Upper District's current year tax
collection is received through periodic apportionments from the County. The County’s tax
calendar is from July 1 to June 30. Property taxes attach as a lien on the property on
January 1. Taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable in two equal installments on
November 1 and February 1, and become delinquent after December 10 and April 10,
respectively.

Prepurchased water

Pre-purchased water consists of groundwater purchased from the Metropolitan Water
District and not immediately sold to client agencies. It is valued based upon purchase
cost and consumed on a first in first out basis.

CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments are presented in the accompanying financial statements as
follows:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 12,985,645
Investments 5,514,984
Total cash and investments $ 18,500,629

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2022 consist of the following:

Imprest cash on hand $ 500
Deposits with financial institutions 1,069,185
Cash with investment broker 624
Total cash 1,070,309
Local Agency Investment Fund 11,915,337
Money market mutual funds 136,368
Agency Funds 1,956,660
U.S. Treasury Funds 3,043,275
U.S. Corporate Funds 378,680
Total investments 17,430,320
Total cash and investments $ 18,500,629

“’Upper District is a voluntary participant in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), a special fund regulated by the
California State Treasury through which each city, district or agency may invest up to $75 million. As of June 30, 2022, the total
fair value of LAIF, including accrued interest was approximately $231 billion, Upper District's proportionate share of that value is
$11.9 million as of June 30, 2022. Investments in LAIF are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash within 24 hours
without loss of interest. LAIF has a minimum $5,000 transaction amount in increments of $1,000 with a maximum of 15
transactions (combination of deposits and withdrawals) per month. LAIF requires a one-day prior notice for deposits and
withdrawals of $10 million or more. As regards to credit rating, LAIF is unrated as of June 30, 2022,
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 2: CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Investment policy
The Upper District's investment policy outlines the guidelines required to be used in
effectively managing Upper District's available cash in accordance with the California
Government Code. To address interest rate risk, the Upper District's existing policy limits
the maturity of investments to five years, with the exception of special trust funds which
shall not be subject to this limitation. To mitigate credit risks associated with its
investments, the Upper District's investment policy limits investments to large institutions
and requires diversification to ensure that failure of one issuer will not significantly affect
the Upper District's cash flow.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair
value of an investment. Upper District's investments in LAIF have a weighted average
maturity of 291 days, generally consistent with its cash flow and liquidity needs.
Investments in LAIF are highly liquid, as deposits can be converted to cash within 24
hours without loss of interest.
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the Upper District's investments to
market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the
distribution of the Upper District's investments by maturity.
Maturities of investments at June 30, 2022, were as follows:
Remaining maturing (in months)
12 Months 13 to 36 37 to 60 More than
Investment Type (including LAIF) Total or Less Months Months 60 Months
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 11915337 § 11915337 § B $ - $
Money market mutual funds 136,368 136,368 - - -
Agency funds 1,956,660 1,020,617 936,043 - -
U.S. Treasury funds 3,043,275 499,589 2,543,686 - -
U.S. Corporate funds 378,680 19,620 359,060 - -
Total $ 17430320 $ 13,591,531 $ 3,838,789 § - $ -

Concentration of credit risk

A concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributable to the magnitude of the Upper
District’s investment in a single issuer. The Upper District’'s investment policy contains no
limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one issuer beyond that stipulated
by the California Government Code. As of June 30, 2022, there were no investments in
any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, agency funds, corporate funds, and
external investment pools) that represent 5% or more of total Upper District investments.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 2:

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Custodial credit risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that the Upper District will not be able to (a) recover
deposits if the depositor financial institution fails, or (b) recover the value of investments
or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party if the counterparty to
the investment or deposit transaction fails.

Deposits

The California Government Code requires California banks and savings and loan
associations to secure a local governmental agency's (agency) deposits by pledging
government securities as collateral. The market value of pledged securities must equal at
least 110% of an agency’s deposits. California law also allows financial institutions to
secure an agency's deposits by pledging first trust deed mortgage notes having a value
of 150% of an agency's total deposits. The agency may waive collateral requirements for
deposits, which are fully insured up to $250,000 by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (FDIC).

Deposits are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are uninsured and are either:

a. Uncollateralized;
b. Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution, or by
its trust department or agent but not in the depositor-government's name.

At June 30, 2022, Upper District's deposits (bank balances) exceeded the maximum
deposit insurance amount by $962,135, which is collateralized as described above.

Investments

The California Government Code authorizes Upper District to invest in obligations of the
United States Treasury, agencies, and instrumentalities; prime commercial paper;
bankers’ acceptances; repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements; financial futures
or financial option contracts; negotiable certificates of deposit; obligations of the State of
California; and, obligations of local agencies within California.

Investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are uninsured, unregistered and
held by either:

a. Counterparty;

b. The counterparty’s trust department or agent but not in the government's
name.

-20-



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 2:

NOTE 3:

CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Upper District's investment policy limits eligible investments to large
institutions. As of June 30, 2022, Upper District had the majority of its investments in
LAIF.

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation
to the holder of the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization. Presented below is the actual rating
as of year-end for each investment type.

Credit ratings of investments as of June 30, 2022, were as follows:

Minimum Standard &

legal Poor's Rating
Investment Type (including LAIF) Total rating  _as of year end
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 11,915,337 N/A Unrated
Investments:
Money market mutual funds 136,368 A AAA
Agency funds 1,956,660 N/A AA+
U.S. Corporate funds 378,680 N/A A+
Subtotal 14,387,045
U.S. Treasury funds 3,043,275
Total $ 17,430,320

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Generally accepted accounting principles establish a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes
the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Upper District categorizes
its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to
measure the fair value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; while Level 3
inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

e lLevel 1 inputs are quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active
markets that government can access at the measurement date.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 3: FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

¢ Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active
markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
market; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or
liability; inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable
market data by correlation or other means. If the asset or liability has a
specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.

The following table represent the Upper District's fair value hierarchy for its financial
assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair value measurement using

Investment by fair value level Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Agency funds $ 1956660 § 2 $ 1956660 $ z
U.S. Treasury funds 3,043,275 - 3,043,275 -
U.S. Corporate funds 378,680 - 378,680 -

5378615 § - $ 5378615 § -

Investments not subject to fair
value measurements:

LAIF 11,915,337
Money market mutual funds 136,368
Total investments $ 17,430,320

Upper District's investments in LAIF as of June 30, 2022 are reported at the Upper
District's pro-rata share of the amortized cost provided by LAIF for the entire portfolio.

The remainder of this page left intentionally blank.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 4: CAPITAL ASSETS

Changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Beginning Ending
balance Increases Decreases balance
Capital assets,
not being depreciated
Intangible utility plant $ 656,874 $ - $ - $ 656,874
Construction in progress 8,865,597 2,232,733 - 11,098,330
Total capital assets, not
being depreciated 9,522,471 2,232,733 - 11,755,204
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 3,548,056 - - 3,548,056
Water recycling 52,105,171 - - 52,105,171
Furniture and equipment 440,979 - - 440,979
Other 116,490 - - 116,490
Total capital assets,
being depreciated 56,210,696 - - 56,210,696
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Water recycling (10,577,586) (1,072,636) - (11,650,222)
Furniture and equipment (387,707) (21,283) - (408,990)
Other (100,079) (7,612) - (107,691)
Total accumulated depreciation (11,065,372) (1,101,531) - (12,166,903)
Total capital assets being
depreciated, net 45,145,324 (1,101,531) - 44,043,793
Total capital assets, net $ 54,667,795 $ 1,131,202 $ - $ 55,798,997

Major capital asset additions during the year include work on
construction projects. A significant portion of these additions were
Upper District and/or subcontractors.

NOTE 5: COMPENSATED ABSENCES

various stages of
constructed by the

Changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Balance at beginning of year $ 91,428
Earned by employees 72,929
Taken by/paid to employees (84,301)
Balance at end of year 80,056
Less current portion 40,812
Long-term portion 3 39,244
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 6:

AGREEMENTS WITH STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
Project finance agreements (direct borrowing)

In December 2009, Upper District entered into four (4) project finance agreements with
the California State Water Resources Control Board (CSWRCB) for a total amount of
$17.02 million for the purpose of financing the planning, design, acquisition, construction,
and installation of the Water Recycling Pipeline and Pump Station Project Phase IIB.
Principal payments range from $75,541 to $527,409 varying by loan. These project funds
shall be repaid in annual installments commencing on the date that is one year after
completion of construction and payable up to 21 years at zero interest rate. In addition,
the Upper District has pledged all net revenues for repayment of the debt. As of June 30,
2022, Upper District has drawn down a total of $13,171,937 under this agreement.
Construction activities funded by the CSWRCB loans were completed as of June 30,
2013.

Balance at the beginning of year 3 7,961,230
Principal payments (647,528)
Balance at end of year 7,313,702
Less short-term portion (659,217)
Long-term portion $ 6,654,485

Amounts due under the agreements, which include imputed interest, are as follows:

Fiscal year ending June 30, Amount
2023 $ 791,232
2024 791,232
2025 791,232
2026 791,232
2027 791,232
2028-2033 4,118,486
Total $ 8,074,646

Upper District repaid $791,232 during the year ended June 30, 2022, of which $647,528
is related to principal payments and $143,704 is related to imputed interest.

In the event of a termination, Upper District has agreed, upon demand, to immediately
repay to the State Water Board an amount equal to installment payments due hereunder,
including accrued interest, and all penalty assessments due. In the event of termination,
interest shall accrue on all amounts due at the highest legal rate of interest from the date
that notice of termination is mailed to the Upper District to the date of full repayment by
the Upper District.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
General information about the Pension Plan
Plan description

All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the
Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan (Plan)
administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS.) The
Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool (police and
fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other). Plan assets may be used to pay benefits
for any employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate plans
within the safety or miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement
No. 68. Individual employers may sponsor more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous
or safety risk pools. The District sponsors a cost sharing multiple employer defined
benefit pension plan. Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute
and District resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full
description of the pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and
membership information that can be found on the CalPERS' website, at
www.calpers.ca.gov.

Benefits provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and, death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefits are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full
time employment. Members with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50
with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-duty disability benefits
after 5 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The
cost-of-living adjustments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.

The Plan operates under the provisions of the California Public Employees’ Retirement
Law (PERL), the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (PEPRA),
and the regulations, procedures, and policies adopted by the CalPERS Board of
Administration. The Plan’s authority to establish and amend the benefit terms are set by
the PERL and PEPRA, and may be amended by the California state legislature and in
some cases require approval by the CalPERS Board.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Benefits provided (continued)

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2022 are summarized as follows:

Prior to On or after
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2.7% @ 55 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50- 55 52 -67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensations 2.0%t0 2.7% 1.0% to 2.5%
Required employee contribution rates (reporting period) 8.00% 7.50%
Required employer contribution rates (reporting period) 15.87% 8.09%

Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law (PERL) requires
that the employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual
basis by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in
the rate. The total plan contributions are determined through CalPERS' annual actuarial
valuation process. For public agency cost-sharing plans covered by either the
Miscellaneous or Safety risk pools, the Plan’s actuarially determined rate is based on the
estimated amount necessary to pay the Plan’s allocated share of the risk pool's costs of
benefits earned by employees during the year, and any unfunded accrued liability. The
employer is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate
and the contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan
contracts are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution
requirements that are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution
requirements are classified as plan member contributions. Employer Contributions to the
Plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 were $1,322 497. The actual employer
payments of $332,348 made to CalPERS by the District during the measurement period
ended June 30, 2021 differed from the District's proportionate share of the employer’'s
contributions of $387,750 by $55,402, which is being amortized over the expected
average remaining service lifetime in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple Employer
Plan.

Net Pension Liability

The District’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the total pension liability,
less the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The net pension liability of the Plan is
measured as of June 30, 2021, using an annual actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020
rolled forward to June 30, 2021 using standard update procedures. A summary of
principal assumptions and methods used to determine the net pension liability is as
follows.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to determine Total Pension Liability

Valuation Date June 30, 2020
Measurement Date June 30, 2021
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal in accordance with the
requirements of GASB
Asset Valuation Method: Market Value of Assets
Discount Rate 7.15%
Inflation 2.50%
Salary Increase Varies by Entry Age and Service
Mortality Rate Table ° Derived using CalPERS' membership data for all
funds
Post Retirement Benefit Increase The lessor of contract COLA or 2.50% until

purchasing power protection allowance floor on
purchasing power applies, 2.50% thereafter

! The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS' specific data. The probabilities of mortality are
based on the 2017 CalPERS Experience Study for the period from 1997 to 2015. Pre-retirement and Post-
retirement mortality rates include 15 years of projected mortality improvement using 90% of Scale MP-2016
published by the Society of Actuaries. For more details on this table, please refer to the CalPERS Experience
Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions report from December 2017 that can be found on the CalPERS
website.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period from 1997 to 2015, including
updates to salary increase, mortality and retirement rates. The Experience Study report
can be obtained at CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov.

Long-term expected rate of return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension
fund cash flows. Using historical returns of all the funds’ asset classes, expected
compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and
the long-term (11+ years) using a building-block approach. Using the expected nominal
returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was calculated
for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the rounded single
equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash
flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected
rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent rate calculated above and
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses.
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Notes to Financial Statements
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Long-term expected rate of return (continued)

The expected real rates of return by asset class are as follows:

Assumed
Asset Real Return Real Return
Asset Class' Allocation Years 1 - 10° Year 11+°
Public equity 50.0% 4.80% 5.98%
Fixed income 28.0% 1.00% 2.62%
Inflation assets 0.0% 0.77% 1.81%
Private Equity 8.0% 6.30% 7.23%
Real assets 13.0% 3.75% 4.93%
Liquidity 1.0% 0.00% (0.92%)
Total 100.0%

! In the System's ACFR, Fixed Income is included in Global Debt Securities; Liquidity is included in Short-
Term Investments; Inflation Assets are included in both Global Equity Securities and Global Debt

Securities.
2 An expected inflation of 2.0% used for this period
% An expected inflation of 2.92% used for this period

Change of assumptions

There was no change of assumptions for measurement date June 30, 2021.

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for PERF C was 7.15%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions
from plan members will be made at the current member contribution rates and that
contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required rates, actuarially
determined. Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected
to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.
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NOTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Subsequent events

On July 12, 2021, CalPERS reported a preliminary 21.3% net return on investments for
fiscal year 2020-21. Based on the thresholds specified in CalPERS Funding Risk
Mitigation policy, the excess return of 14.3% prescribes a reduction in investment
volatility that corresponds to a reduction in the discount rate used for funding purposes of
0.20%, from 7.00% to 6.80%. Since CalPERS was in the final stages of the four-year
Asset Liability Management (ALM) cycle, the board elected to defer any changes to the
asset allocation until the ALM process concluded, and the board could make its final
decision on the asset allocation in November 2021.

On November 17, 2021, the board adopted a new strategic asset allocation. The new
asset allocation along with the new capital market assumptions, economic assumptions
and administrative expense assumption support a discount rate of 6.90% (net of
investment expense but without a reduction for administrative expense) for financial
reporting purposes. This includes a reduction in the price inflation assumption from
2.50% to 2.30% as recommended in the November 2021 CalPERS Experience Study
and Review of Actuarial Assumptions. This study also recommended modifications to
retirement rates, termination rates, mortality rates and rates of salary increases that were
adopted by the board. These new assumptions will be reflected in the GASB 68
accounting valuation reports for the June 30, 2022, measurement date.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Information about the pension plan’s assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities,
deferred inflows of resources, and fiduciary net position are presented in CalPERS’
audited financial statements, which are publicly available reports that can be obtained at
CalPERS’ website, at www.calpers.ca.gov. The plan's fiduciary net position and
additions to/deductions from the plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on
the same basis used by the pension plan, which is the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Benefits and refunds are
recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. Investments
are reported at fair value.

The plan fiduciary net position disclosed in the GASB 68 accounting valuation report may
differ from the plan assets reported in the funding actuarial valuation report due to
several reasons. First, for the accounting valuations, CalPERS must keep items such as
deficiency reserves, fiduciary self-insurance and Other Post-Employment Benefits
(OPEB) expense included as assets. These amounts are excluded for rate setting
purposes in the funding actuarial valuation. In addition, differences may result from early
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report closing and final reconciled reserves.
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NOTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Proportionate share of Net Pension Liability

The following table shows the Plan’s proportionate share of the net pension liability over
the measurement period.

Increase (Decrease)
Plan Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary Net Plan Net Pension

Liability Paosition Liability
(a) (b) (¢)=(a)-(b)
Balance at: 6/30/2020 (VD) $ 10,663,559 $ 7,911,341 $ 2,752,218
Balance at: 6/30/2021 (MD) 11,441,708 9,858,502 1,583,206
Net change during 2020-21 778,149 1,947,161 (1,169,012)

Valuation Date (VD), Measurement Date (MD)

The District's proportion of the net pension liability was determined by CalPERS using
the output from the Actuarial Valuation System and the fiduciary net position, as provided
in the CalPERS Public Agency Cost-Sharing Allocation Methodology Report, which is a
publicly available report that can be obtained at CalPERS website, at
www.calpers.ca.gov.

The District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan (miscellaneous)
as of the June 30, 2020 and 2021 measurement dates was as follows:

Proportion share of NPL - MD June 30, 2020 0.06525%
Proportion share of NPL - MD June 30, 2021 0.08338%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.01813%

Sensitivity of the proportionate share of the Net Pension Liability to changes in the
discount rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability of the
Plan as of the measurement date, calculated using the discount rate of 7.15%, as well as
what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is
1 percentage-point lower (6.15%) or 1 percentage-point higher (8.15%) than the current
rate:

Discount Rate - 1% Current Discount Rate Discount Rate + 1%
(6.15%) (7.15%) (8.15%)

Miscellaneous Plan's
Net Pension Liability $ 3,093,866 $ 1,583,206 $ 334,366
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NOTE 7:

DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)
Amortization of deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources

Under GASB 68, gains and losses related to changes in total pension liability and
fiduciary net position are recognized in pension expense systematically over time.

The first amortized amounts are recognized in pension expense for the year the gain or
loss occurs. The remaining amounts are categorized as deferred outflows and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions and are to be recognized in future pension
expense.

The amortization period differs depending on the source of the gain or loss:

Net difference between 5 year straight-line amortization
projected and actual earnings
on pension plan investments

All other amounts Straight-line amortization over the average expected
remaining services lives (EARSL) of all members that are
provided with benefits (active, inactive and retired) as of
the beginning of the measurement period

The expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) is calculated by dividing the
total future service years by the total number of plan participants (active, inactive, and
retired) in the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (PERF C).

The EARSL for PERF C for the measurement period ending June 30, 2021 is 3.7 years,
which was obtained by dividing the total service years of 561,622 (the sum of remaining
service lifetimes of the active employees) by 150,648 (the total number of participants:
active, inactive, and retired). Note that inactive employees and retirees have remaining
service lifetimes equal to 0. Also note that total future service is based on the members’
probability of decrementing due to an event other than receiving a cash refund.

Pension expense and deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related
fo pensions

As of the state of the measurement period (July 1, 2020), the District's net pension

liability was $2,752,218. For the measurement period ending June 30, 2021 (the
measurement date), the District incurred a pension expense of $613,349.
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NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (CONTINUED)

As of June 30, 2022, the District has deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions as follows:

Deferred outflows Deferred inflows
of resources of resources

Difference between expected and actual

experience $ 177,540 $ -
Changes in assumptions - -
Difference between projected and actual :

investment earnings - 1,382,055

Difference between employer's contribution and

proportionate share of contributions - 66,815
Change in employer's proportion 52,997 -
Pension contributions made subsequent to

measurement date 1,322,497 -

Totals $ 1,553,034 $ 1,448,870

These amounts above are net of outflows and inflows recognized in the 2020-21
measurement period expense. Contributions subsequent to the measurement date of
$1,322,497 reported with deferred outflows of resources will be recognized as a
reduction of the net pension liability in the upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in future pension expense as follows:

Deferred
Fiscal year ended outflows/(inflows) of
June 30, resources, net
2023 $ (248,728)
2024 (274,189)
2025 (313,487)
2026 (381,929)
2027 -
Thereafter -

Payable to the pension plan

At June 30, 2022, the District reported a payable of $-0- for the outstanding amount of
contributions to the pension plan required for the year then ended.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Notes to Financial Statements
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022

NOTE 8:

NOTE 9:

DEFERRED COMPENSATION AGREEMENT

Upper District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan (DC Plan) created in
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The DC Plan, available to all of the
Upper District employees, permits them to defer a portion of their salary until future
years. The deferred compensation is not available to employees until termination,
retirement, death or an unforeseeable emergency.

All amounts of compensation deferred under the DC Plan are held in trust, not controlled
by the District and are not subject to the creditors of the Upper District. Accordingly, the
assets and liabilities of the DC Plan are not reflected on these financial statements in
accordance with GASBS 84.

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)
General information about the OPEB Plan
Plan description

Upper District has an agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan administered by
CalPERS through an irrevocable trust, the California Employer's Retiree Benefit Trust
(CERBT). The CalPERS Board of Administration has sole and exclusive control and
power over the administration and investment of the CERBT. The plan itself does not
issue a separate set of financial statements. The CERBT plan does issue a separate set
of financial statements that can be obtained from the CalPERS website.

Upper District's postemployment healthcare benefits provided to certain qualified
employees, directors and their dependents based on resolutions by the Board of
Directors are as follows:

e A Health & Accident and Major Medical Payments Insurance Policy, as
selected and approved by the Board.

e A maximum of $2,500 per calendar year for retirees and their dependents for
medical costs not covered by the insurance policy above.

e A maximum of $2,500 per calendar year for costs of dental, vision and/or
hearing.

These benefits are provided to each retired employee who has served the Upper District
for more than ten years before terminating employment at age 55 years or older and
each retired director who served in office after January 1, 1981, was elected to the board
prior to January 1, 1995, has served not less than twelve years or three full terms of
office and has attained the age of 50 years.
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NOTE 9:

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Employees covered by benefit terms

At June 30, 2021 (valuation date), the following employees were covered by the benefit
terms of the Plan:

Category Count
Active employees 11
Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 6
Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiving benefit payments

Total 17

Contributions and funding policy

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Upper District are established
and may be amended by the Board of Directors. In March 2014, the Board of Directors
authorized the execution of the prefunding agreement with the CERBT and fully funding
the annual required contributions (contractually determined) for OPEB.

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, Upper District contributed $209,650 to the Plan.
At June 30, 2021, the Trust account balance was $2,405,067. The Trust assets are
dedicated to providing benefits to retirees and are legally protected from the creditors of
the Upper District and the plan members. The Trust assets are not reported in the Upper
District’s financial statements.

Net OPEB Liability

Upper District's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of June 30, 2021.

Actuarial assumptions

This valuation assumes that the Upper District will fund the Plan on an ad hoc basis, in
an amount sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed 30 years.
The Normal Cost is the portion of the Actuarial Present Value of benefits allocated to a
valuation year. The UAAL is the excess of the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Accrued
Liability over the Market Value of Assets.
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NOTE ¢:

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

The total OPEB liability for the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation was determined using
the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement,
unless otherwise specified:

Actuarial Assumptions:
Actuarial cost method
Asset valuation method
Inflation
Salary Increases
Investment Rate of Return

Entry age actuarial cost method

Market vaue of assets

2.50%

2.75% per year

6.75% per year of net expenses; based on assumed
long-term return on plan assets assuming 100%
funding through CERBT using the Building Block
Method

4% per year

Based on 2017 CalPERS mortality for miscellaneous
and schools employees

Healthcare cost trend rates
Mortality rates

The valuation used historic 30-year real rates of return for each class along with the
assumed long-term inflation assumption to set the discount rate. It offsets the expected
investment return by investment expenses of 25 basis points. Following is the assumed
asset allocation and assumed rate of return for each asset class:

Percentage of Assumed Growth

Asset Class Portfolio Return

All Equities 59% 7.5450%
All Fixed income 25% 4.2500%
Real estate investment trusts 8% 7.2500%
All Commaodities 3% 7.5450%
Treasury Inflation Protected Securities (TIPS) 5% 3.0000%
Total 100%

Discount rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.75%. This assumes that
contributions would be sufficient to fully fund the obligation over a period not to exceed
30 years. The rate is based on the real rate of return expected for plan assets plans
plus long-term inflation assumption.

Change in assumptions

The discount rate was decreased from 7.0% to 6.75% per year of net expenses,
based on assumed long-term return on plan assets assuming 100% funding
through CERBT using the Building Block Method.

The rate of inflation was decreased from 2.75% to 2.50%.
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NOTE 9:

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)

Change in the Net OPEB Liability

Increases (Decreases)

Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Total OPEB Net Position Liability/(Asset)
Liability (a) (b) (c) =(a) - (b)
Balance at June 30, 2021
(Measurement Date June 30, 2020) $ 2,597,454 $ 1,100,993 $ 1,496,461
Changes for the year:
Service cost 79,516 - 79,516
Interest on the total OPEB liability 184,605 304,496 (119,891)
Contributions - employer - 1,078,249 (1,078,249)
Benefit Payments (78,249) (78,249) -
Administrative Expenses - (422) 422
Experience (Gains)/Losses (260,667) - (260,667)
Changes in Assumptions 85,749 - 85,749
Net Changes 10,954 1,304,074 (1,293,120)
Balance at June 30, 2022
(Measurement Date June 30, 2021) $ 2,608,408 $ 2,405,067 $ 203,341

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate

The net OPEB liability of the Upper District, as well as what the net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower (5.75%)
or one percentage point higher (7.75%) follows:

Discount rate Valuation Discount rate
1% Lower Discount Rate 1% Higher
Net OPEB Liability §$ 525,417 $ 203,341 3 (64,889)

Trend 1% Lower

Valuation Trend

Trend 1% Higher

Net OPEB Liability $ (106,371)

$ 203,341

$

582,278
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NOTE 9: OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB) (CONTINUED)
OPEB expense and deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2022, Upper District recognized OPEB expense of $61,183
with details as follows:

Total

Service cost $ 79,516
Interest cost 184,605
Expected return in assets (112,055)
Administration expense 422
Recognition of experience (gain)/loss deferrals (72,177)
Recognition of assumption change deferrals 10,332
Recognition of investment (gain)/loss deferrals (29,460)
Employee contributions -
Change in benefit terms -
Total OPEB Expense $ 61,183

At June 30, 2022, Upper District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
outflows inflows
of resources of resources
OPEB contributions subsequent to
measurement date $ 209,650 $ -
Changes in assumptions 75,417
Experience gains/losses - 448 845
Investment gains/losses - 128,164
Total $ 285,067 $ 577,009

The $209,650 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB
liability in the upcoming fiscal year. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized as follows:

Deferred
Fiscal year ended outflows/(inflows) of

June 30: resources

2023 $ (91,305)

2024 (90,979)

2025 (92,930)

2026 (100,330)

2027 (61,845)

Thereafter (64,203)
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NOTE 10: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Short-term lease

Upper District has entered into a non-cancellable lease for its office space in Monrovia,
California, Amounts due under the lease are as follows:

Fiscal year ended

June 30 Amount
2022 $ 249,012
Total $ 249,012

On July 25, 2018, the lease was amended providing the Upper District an ongoing right to
terminate the lease on or after August 1, 2018 with twelve (12) months prior written notice
to the lessor. The Upper District incurred rental expense of $249,012 for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Grant awards

Upper District has received funds for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit
by the grantors. Although such audits could generate expenditure disallowances under
terms of the grants or contracts, management believes that any required reimbursements
will not be material.

Litigation

Legal claims and lawsuits arise from time to time in the normal course of business,
which, in the opinion of management, will have no material effect on the Upper District’s
financial position.

Construction activities

Upper District has a variety of agreements with private contractors relating to the

construction of water recycling projects. Upper District has no commitments from open
construction contracts as of June 30, 2022.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and Related

Ratios as of the Measurement Date

Last 10 Years’

Employer's
Employer's proportionate
proportion of the share of the
collective net collective net
pension liability pension
Measurement date (asset) liability * Covered payroll
June 30, 2014 0.020400% $ 1,269,653 $ 1,087,130
June 30, 2015 0.022304% 1,528,941 1,188,341
June 30, 20186 0.023155% 2,003 628 1,191,276
June 30, 2017 0.023753% 2,355,668 943,618
June 30, 2018 0.024108% 2,323,080 1,127,628
June 30, 2019 0.024778% 2,539,000 1,310,022
June 30, 2020 0.025300% 2,752,218 1,423,225
June 30, 2021 0.029270% 1,583,206 1,361,709

Employer's
proportionate Pension plan's
share of the fiduciary net
collective net position as a
pension liability percentage of
as a percentage of the total
the employer's pension
covered payroll liability
116.78% 83.23%
128.66% 79.89%
168.19% 75.87%
249.64% 75.44%
206.02% 75.50%
193.81% 74.39%
193.38% 74.39%
116.27% B6.16%

" Proportion of the collective net pension liability represents the plan's proportion of PERF C, which includes both the Miscellaneous and Safety
Risk Pools excluding the 1959 Survivors Risk Pool.

* Measurement date 8/30/2014 (fiscal year 2015) was the first year of implementation. Additional years will be presented as information
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Schedule of Pension Plan Contributions

Last 10 Years’
Contributions in
relation to the

Actuarially actuarially Contribution Contributions as
determined determined deficiency a Percentage of
Fiscal year contribution contribution (excess) Covered payroll Covered Payroll
June 30, 2015 $ 204,555 $ (708,613) $ (504,058) $ 1,188,341 59.63%
June 30, 2016 228,626 (228,626) - 1,191,276 19.19%
June 30, 2017 203,040 (203,040) - 943,618 21.52%
June 30, 2018 217,448 (217 ,448) - 1,127,628 19.28%
June 30, 2019 270,063 (270,063) - 1,310,122 20.61%
June 30, 2020 313,575 (313,575) - 1,423,225 22.03%
June 30, 2021 332,348 (332,348) - 1,361,708 24.41%
June 30, 2022 1,322,497 (1,322,497) - 1,179,439 112.13%

Notes to Schedule:

Change in benefit terms : None

Changes in assumptions : There were no assumption changes for 2021. For 2020, the Plan adopted a new amortization policy effective
with the 2019 actuarial valuation. The new amortization policy shortens the period over which actuarial gains and losses are amortized
from 30 years to 20 years with the payments computed as a level dollar amount. In addition, the new policy does not utilize a five-year
ramp-up and ramp-down on UAL bases attributable to assumption changes and non-investment gains/losses. The new policy also does
not utilize a five-year ramp-down on investment gains/losses. These changes apply only to new UAL bases established on or after June
30, 2019. There were no changes in assumptions in 2019. In 2018, demographic assumptions and inflation rate were changed in
accordance to the CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial Assumptions December 2017. There were no changes in the
discount rate in 2019. In 2017, the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.65 percent fo 7.15 percent. In 2016, there were no
changes in the discount rate. In 2015, amounts reported reflect an adjustment of the discount rate from 7.5 percent (net of administrative
expense) to 7.65 percent (without a reduction for pension plan administrative expense). In 2014, amounts reported were based on the
7.5 percent discount rate.

* Measurement date 6/30/2014 (fiscal year 2015) was the first year of implementation. Additional years will be presented as information
becomes available.



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

-
Last 10 Years
Measurement date 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost 5 52,554 $ 53,999 s 55,484 $ 77,388 § 795186
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 171,159 177,712 183,972 171,028 184,605
Actual and expected experience difference - - - - -
Experience gains/losses - - (307,813) (222,423)
Changes in assumptions - - - - 85,749
Expecled less actual benfit payments - s s 4,851 (38,244)
Benefit payments (120,998) (142,089) (143 958) {115,900) (78,249)
Net change In Total OPEB Liability 102,715 80,612 {212,316) 137,367 10,954
Total OPEB Liability - beginning 2,480,076 2,582,791 2,672,403 2,460,087 2,597 454
Total OPEB Liability - ending (a) 2,582,791 2,672,403 2,460,087 2,?9_7,454 2,608,408
Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Contribution - employer 433,842 261,275 247,902 226,843 1,078,249
Met investment income 43,890 46,053 58,540 33,812 304,496
Investment gains and losses - 1,650 (9,7686) - -
Benefit payments (120,998) (142,099) (104,446) {115,900) (78,249)
Administrative expense (232) (1,112) (164) (468) (422)
Net change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 356,502 165,767 192,066 144,287 1,304,074
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - beginning 242,371 598,873 764,640 956,706 1,100,993
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - ending (b} 598,873 764,640 956,706 1,100,9@3—' 2,405,067
Net OPEB Liability - ending (a) - (b) $ 1983918 § 1907763 § 1503381 § 1496461 $ 203,341
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage

of the total OPEB liability 23.19% 28.61% 38.89% 42.39% 92.20%
Covered-employee payroll’ $ 1107374 § 1294561 § 1366231 § 1449800  § 1,077,504
Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered-employee payroll' 179.16% 147.37% 110.04% 103.23% 18.87%

1
Contributions to the OPER plan are not based on a measure of pay,

Notes to schedule:
The following assumptions were changed from the 2019 valuation to the 2021 valuation:

Inflation: Decreased from 2.75% to 2.50%

Investment rate of retum: Decreased from 7.0% to 6.75% per year of net expenses; based on assumed long-term return on plan assets
assuming 100% funding through CERBT using the Building Block Method

* Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which it is applicable. Future years' information will be displayed up to 10
years as information becomes available.
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Schedule of OPEB Plan Contributions

Last 10 Years*
Contributions in
relation to the Contributions as
Contractually contractually Contribution Covered- a percentage of
determined determined deficiency employee employee

_ Fiscal year contribution contribution (excess) { payroll’ covered payroll
June 30, 2018 $ 120,856 $ (240,032) $ (119,178) $ 1,294,561 18.54%
June 30, 2019 104,446 (247,902) (143,456) 1,366,231 18.14%
June 30, 2020 226,843 (226,843) - 1,449,600 15.65%
June 30, 2021 230,663 (1,078,249) (847,588) 1,077,504 100.07%
June 30, 2022 107,828 (209,650) (101,822) 1,465,990 14.30%

1 Contributions to the OPEE plan are not based on a measura of pay,
Notes to schedule:

Actuarial methods and assumptions used to set actuarially determined contributions for fiscal year 2019 were from the June 30, 2019 actuarial
valuation.

Methods and assumptions used to determine contributions:

Actuarial cost method Entry age actuarial cost method

Amortization methodology Straight-line recognition over the expected average remaining service lifetime (EARSL) of all members that are
provided with benefits as of the beginning of the Measurement Period. In determining the EARSL, all active,
retired, and inactive (vested) members are counted, with the latter two groups having 0 remaining service years

Asset valuation method Market value of assets

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll growth 2.75% per year, since benefits are not related to pay, this is used only to allocate the cost of benefits between
service years

Investment rate of retum 6.75% per year of net experience; based on assumed long-term return on plan assets assuming 100% funding
through CERBT using the Building Block Method

Healthcare trend 4.0% per year

Retirement age 2009 CalPERS 2.0% @ 60 rates for Miscellaneous Employees, 2009 CalPERS 2.7% @ 55 rates for
Miscellaneous Employees

Mortality 2017 CalPERS Mortality for Miscellaneous and Schools Employees

* Historical information is required only for measurement periods for which it is applicable. Future years' information will be displayed up to 10 years
as information becomes available.

D
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Statistical Section

This part of the Upper District's annual comprehensive financial report presents detailed information
as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures,
and required supplementary information says about the Upper District's overall financial health.

Table of Contents

Page

Financial Trends

These schedules contain information to help the reader understand how

the Upper District's financial performance and financial condition have

changed over time. 44
Revenue Capacity

These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the

Upper District's most significant own-source revenue, water sales. 46
Demographic Information

This schedule offers demographic indicators to help the reader

understand the environment within which the Upper District's financial

activities take place. 52
Operating Information

This schedule contains service and infrastructure data to help the

reader understand how the information in the Upper District's financial

report relates to the service the Upper District provides. 54
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Met Position by Component
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited)
(In Thousands)

Net Investment in
June 30 Capital Assets Unrestricted Total
2013 5 39778 8 17000 % 56,778
2014 41,3489 13,667 55,016
2015 42,128 13,714 55,842
2016 43278 12,587 55,865
2017 44 008 14,237 58,246
2018 43 847 14,872 58,719
2019 43,768 17,578 61,346
2020 48,885 15,706 62,591
2021 46,707 19,831 66,538
2022 48 485 20,725 69,210

$80,000
$70,000
$60,000
$50,000

$40.000

In Thousands

$30,000
$20,000

$10,000

5_ = k d s — il
2014 2015 2016 2017

2013

2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

= Net Investment in Capital Assets = Unrestricted

Source. Finance and Administration Department



Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Operating Revenues by Major Source
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited)
(In Thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended Water Other Operating Total Operating
June 30 Water Revenue Conservation Revenues Revenues
2013 5 12395 § 195 § 247 ] 12,837
2014 26,259 245 187 2669
2015 3ar.o21 545 B2 37,928
2016 19,670 996 134 20,800
2017 37 646 430 78 38,154
2018 21,880 713 77 22,670
2019 37,459 837 88 38384
2020 32,810 arz 208 33,388
2021 55,708 ch 115 55,854
2022 47,256 507 1,077 48,840
$60,000

350,000

$40,000

330,000

In Thousands

$20,000

$10.000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

=\Vater Revenue  ®Water Conservation W Other Operating Revenues

Source. Finance and Administration Department
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Operating Expenses by Activity
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited)
(In Thousands)
Fiscal Year Depreciation Total
Ended Sources of  Water Quality Water and General and Operating
June 30 Supply and Supply Recycling _Conservation Amortization Administrative  Expenses
2013 s 10.524 S 1814 5 1.080 $§ 776 & 496 5§ 25648 5§ 17338
2014 22 657 2439 781 1323 1.068 2,601 30,869
2015 32,366 2823 927 1,767 1,072 2,166 40921
2016 16,345 2,342 1,086 2127 1,121 1,890 24891
2017 31,502 2,441 1,650 2,020 1,100 1,044 40,657
2018 18,580 2,569 2,008 2,049 1,080 1,684 27,990
2019 31,458 2,782 883 2,335 111 2,057 40,626
2020 28321 2,962 939 1695 1,102 2,373 37,392
2021 48,111 3,217 885 1,265 1,107 2,569 57,164
2022 41,587 3,443 828 1,803 1,102 2,257 50.990
$70.000
$60,000
= $50,000
é 540,000
£ 530,000
520,000
§10.000
5

2014 2015

2013
u Sources of Supply
w Conservation

2018
uWater Quality and Supply ®Water Recycling
* Depreciation and Amortization = General and Administrative

Source: Finance and Administration Department

amy
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Imported Water Deliveries
Last Ten Fiscal Years (Unaudited)

(In Acre Feet)
Fiscal Year Ended Full Service
June 30 Treated Untreated Total
2013 3528 12,035 15,563
2014 3,490 31,289 34.779
2015 9,069 39,287 48 356
2016 2,495 22 254 24,749
2017 3197 45813 49.010
2018 4204 18,273 23477
2019 5,420 36.421 41,841
2020 6,026 28616 34,642
2021 5,145 54 BO5 60,041
2022 5,069 44 582 49 651
70,000
60,000
50,000
% 40,000
£ 30000
20,000
10,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

® Treated ®Full Service Untreated

Source: Finance and Administration Depariment
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Imported Water Rates and Charges
Fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 (Unaudited)

Rate per Acre-Foot

Upper
District
MWD Surcharge Total

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2022

July 1, 2021 to December 31, 2021

Full Service Treated Tier 1 $ 1,104 $ 103 $ 1,207
Full Service Treated Tier 2 1,146 103 1,249
Full Service Untreated Tier 1 777 103 880
Full Service Untreated Tier 2 819 103 922
January 1, 2022 to June 30, 2022

Full Service Treated Tier 1 $ 1,143 3 103 $ 1,246
Full Service Treated Tier 2 1,185 103 1,288
Full Service Untreated Tier 1 799 103 902
Full Service Untreated Tier 2 841 103 944
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2021

July 1, 2020 to December 31, 2020

Full Service Treated Tier 1 $ 1,078 $ 103 3 1,181
Full Service Treated Tier 2 1,165 103 1,268
Full Service Untreated Tier 1 755 103 858
Full Service Untreated Tier 2 842 103 945
January 1, 2021 to June 30, 2021

Full Service Treated Tier 1 $ 1,104 $ 103 $ 1,207
Full Service Treated Tier 2 1,146 103 1,249
Full Service Untreated Tier 1 777 103 880
Full Service Untreated Tier 2 819 103 922

Source: Finance and Administration Department
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Demographics and Economic Statistics — Los Angeles County
Last Ten Calendar Years (Unaudited)

Fiscal Population Real GDP Unemployment
Year (In Millions) Growth Rate
2012 10.0 2.9% 10.9%
2013 10.1 1.9% 9.8%
2014 10.1 4.1% 8.3%
2015 10.2 4.9% 6.6%
2016 10.2 2.4% 5.3%
2017 10.2 3.5% 4.8%
2018 10.2 2.9% 4.7%
2019 10.2 32% 4.6%
2020 10.1 -6.3% 12.8%
2021 9.9 (f) 6.8% (f) 9.6% (f)

Notes:
Upper District believes that trends shown by these data are indicative of conditions within its service area.

Sources: Los Angeles County Economic Development Corporation's 2022 Economic Forecast
Census Bureau Data and the Los Angeles Almanac
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Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District

Ten Largest Employers in Los Angeles County
June 30, 2021 (Unaudited)

Employer Number of Employees
County of Los Angeles 106,200
Los Angeles Unified School District 73,800
City of Los Angeles 61,600
University of California, Los Angeles 50,200
Federal Government (except defense and state) 44,700
Kaiser Permanente 40,800
State of California (non-education) 32,300
University of Southern California 22,400
Target Corp. 20,000
Northrop Grumman Corp. 18,000

Source: Los Angeles Almanac (2021)
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MEMORANDUM GRe:

LIPPER 5AN GABRIEL VALLEY

AMUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

DATE: December 7, 2022 S

TO: Board of Directors
FROM: General Manager
SUBJECT:  Upper District’s FY 22-23 Water Education Grant Program

Recommendation

Staff recommends the Board approve the funding of 24 grant applications for water conservation education programs
per Upper District’s FY 22-23 Water Education Grant Program for a total amount of $24,660.85.

Background

Notification of the open application period for Upper District’s Water Education Grant Program (WEGP) was emailed
in September 2022 to the principals of all eligible school in Upper District’s service area. The application was also
made available on Upper District’s website, social media accounts, and announced to the water producers via email,
The deadline for the first round of completed applications was November 10, 2022,

Discussion
For the fiscal year 2022-23, the Board of Directors approved a budget allocation of $20,000 for the Water Education
Grant Program. A total of 25 WEGP applications were received for a combined amount of $25,660.85 in requested
grant funds. The success of staff outreach to schools directly contributed to the significant number of applications. Staff
has reviewed and evaluated all applications considering the criteria and educational goals of the program as well as
grant application guidelines. The review criteria for the applications included consideration of the following elements:

*  Does the project offer a better understanding of water and the important role it plays?

* Does the project actively engage students in the leaming process and enhance the classroom experience?

= Are components of the project inter-disciplinary?

« Does the budget cover the activities proposed?

= Are the student activities, goals, and objectives clearly defined?

The attached table lists each application with a project summary and recommendation. A total of 24 grant applications
totaling $24,660.85 meet the criteria listed above. One grant submission was rejected for this program as it was a turf
replacement project where the institution is eligible to receive funding for the project through the MWD turf
replacement program. The author of the grant will be informed of the program and offered turf replacement as an
alternative to their grant application.

The current budget allocation for educational materials/grant programs is $45,000. The WEGP accounts for $20,000
with the remaining allocated to educational videos ($25,000). Based on these allocations and the ability of staff to create
educational videos in house, it is possible to reallocate the required $4,660.85 to fully fund all WEGP applications.
With the current drought conditions and in class education retuming to pre-pandemic schedules, it is important to
support and encourage students, parents, and educators lo participate in water efficiency awareness. Staff is
recommending that 24 grants be awarded.

i Attachment

lof1|Pag
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7.(b)
Action

RESOLUTION NO. 12-22-652

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
HONORING THE RETIREMENT OF BRIAN BOWCOCK

WHEREAS, Brian Bowcock, following 20 years of dedicated and exceptional service
to Three Valleys Municipal Water District’s Board of Directors, will retire in December 2022;
and

WHEREAS, Brian Bowcock, has been proven to be a trusted and visionary leader in
the water industry by promoting sustainable solutions through innovative technologies,
strategic initiatives and an equitable goal of creating a sustainable water future for
generations; and

WHEREAS, Brain Bowcock, has served in leadership roles regionally and statewide
for his groundwater management expertise with Six Basins Watermaster, the California Urban
Water Conservation Council, and the Southern California Water Utility Association; and

WHEREAS, Brain Bowcock, honorably served as a member of the Board of Directors
for Three Valleys Municipal Water District, earning the confidence of the voter to serve five
consecutive four-year terms to represent Division 3, areas that included all or portions of the
cities of La Verne, North Pomona, and Claremont; and

WHEREAS, Brian Bowcock, has earned the esteem and trust of his peers for his
exceptional management, professionalism, and passion for the water industry as demonstrated
throughout his career; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: The Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District (Upper District) Board
of Directors hereby honors Brian Bowcock for his visionary leadership throughout his 56

years in the water industry and legacy as a San Gabriel Valley water buffalo.

Section 2: The Upper District Board of Directors hereby congratulates Brian Bowcock
on his distinguished career in the water industry and wishes him a long and fulfilling retirement.

Page 1 of 2 (12-22-652)



PASSED, APPROVED, AND ADOPTED this 7™ day of December 2022.

AYES:
NOES:
ABSTAIN:
ABSENT:

Ed Chavez, President
ATTEST:

Katarina Garcia, Secretary

(SEAL)

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Steven P. O'Neill, District Counsel

Page 2 of 2 (12-22-652)



MEMORANDUM TN

MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIC

— -

7. (c)
ACTION
DATE: MNovember 30, 2022
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: General Manager

SUBJECT:  Amendment 1 to the Lease Agreement with the San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Board of Directors ratify Amendment | to the lease agreement with the San
Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership effective December 1, 2022 ( Attachment).

Background

Upper District entered into a lease agreement with the San Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership (SGVEP)

in February 2022, Because the District’s tenant improvement project took longer than anticipated, SGVEP

and Upper District agreed to amend the agreement effective December 1, 2022 with the following changes:
1. Amend the term of the lease to commence on December 1, 2022 and expire on

November 30,2027; and
2. Increase the monthly base rent by 5% to $2,165.63 per month.

// Attachment

lofl1|Page
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE LEASE AGREEMENT

Gabriel Valley Economic Partnership, herein “Tenant,” (Landlord and Tenant may be referred to
individually as “Party” or collectively as “Parties”) entered into a Lease Agreement effective
February 10, 2022. Due to the fact that construction of improvements of the Premises took
much longer than anticipated, effective November 30, 2022 the parties agree to amend the Lease
Agreement as follows:

Section 2 of the Lease Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
Section 2. Term.

The term of this Lease is for five (5) year(s) commencing on December 1, 2022 and
expiring on November 30, 2027 (“Initial Term”). This Lease may be extended for additional one
(1) year terms (“Renewal Term”) on the same terms and conditions set forth herein, provided
Tenant gives Landlord at least ninety (90) days written notice of its intention to extend prior to
the expiration of the then current term, and provided further that Tenant is not in default under
the Lease. If the Lease is extended, the rent may be increased, but not decreased, and shall not be
increased more than 5% per year. Either Party may provide the other Party thirty (30) days
written notice of its intention not to extend the Lease prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or
any Renewal Term, in which case the Lease shall expire at the end of the Initial Term or the
Renewal Term.

Section 3 of the Lease Agreement is deleted in its entirety and replaced with the following:
Section 3. Consideration.

(a) Base Rent for the Premises shall be on a Modified Gross Lease basis. Commencing
December 1, 2022, and for the twelve months of December 1, 2022 through November 30, 2023,
Tenant shall pay rent (“Base Rent”) in the sum of $2,165.63 per month, or $1.31 per foot, to be
paid by Tenant in advance on the first day of each month during the term of this Lease. If the
term of this Lease commences on other than the first day of the month, the first and last rental
payments shall be prorated accordingly.

(b) The Base Rent shall be increased (but not decreased) annually equal to the Base Rent
payable immediately preceding the Renewal Term increased by CPI. The term “CPI” means the
figure most recently published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor
Statistics for All Urban Consumers for the Los Angeles Area, and if no longer published, the
successor index, or if none, a reasonable substitute index. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
maximum amount that the monthly rent may be increased for any Renewal Term shall be up to a
5% cap annually and also for the one-year renewal term at the end of the lease. Keeping the
same terms for the renewal period as with the balance of the lease.

(c) The Base Rent shall be payable at Landlord’s address or at such other place as
Landlord may designate in writing, no later than the 1st of the month. If the payments required
herein are not paid within sixty (60) days after they become due, then, in addition to such sums

016266.0081035 -1-
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as are due, Landlord shall be paid interest at the rate of 1.5% per month of the unpaid balance or
portion thereof, until paid in full.

(d) In addition to the first month’s rent, a security deposit of $2,165.63 will also be due
upon execution of the lease agreement.

(e) Tenant shall pay for their own electrical services, including installation of a separate

electrical meter.
(f) Tenant shall obtain their own janitorial services for leased premises.

All other terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement shall remain unchanged and are in full
force and effect.

THE PARTIES HAVE CAUSED THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE LEASE
AGREEMENT TO BE EXECUTED AS OF THE DATE WRITTEN FIRST ABOVE.

SAN GABRIEL VALLEY ECONOMIC UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY
PARTNERSHIP MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Executed By: Executed By:

Luis Portillo, President and CEO Thomas A. Love, General Manager

016266.0081035 it PPN
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7. (d)
Action

Agreement No. A0-5287 Between Metropolitan Water District of Southern
California and Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District for the Reverse
Cyclic Program

This Agreement is effective as of the date of execution by all parties, by and between the
METROPOLITAN WATER DISTRICT OF SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA (“Metropolitan™), a
public agency of the State of California, and UPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY MUNICIPAL
WATER DISTRICT (“Upper District™), a public agency of the State of California (collectively,
the “Parties”).

Section 1. The Parties

a. Metropolitan is a voluntary cooperative providing wholesale water services to its 26
member agencies, created under The Metropolitan Water District Act (“MWD Act™).
Wat. Code appen., §§ 109-25, 109-130.

b. Upper District is a member public agency of Metropohi‘an .and a wholesale water
provider with a serwce area overlying the Main S e bnel Basm (“Basin”), a

Through this Agreement, the Parties intend to prdmde for a means of preserving State
Water Project (SWP) supplies during low SWP allocation ybm‘s through deferment of
Metropolitan deliveries of water purchas&&” by Upper Drsm& to a future wet year, pursuant to the
Reverse Cyclic Program (RCP) approved by the_Metrogohtan Board of Directors on February 8,
2022 s 2l h;?‘

Upper District purchas’e“s 'Epl] sqimce treated water from Metropolitan for storage in the
Basin through Upper District’s sewlrg.e connection USG-03. Upper District’s member agencies
produce water from the, Maln Ba;gm Metropolitan has determined that its deliveries to Upper
District for the Basm,&:onswt of Metropnlltan s SWP supplies.

In order to save 11:8 hmlted SWP supplies for potential future drought years, Metropolitan
has determined that it will nef;d to defer deliveries of SWP supplies when possible. Deferring
deliveries of SWP supplies wherever possible preserves storage that is available to the portions
of Metropolitan’s system that are more reliant on SWP deliveries. By deferring these deliveries
to years when supplies are higher, Metropolitan can avoid the additional resource and operational
costs that would be necessary to make these deliveries under current conditions.

Section 3. Purchase and Deferment of Deliveries

Upper District agrees Metropolitan may defer deliveries in accordance with this
Agreement and Upper District agrees to pay for the deliveries in accordance with this
Agreement. The amount, location, and timing of RCP purchases for deferred deliveries will be
mutually agreed upon in writing prior to the purchase of said amount by Upper District. RCP
purchases will be made upon Metropolitan’s written request and Upper District’s written
acceptance, which may be made pursuant to an email communication to avoid delay in



communications. Metropolitan will certify that the RCP purchase reduces its deliveries of SWP
supplies prior to making the written request.

All communications arranging purchases of deferred deliveries pursuant to this
Agreement must reference this Agreement. In the event of a force majeure event or a
circumstance that may result in a critical need in the Basin, Metropolitan will prioritize deliveries
to address the critical need.

Section 4. Term

This Agreement shall be effective as of the date of execution by all parties and terminate
December 31, 2022, coterminous with the term approved by the Metropolitan Board of Directors
for the RCP. Metropolitan may cancel, terminate, or interrupt this Agreement during the
effective term by providing 15 days’ written notice to Upper District. Upper District, at its sole
discretion, may cancel or terminate its participation in the RCP by providing 15 days’ written
notice to Metropolitan. Such termination or change by either Pz wty shll not mterrupt the
delivery deferments of water purchased prior to the termmatugn or ‘change. The provisions of
Section 7 and Metropolitan’s obligation to make deliveries under the A, eement shall remain
until the completion of the last delivery obligation undef‘tlus Agreement;”

Section 5. Service Rates for Purchases

In exchange for Upper District agreemg to and acc{}mmodatmg Metropohtan s written
request to defer deliveries, Metropolitan agrees tobill Upper District the full-service water rate
for 2022 and any applicable treatment charge at the tm*remf the purchase. Purchases made under
the RCP will be included in the det_‘ ] 'natlou @f Uppei‘ District’s Rcadmess-to—Serve Charge at

District’s Revised- Base Firm E‘mand fnr the par in which the RCP purchases are made. The
deliveries will not be counted towariié the determination of Upper District’s Capacity Charge at
the tlme of purchase andﬁéf“ﬁrml nox‘ at the tlme of delivery, because the deferred delivery of

.....

Section 6. Determihatlon 0f Amounts of Purchases to be Deferred

Metropolitan will determme and certify the purchase amount for deferred deliveries
necessary to reduce Metropolitan’s deliveries of SWP supplies. Metropolitan will make such
determination based on an analysis of available SWP storage and projected demands.
Metropolitan will submit a written request to Upper District once Metropolitan has certified that
the purchase amount reduces its deliveries of SWP supplies. The purchase amount for deferred
deliveries will be limited to a portion of Upper District’s normal demands and shall not exceed
Upper District’s annual purchase from Metropolitan for any year in the past five years at the
same service connections as the deferral. Upper District’s RCP purchases will be included as
allocated supply under a Metropolitan Water Allocation Plan implementation, or under any other
allocation or shortage program that may be implemented.



Section 7. Schedule of Deferred Deliveries

Metropolitan will complete the deferred deliveries of water Upper District purchased
under the RCP no later than five full calendar years from the date of purchase. When the SWP
allocation is higher than 40%, or when Metropolitan determines water is available, Metropolitan
will make deliveries to Upper District to an amount equivalent to the Metropolitan-requested
deferment and purchased by Upper District under the RCP. Metropolitan, at its discretion, shall
determine when the water shall be returned. Metropolitan will make deliveries to Upper District
if there is a critical need to replenish the basin when the groundwater storage basin reaches such
low levels that the wells are not operable. During times when Upper District is under a
Metropolitan allocation, the allocation rules shall govern the provision of water for critical need
during that time. There shall be no losses associated with Metropolitan’s delivery of purchased
water under the RCP.

Section 8. Application of the Metropolitan Administrative’ Code

All provisions of the Metropolitan Administrative Cdffé shatl. apply to deliveries made
pursuant to this Agreement, in the same manner as other Mgtropohtan dehvenes unless
specifically and expressly excluded in this Agreemen 4

Section 9. Billing Procedures

All rates and charges applicable to déliveries to Upp&r Dzst:nct outside of this Program,
wﬂl apply, unless expressly excluded under ﬁus Agreement Metropolitan will b111 Upper
time of deferment, in the same maniei as Metr&pohtan bllls Upper District for all other water
sales. Metropolitan will bill Upper Dlstﬂct the fali-service water rate for 2022 and any
apphcable treatment charge at 1:he tlme of tﬁe«pﬁrchase pursuant to Section 5 at the time




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by
their duly authorized representatives.

Approved as to Form: Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water
District
Steven O’Neill
Aleshire & Wynder, LLP
By: By:
General Counsel Thomas A. Love

General Manager

Date:

The Metropolitan Water District

Approved as to Form: 5
w,, of Southern California

Adel Hagekhalil
4+ General Manager

Marcia L. Scully
General Counsel

By: M O By:

Patty Quiliztipa Brad Coffey
Senior Deputy General Counsel Manager, Water Resource Management
Date: Date:




Appendix A
Reverse Cyclic Purchase and Return Example
The following purchase provisions apply:

a. Metropolitan will make a written-request to Upper District that will identify the service-
connection(s) and purchase amounts for delivery deferment.

b. In agreement with Metropolitan’s written request, Upper District will make a purchase in
CY 2022 for deferred delivery.

¢. The purchase amounts shall not cause Upper District to exceed its total annual purchase
from Metropolitan for any year in the past five years at the same service connections as
the deferral.

a. Historical purchase records from 2017 to 2021 a

i hown in the table below.

Treatment Meter ID 2017 2018 ‘2019 2020 2021

Type AP AP o AR  (AH AP
Untreated USG-03 16,000.0  35,155: 2 ‘5"3@64 0 54,895.1 18,163.4

The following deferred delivery prowsxons !apply:

purchase

b. Metropolitan at its solt;
Water may be returned 1f e

a. the SWP allocation iél"at least 40%

b. Metroﬁg.ohtan cletermmea;ﬂlat it has surplus supplies to return water

c. Upper District has expressed a critical need for the deferred water, for example,
the groundwat.er sforage basin has reached low levels where wells are not
operable or the basin reached emergency storage levels.

c. If Upper District expresses a critical need for the deferred water, Metropolitan will make
deliveries to Upper District. Upper District must express the critical need in writing,
identifying the service connections and total amount needed at each service connection.
The critical need shall not exceed the purchase amount nor the balance.

d. The balance will be updated following each completed deferred delivery.



Purchase and Return, Example 1:

Scenario 1:

Metropolitan makes a written request for Upper District to defer 10 TAF at service

connection USG-03. Upper District does not express a critical need at any point
during the agreement terms.

Upper District purchases 10 TAF on November 1, 2022 for deferred delivery.

Service Connection USG-03 Purchases and Deferred Deliveries

Purchase and Return, Example 2:

e

Year Year Dates SWPpP Purchase Deferred Delivery
Allocation (%) Amount (AF) Made (AF)
0 11/1/2022 <40% 10,000 0
1 11/1/2022 to 11/1/2023 <40% 0
2 11/1/2023 to 11/1/2024 > 40% 5,000
3 11/1/2024 to 11/1/2025 > 40% N 5,000
4 11/1/2025 to 11/1/2026 > 40% 0 ¥ 0
5 11/1/2026 to 11/1/2027 <40% 0 0
B Balance =0 AF

Scenario 2: Metropolitan makes a wntten rqquest for Upper District to defer 10 TAF at service
connectlon USG 03: ﬁpper District expresses a critical need in year 2023.

\.1,“\

Service Connection USG—OS Pﬂrchases and Deferred Deliveries

Yeis ViR Diiksi g:;'-- SWP Purchase Deferred Delivery
Allocation (%) Amount (AF) Made (AF)
0 11/1/2022 <40% 10,000 0
1 11/1/2022 to 11/1/2023 <40% 0 5,000
2 11/1/2023 to 11/1/2024 > 40% 0 5,000
3 11/1/2024 to 11/1/2025 > 40% 0 0
4 11/1/2025 to 11/1/2026 > 40% 0 0
5 11/1/2026 to 11/1/2027 <40% 0 0
Balance = 0 AF




Appendix B

2022 Reverse Cyclic Tracking Table

Metropolitan-Requested Purchases for Deferred Delivery and Returned Water

Purchases for Deferred Deliveries

Year Month Service Connection Total Purchase (AF) Invoiced Total

Deferred Deliveries Completed

et
ot

Year Month Service Connection _\_\__._;Tbtil‘;i)elivé'ii'ed‘:ﬁgm

. Ii;maiuing Balance (AF):




Nearly 20% of California water
agencies could see shortages if
drought persists, state report

shows

LA Times | By: Hayley Smith | 11/30/22

A 2013 aerial view of the Los Angeles Agueduct as it
flows south in its concrete-lined channel alongside Hwy
395 south of the Owens Valley town of Lone Pine.
(Brian van der Brug / Los Angeles Times)

Most of California’s urban water agencies
believe they have enough supplies to last
through another seven months of drought,
but nearly 20% of them — including many
in Southern California — say they could be
facing significant shortages, according to a
new state report.

The California Department of Water
Resources’ first annual water supply and
demand assessment surveyed the state’s
urban water agencies to see how they are
managing tight supplies through
conservation efforts and improved drought
planning. The report, which includes yearly
data through July 1, focuses on water
agencies that serve at least 3,000
connections, representing about 90% of the
population.

Of 414 reporting agencies, 82% said they do
not anticipate any shortages so long as
current conservation efforts continue,
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including voluntary reductions in water use
and local Level 2 water shortage

measures. Officials said the findings
highlight that, in many cases, water saving
efforts are making a difference.

“That’s a really important thing to get across
— that early drought planning and
conservation is working,” DWR assistant
deputy communications director Ryan
Endean told reporters this week.

But the report also shows that many
suppliers may soon face challenges.

Seventy-three agencies, or about 18% of
respondents, identified a potential shortage
which they said could be addressed through
additional conservation measures, including
the Los Angeles Department of Water and
Power, the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California and the Las Virgenes
Municipal Water District.

Three other agencies — the City of Menlo
Park, the Ventura County Waterworks
Moorpark District and the Ventura County
Waterworks Simi Valley District —
anticipated shortages that may not be fixable
through additional measures alone.

“Look how many agencies are projecting
shortfalls — significant shortfalls — next
year,” said Dan Drugan, a spokesman for
Ventura County’s supplier, the Calleguas
Municipal Water District, which reported a
potential shortage of about 40%.

Drugan noted that the area receives limited
federal supplies from the Colorado River
and was heavily affected by slashed
allocations from the state this year. He said
the agency plans to address potential



shortages through aggressive actions among
its retailers, including moving to a Level 4
response as soon as December and possibly
implementing a full outdoor watering ban
next year.

The nearby Las Virgenes Municipal Water
District, which serves Calabasas, Hidden
Hills and surrounding areas, is projecting a
63% shortage, according to the report.
Agency spokesman Mike McNutt said he
“wouldn’t be surprised” if that number had
worsened in the last several months.

“We have not improved our water
situation,” McNutt said. “It’s not for lack of
trying, but we haven’t gotten any additional
supplies that are coming in and ... there’s not
been any precipitation that’s been helping

»

us.

Las Virgenes is looking to purchase more
supplies from other agencies, he said, and is
similarly considering a full outdoor watering
ban and Level 4 response.

Other agencies are faring slightly better. In
Los Angeles, the DWP reported a potential
30% shortage, but the city’s robust response
to outdoor watering limits and other drought
rules have kept water demands on target,
according to water resources policy manager
Terrence McCarthy. The agency instituted
Level 3 response on June 1 and reported
record low usage over the summer, so
McCarthy did not anticipate additional
conservation restrictions based on current
conditions.

“If we continue that way, then we’ll be able
to meet the demands with the available
supplies we have,” he said. However, he
noted that it’s “anybody’s guess” what the

forecast holds for snow, rain and water
supply development through the winter.

“We definitely need to keep our foot on the
pedal, not only because we could be facing
another dry winter, but also because it’s all a
matter of making conservation a way of
life,” McCarthy said.

The DWP, along with Calleguas, Las
Virgenes and about two dozen other
agencies, purchase water from the region’s
massive wholesaler, the Metropolitan Water
District of Southern California, which itself
reported a potential shortage of 43%. MWD
officials could not immediately say whether
that number had improved in recent months,
but noted that its emergency conservation
order — which includes outdoor watering
restrictions for about 6 million Southern
Californians dependent on state supplies —
probably won’t be lifted until California sees
significant precipitation and the state
increases allocations.

MWD spokeswoman Rebecca Kimitch
added that deteriorating conditions on the
Colorado River mean the rest of Southern
California could also see calls for increased
conservation in the coming months.

“Given the worsening conditions on the
river, Metropolitan does not anticipate
having a full Colorado River Aqueduct in
2023 or beyond,” Kimitch said. “So, our
entire service area must take measures to
protect our limited Colorado River supplies.
The initial call for conservation will likely
be voluntary, but if the water supply outlook
does not improve, Metropolitan may
implement a water supply allocation plan for
its entire service area, requiring mandatory
conservation across the region.”



Notably, the majority of the agencies that
reported potential shortages are in two of the
state’s most populous hydrologic regions,
the San Francisco Bay Area and the South
Coast region, which includes Los Angeles,
Orange County and San Diego, the report
shows.

However, the focus on water suppliers with
at least 3,000 connections means that many
small and often rural communities were not
included — many of which rely heavily on
groundwater and are among those hit hardest
by drought. Nearly 1,400 dry wells have
been reported in the state this year.

State officials said they are continuing to
work with small suppliers through direct
assistance grants and technical support
programs, including millions of dollars in
funding from the DWR's Small Community
Drought Relief program. Such funding often
goes toward immediate and temporary
measures such as hauled water, temporary
water tanks, bottled water and emergency
inter-ties between communities, according
to Steve Doe, the program’s manager.

Small water suppliers will have to meet new
drought planning requirements under Senate
Bill 552, passed in September 2021, which

is intended to help such areas better prepare
for water shortage conditions, officials said.

Despite such steps in the right direction, the
report underscores that nearly a fifth of the
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state's agencies could face some shortages
should drought conditions persist. Forecasts
are already predicting another dry

winter and a potential fourth year of
drought.

Peter Gleick, co-founder and president
emeritus of the Pacific Institute said the
report’s findings are heavily dependent on
whether that prediction manifests.

“They re making some assumptions about
how much water supply they’ll get in
addition to the water that any agency might
have in storage, so things could be worse
than just 20% saying they need to do more
and three of them saying, ‘We really are in
trouble,” he said. “But it just depends on
how bad the drought is.”

And while the report focuses primarily on
urban residents, Gleick noted that
agricultural water users, which receive
allocations separately, are also facing
uncertainty when it comes to next year's
supply. A recent state report showed

that California’s imgated farmland shrank
by nearly 10% in 2022.

The latest findings “highlight both that water
efficiency and conservation have already
played a critical role in helping water
agencies deal with the current drought, but
also that increased conservation efforts will
be required for 20% of urban water agencies
if the current drought continues,” Gleick
said. He added that the Pacific

Institute’s research has shown that
additional improvements in water-use
efficiency are possible for every urban water
agency.



The message, he said, is that “conservation
really got us through the drought up until
today and that it’s too soon to stop
conserving.”

The 2022 report marks the first of what will
become an annual assessment each year,
state officials said. Urban water agencies are
also required to update their water shortage
contingency plans every five years.
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U.S. government pledges $250
million to help ailing Salton Sea

LA Times | By: lan James | 11/29/22

A visitor takes a selfie beside public art in Bombay Beach,
a tiny community on the Salton Sea. The federal
government is announcing $250 million in new funding to
help accelerate habitat and dust-control projects at the
Salton Sea.

(Luis Sinco / Los Angeles Times)

The Biden administration has announced a
plan to provide $250 million to accelerate
environmental projects around the shrinking
Salton Sea, a major commitment intended to
help revitalize the lake’s ecosystems and
control hazardous dust in a deal that clears
the way for California to take less water
from the drought-ravaged Colorado River.

Leaders of the Imperial Irrigation Distriet,
which uses the single largest share of the
Colorado River to supply farms in the
Imperial Valley, had called for federal
money to support the state’s Salton Sea
program as a key condition for participating
in water cutbacks. Some of the district’s
leaders praised the funding commitment
from the Interior Department and the Bureau
of Reclamation, calling it a historic step
toward addressing the windblown dust and
deteriorating habitats that have plagued
California’s largest lake.

“This checks the box big time,” said J.B.
Hamby, an Imperial Irrigation District board
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member. “It’s a really big deal, and nothing
like this has really ever happened before.”

This year, federal officials demanded large-
scale water cutbacks throughout the
Southwest to try to prevent the Colorado
River’s reservoirs from dropping to
dangerously-low levels. Four major
California water districts have proposed to
reduce water use by up to 400,000 acre-feet
per year for the next four years, about 9% of
the state’s total water allotment.

The Imperial Irrigation District has pledged
to take on the largest share of California’s
reductions, up to 250,000 acre-feet of water
per year.

“From the outset, [ID made it clear that
taking action to protect the Colorado River
system would have significant impacts on
the Salton Sea, and that [ID’s participation
was conditioned on real efforts and dollars
to protect public health and wildlife around
the sea,” Hamby said.

He said the federal government’s new
commitment “makes it much easier and
simpler for us to make large contributions
toward the Colorado River system.”

The infusion of federal money is the central
feature of an agreement among the federal
government, the Imperial Irrigation District,
the California Natural Resources Agency
and the Coachella Valley Water District.
The Interior Department announced the plan
on Monday, and the Impenal Irmgation
District’s board narrowly endorsed the
agreement in a 3-2 vote at

a meeting Tuesday.



The debate was contentious, with some
farmers, community advocates and local
officials saying they didn’t think the
agreement was a good deal for the Imperial
Valley, or that the community should have
more time to weigh in.

Luis Olmedo, executive director of the
nonprofit group Comite Civico del Valle,
said his organization opposed what he called
a “hastily announced, half-baked deal.” He
said in a statement, which a colleague read
at the meeting in El Centro, that the board
was deciding with little public scrutiny.

"$250 million for the Salton Sea held in
front of the Imperial Valley like some carrot
is insulting when we’ve been getting
whacked with the stick of disrespect for
decades,” Olmedo said.

Alex Cardenas, the board’s vice president,
said he thinks it’s “not a good deal for our
community.” He was one of two board
members who voted against endorsing the
deal.

Jim Hanks, the board’s outgoing president,
argued that by approving the agreement, the
Imperial Irrigation District is helping to
secure vital funds for Salton Sea efforts and
will turn next to negotiating the proposed
water reductions.

“There’s not enough money in the Imperial
Valley to take care of that sea,” Hanks said.
“We’re just saying that sea has to be taken
care of.”

He said the funding “meets the criteria for us
to move to the next level.”
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“This is just a first step. This is to open up
negotiations for the rest of it,” Hanks said.
“This is just a signal to them, ‘OK, we can
move forward.””

The Interior Department said the agreement
will expedite implementation of the state’s
Salton Sea Management Program, which
includes creating shoreline habitat areas for
birds and controlling dust along the
retreating shorelines.

Deputy Interior Secretary Tommy
Beaudreau said the agreement “represents a
key step in our collective efforts to address
the challenges the Colorado River Basin is
facing due to worsening drought and climate
change impacts.” He said the funds from the
recently passed Inflation Reduction Act
“will help to support the Imperial and
Coachella Valley and the environment
around the Salton Sea, as well as support
California’s efforts to voluntarily save
400,000 acre-feet a year to protect critical
elevations at Lake Mead.”

The Salton Sea covers more than 300 square
miles in Imperial and Riverside counties. It
sits nearly 240 feet below sea level in the
Salton Trough, which over thousands of
years has cycled between filling with
Colorado River water and drying out.

The flooding river filled the Salton Sea from
1905 to 1907, and it has since been fed by
water draining off farms in the Imperial
Valley. The lake has been shrinking since
the early 2000s, when the Imperial Irrigation
District began selling a portion of its water
to urban areas under an agreement with
agencies in San Diego County and the
Coachella Valley.



The strains on the Colorado River and the
Salton Sea have grown during the 23-

year megadrought in the Southwest, which
has been intensified by higher temperatures
with global warming.

Under the agreement, the federal Bureau of
Reclamation will provide $22 million next
year to help with projects at the lake. The
agency plans to provide an additional $228
million over the next four years. It says the
funds will be used to “expedite existing
projects and bolster staffing capacity at the
water agencies to help deliver new projects.”

That will add to the $583 million that the
state has committed for the projects.

California’s 10-year plan for the Salton Sea,
which came out in 2017, called for

building nearly 30,000 acres of dust-control
projects and wetland habitat around the lake
by 2028. After years of delays, workers with
heavy machinery have been moving soil at
the southern end of the lake as part of a
4,110-acre project aimed at suppressing dust
and creating habitat for fish and birds.

The lake’s level has declined about 11 feet
since 2003. Its water is now about twice as
salty as the ocean and continues to get saltier
with evaporation, a shift that has caused
major declines in fish and bird populations.

Along the shorelines, windblown dust
contributes to harmful air pollution in low-
income, predominantly Latino communities
where people suffer from asthma at high
rates.

California Natural Resources Secretary
Wade Crowfoot called the agreement a
“huge step forward.”
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“It builds our momentum delivering projects
at the sea to protect communities and the
environment,” Crowfoot said. He said it also
ensures that California’s reductions in water
use don’t “come at the expense of local
residents.”

Several members of Congress praised the
allocation of federal money for the Salton
Sea, which came as part of $4 billion in the
Inflation Reduction Act for drought
response programs.

Sen. Alex Padilla (D-Calif) called it “the
most meaningful federal investment at the
Salton Sea in history” and said it will help
“more effectively address the public health
and environmental disasters at the Salton
Sea.”

Sen. Dianne Feinstein (D-Calif.) said the
receding lake “continues to threaten the
health of neighboring communities as toxic
elements like arsenic and selenium are
exposed and spread by strong desert winds.
She said the $250 million will help reduce
the toxic dust that threatens public health
and restore habit for migratory birds.

2

The Salton Sea has long provided a vital
sanctuary for migrating birds as a stopping
point on the Pacific Flyway. But in recent
years, populations of many bird species have
suffered declines. And some species,
especially fish-eating birds, have
disappeared.

“The Salton Sea presents a mushrooming
crisis of human health and loss of critical
habitat,” said Frank Ruiz, Audubon
California’s Salton Sea program director. He



said the federal funding will bring a major
step forward in projects to protect residents
and the environment.

“This is something that has been needed for
a long time, for all the levels of government
to take responsibility for the sea,” Ruiz said.
He said he also thinks it’s positive that
“people are finally paying attention to the
sea, because this is becoming like the
linchpin for the negotiations of the Colorado
River water.”

Ruiz pointed out that the federal government
owns a lot of land in and around the Salton
Sea, and the agreement includes provisions
to ensure access to build wetlands projects.
The agreement also says the Interior
Department will “provide administrative and
technical resources to help secure any
additional water supplies” needed for the
habitat projects. :

“My concern is that if we continue building
projects on the ground, can we have the
water available?” Ruiz said. “We need to
make sure that there is an agreement to
provide water sustainability for the
projects.”

Under the agreement, the federal
government also will provide money for
staff jobs to help implement Salton Sea
projects. That includes $2 million over five
years for the Torres Martinez Desert
Cahuilla Indians to hire at least two people
to help with wetlands projects on tribal lands
by the sea, as well as $2 million for the
Imperial Irrigation District and $1 million
for the Coachella Valley Water District to
hire additional staff to help accelerate the
efforts.
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“The collaboration happening at the Salton
Sea between water agencies and state,
federal and tribal governments is a blueprint
for effective cooperation that the Colorado
River Basin sorely needs,” Hamby said.

To address the shortage and reduce risks of
reservoirs dropping to critically low levels,
Bureau of Reclamation Commissioner
Camille Calimlim Touton announced in
June that water cutbacks of 2 million to 4
million acre-feet will be needed across the
region in 2023, a decrease of roughly 15%
to 30%. Negotiations among the seven states
that rely on the river have grown tense and
have failed to produce a deal for such large
reductions.

Hamby said he and others at the Imperial
Irrigation District appreciate Touton’s
efforts to prioritize funding for the Salton
Sea.

“Historically, there has been some level of
federal presence on the sea. But this adds an
entirely new dimension to it, with the
funding, with the level of cooperation,”
Hamby said.

The stepped-up federal involvement on the
Salton Sea’s issues, he said, will help the
Imperial Irrigation District move ahead with
its proposal for reducing water use to help
protect reservoir levels.

The Imperial Irrigation District’s leaders
have pledged to reduce water use by up to
250,000 acre-feet a year for the next four
years, a cut of more than 9%. Farmers and
irrigation district officials have said they
plan to prioritize saving water by improving
efficiency, both on farms and in the canal



system that delivers water, rather than
leaving fields dry.

However, Hamby said that some amount of
land-fallowing will probably be necessary
“at least for a temporary, short period of
time,” to achieve the reductions.

Farmers in the Imperial Valley, who
produce crops such as alfalfa, lettuce and
broccoli, have told the federal government
they hope to avoid fallowing farmland. In

a letter to Touton this month, leaders of the
Imperial County Farm Bureau said the
government’s plan to pay between $330 and
$400 per acre-foot of conserved water “will
not be adequate to secure meaningful
agreements.”

“In the Imperial Valley, water conservation
should be accomplished through improved
efficiency as opposed to fallowing,” the
farmers wrote.

Some representatives of other states are
pushing for California, which uses the
largest share of the river, to make larger
reductions.

Sen. Mark Kelly (D-Ariz.) had urged the
federal government to withhold funding for
the Salton Sea “until California commits
additional water.”

Now that the government has come forward
with the money, Kelly said he is still looking
to California to shoulder larger cuts.

“As the largest water user on the Colorado
River, California must step up and do more
to conserve water alongside other states to
protect the Colorado River system that

millions of Americans rely on,” Kelly said
in an email.
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NEW REPORT SHOWS CONTINUED WATER
CONSERVATION IS KEY

BY DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES NOV 28, 2022 WATER NEWS

SACRAMENTO — As directed by 2018 legislation, the Department of Water Resources (DWR) today
submitted a first report to the State Water Resources Control Board summarizing how urban water
districts assess the adequacy of their supplies over the next seven months. Broadly, the assessments
show the importance of conservation by individual Californians to help suppliers meet demands
through June 30, 2023.

In this year's assessments, urban water suppliers indicate that they will rely on either continued
conservation or more aggressive actions to meet demand through June 30, 2023, if dry conditions
persist. They report that they can ensure adequate water supplies through water-saving strategies,
such as requiring customers to limit outdoor water and providing leak detection and repair services.

Since 2022 is the first year that urban water suppliers are required to submit an Annual Water Shortage
Assessment, this year will serve as a baseline to evaluate if urban water suppliers are accurately
assessing their annual water supply and demand. These annual assessments submitted by local
agencies are intended to help state and local water suppliers better prepare for current and future
droughts.

“One of the lessons learned from the last drought was the importance of early planning and State
action to support our water suppliers in preparing for a hotter and drier climate,” said DWR Director
Karla Nemeth. "Despite ongoing severe drought conditions and a possible fourth dry year ahead, DWR
and suppliers are better prepared to continue to supply reliable drinking water to millions of
Californians. Actions taken by individual Californians to save water indoors and outdoors make a big
collective difference.”

With less water available as California shifts to a hotter, drier future, urban water suppliers will be
submitting water supply and demand assessments annually as required by the 2018 Making Water
Conservation a Way of Life legislation to improve long-term water conservation. The assessments are
intended to ensure proper planning at the local level to meet demands and mitigate shortages through
water conservation and other actions. The assessments also indicate what level of State assistance
may be needed during continued drought.

The DWR report summarizes water supply assessments conducted by 414 of the 435 local urban water
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suppliers. Twenty-one agencies have not submitted the required assessments. Those required to Teffis



submit include water suppliers that serve more than 3,000 connections or that supply more than 3,000
acre-feet of potable water annually for municipal purposes. The summary report does not include small
water suppliers, which historically have faced more significant water supply challenges during drought
conditions. The State continues to work with small suppliers through direct assistance, grants, and
technical support programs.

Of the 414 submitted reports by urban water suppliers:

338 urban water suppliers do not expect a shortage during the upcoming year with continued
conservation efforts, including a voluntary 15 percent water-use reduction and continued activation of
local Level 2 Water Shortage Contingency Plan measures.

73 urban water suppliers anticipate they can fully address any shortage through increased
conservation actions or increased supplies noted in their water shortage contingency plans, including
stronger water-use reduction mandates.

3 urban water suppliers noted that they may still experience a shortage after implementing water
conservation actions or increased supplies included in their current plans. DWR continues to work with
these suppliers to include additional actions to adequately address expected shortages.

To help prepare for drought and water shortage events, urban water suppliers are responsible for
developing a water shortage contingency plan. These plans provide a description of the procedures
they will employ each year to conduct their annual assessment, including a written decision-making
process, as well as the key data inputs and the assessment methodology used to evaluate the near-
term water supply reliability. Many suppliers are already implementing Level 2 response actions

per Executive Order N-7-22 issued by Governor Newsom earlier this year.

It will be critically important for urban water suppliers to follow their plans and report their water supply
situation accurately. This allows state water officials to work with local agencies to find additional
supplies and head off potential shortages. The City of Coalinga, for example, submitted a water supply
assessment in July that anticipated no water shortages. A few months later, the City announced that it
would be out of water by December, largely because it did not implement the actions identified in its
Water Shortage Contingency Plan. DWR was able to provide $1.2 million to the City of Coalinga to fund
the purchase of supplemental water to maintain a reliable supply through the winter months. The City
has been asked to submit a revised water supply assessment.

To help water suppliers plan more effectively, DWR offered technical assistance and provided
feedback on their water shortage contingency plans. The feedback included proposing more
aggressive response actions appropriate to the projected shortage levels and amending the supplier’s
water shortage contingency plan, if deemed necessary. Some of the water suppliers realized more
water savings with additional conservation actions and resubmitted the plan with no shortage

expected.
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DWR is coordinating with the remaining 21 suppliers who have yet to submit their plans and is currently
providing additional targeted help and assistance. DWR reminds delinquent suppliers of the
importance of proactively assessing supplies and demands in order to be prepared in case of future
shortage events. The full list of delinquent suppliers is available here.

“Thank you to all Californians for stepping up conservation efforts to help reduce water use statewide
and to urban water suppliers who are serious about planning for their communities,” Nemeth said.
“Coming together like this to conserve will make a big impact for our water future.”

Small water suppliers are receiving support from DWR as it implements Senate Bill 552 (SB 552), which
imposes new drought planning requirements on small water suppliers with fewer than 3,000
customers. DWR and the State Water Resources Control Board are hosting a series of informational
workshops to explain the new requirements and help small water suppliers develop a water shortage
contingency plan and solicit feedback for future resources. For more information about SB 552, visit
DWR'’s SB552 webpage.

This month, DWR will announce funding awards totaling $86 million for emergency and long-term
projects through the Small Community Drought Relief program and the Integrated Regional Water
Management program. The selected projects will support strategies to improve water quality, increase
water supply, and upgrade aging infrastructure.

For larger communities still in need of assistance, DWR is currently accepting applications for the Urban
Community Drought Relief program to support projects that build long-term climate resilience and
improve water conservation.

As California experiences a climate transformation bringing hotter and drier conditions, each individual
act of conservation makes a difference. More information and water-saving tips are available

at saveourwater.com. For information about other DWR and State of California drought response efforts
and funding programs, visit: drought.ca.gov.

© 2022 Association of California Water Agencies
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MORE WATER AGENCIES JOIN
AGREEMENT TO IMPROVE THE HEALTH
OF RIVERS AND LANDSCAPES

BY ACWA STAFF NOV 14, 2022 WATER NEWS

Water agencies that rely on the Tuolumne River watershed are the most recent signatories to an
agreement to provide water flows and new habitat to help improve conditions in the Sacramento-San
Joaquin Bay-Delta watershed, the California Natural Resources Agency (CNRA) announced Nov. 10.

The three Tuolumne River signatories — San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), Turlock
Irrigation District (TID) and Modesto Irrigation District (MID) — signed onto a memorandum of
understanding, or MOU, agreement last week. They join dozens of local agencies that have signed the
MOU, which stems from years-long negotiations surrounding Voluntary Agreements, or VAs, strongly
supported by ACWA.

The broader MOU outlines terms for an eight-year program that would provide substantial new flows
for the environment to help recover salmon and other native fish.

"We've always been willing to do our part to further protect natural habitats, including in times of
drought. Now we have a framework agreement that strikes the right balance. It safequards the water
supply for 2.7 million Bay Area residents and businesses while continuing the SFPUC's track record of
strong environmental stewardship,” SFPUC General Manager Dennis Herrera stated in a CNRA news
release. "This agreement provides a framework for improving environmental conditions on the lower
Tuolumne River and beyond to benefit native fish species. It includes more water for the river and $64
million in habitat improvement projects over eight vears. It also provides a path forward to address
outstanding legal issues with the State. We're looking forward to implementing it with our partners”

Signing the MOU allows the Tuolumne River parties to participate in small workgroups with other water
agencies and state agencies charged with working out the voluntary agreement implementation
details, including both flow and non-flow measures, according to a joint MID and TID news release. The
agencies will review the Tuolumne River term sheet in upcoming Board meetings. Any final voluntary
agreement will be presented to and approved by the districts’ boards of directors, according to the
release.

"We are pleased that our multi-year effort to find a path forward based on sound-science is taking a
significant step forward today,” TID General Manager Michelle Reimers stated in the CNRA news PR -



release. “Although not the final step in VA process, signing the MOU acknowledges that parties have
come to an agreement on the major items including flow and non-flow measures, with some technical
details to be finalized. We are looking forward to collaborating with the state and other water agencies
to finalize an agreement that will provide water supply reliability to our community while enhancing the
ecosystem.”

MID General Manager Ed Franciosa was also quoted in the CNRA news release.

“We have invested heavily in studying and truly understanding the Tuolumne River, the species and
industries that depend on it and developing a realistic and sustainable voluntary agreement,” he said.
“By signing the MOU, we seek to balance water supplies for the benefit and continued success of our
urban and ag communities and our environment, while striving to break the paradigm of management
through regulation and litigation.”

Contra Costa Water District signed onto the agreement in September, as did the Sacramento River
Settlement Contractors earlier this year.

“Contra Costa Water District (CCWD) supplies Delta water to residents and businesses in Contra Costa
County and we closely manage our operations to ensure reliability and protect water quality,” CCWD
Board President Ernesto A. Avila said. “The status quo in the Delta is unsustainable and we are
committed to working with the state to expedite the current efforts to improve the health of the Bay-
Delta and protect the communities we serve.”

© 2022 Association of California Water Agencies



As California’s wells dry up,
residents rely on bottled water
to survive

The Washington Post | By: Joshua Partlow |
11/14/22

In drought-parched Central Valley,
thousands rely on trucked and bottled water
as they wait for new wells.

FRESNO, Calif. — Wes Harmon’s ringtone
sounds like a steam whistle, and it goes off
in the cab of his Ford Super Duty at such
regularity and volume it practically shudders
the rooster in a hula skirt affixed to his dash.

“What’s up, Matt?” Harmon answers on a
typically busy Monday morning.

“You want to drill a well in Ivanhoe?” his
old colleague asks.

Harmon does not want to drill a well in
Ivanhoe, which he calls a “rock pile,”
because his two rigs are already tied up in
more forgiving ground elsewhere in
California’s Central Valley, running 24
hours a day, seven days a week. A
whiteboard in his office is crammed with
future jobs, and people won’t stop calling —
a veteran with a bad heart whose faucet ran
dry; a widow in a panic who can’t hold back
tears.

Wells are running dry in California at a
record pace. Amid a hotter, drier climate and
the third consecutive year of severe drought,
the state has already tallied a record 1,351
dry wells this year — nearly 40 percent over
last year’s rate and the most since the state
created its voluntary reporting system in
2014. The bulk of these outages slice
through the center of the state, in the
parched lowlands of the San Joaquin Valley,
where residents compete with deep
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agricultural wells for the rapidly dwindling
supply of groundwater.

Amid rows of almond and orange trees,
entire communities are relying on deliveries
of bottled water to survive. More than 2,400
homes in the region keep their taps running
with emergency plastic water tanks installed
in their yards by the nonprofit group Self-
Help Enterprises. It sends around a fleet of
trucks to fill the tanks, which hold 2,500 to
3,000 gallons, at least every two weeks.
More than half of the tanks are new this
year.

Tami McVay, Self-Help’s director of
emergency services, expected this year’s
spike in dry wells. But the sheer scope of the
shortages this summer has been unsettling
for her.

She has watched as groundwater in some
places has fallen in one year by hundreds of
feet. Last year, her organization made
emergency bottled water deliveries after
outages from dry or malfunctioning wells
threatened the water supply in two
communities. This year, which has
happened in 20 communities.

“Mentally, I don’t think we were prepared to
really kind of absorb how fast it was
happening,” she said. “Overnight our phones
just started ringing.”

‘She’s going dry. I’m dry’

The first sign of a failing well tends to be a
softening of the water pressure. Brown
patches in the lawn where sprinklers no
longer reach. Garden hoses that pulse and
fizz with aeration. Showers that slow to a
trickle.

Groundwater is both the main source of
water for many communities and a buffer
that California relies on during drought.
Normally, these underground

reserves account for about 40 percent of the



state’s water supply; in dry years, that grows
to 60 percent. Of the 3,700 wells on the
state’s live groundwater website that track
levels over the past decade, nearly half of
them are much below normal or at an all-
time low.

“What we’re facing is pretty
unprecedented,” said Steven Springhorn, an
engineering geologist with the Sustainable
Groundwater Management Office of
California’s Department of Water
Resources. “It’s very dry out there.”

A California city’'s water supply is expected
to run out in two months

Sharon Ramirez knew this, and she tried to
conserve. She let her grass yellow and the
vegetable garden die. Tomatoes, potatoes,
butternut squash — all gone. In her
bathroom, she only flushed solids, despite
the embarrassment. She watched with agony
as the trees she nurtured for years — the
Chinese elm, the pistachio, the mulberry —
appeared to weaken under the unrelenting
sun.

The motor for the pump in her 348-foot well
usually ran for 20 minutes to refill her tank.
It began to take hours.

Ramirez could only do so much. She had
moved to Madera Ranchos, a rural
community north of Fresno, to make room
for her two horses, Coco and Fergus. It was
her retirement dream after 25 years as an
administrative assistant at Fresno State
University. But horses need water.

On a Thursday in August when she finally
went dry, she broke down and cried.

“I’ve been dribbling since the first of the
month. I knew it was going to happen,”
Ramirez said. “You live on a well. You
know it’s going to happen.”
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These emergencies are familiar to anyone
who lives in this area, and Ramirez’s
neighbors immediately jumped in to help.
While she awaits her new 600-foot well —
low bid of $54,318, and a waiting list of
nine months — she was able to run a 120-
foot hose from the house next door to keep
her faucets flowing. Across the street,
Kimberly Davis, who runs a petting zoo out
of her backyard, didn’t have enough
pressure to shower while the sprinkler is on,
but was allowing another neighbor to share
her own well as long as her water held out.
“She’s going dry. I’'m dry. Two houses
down, they’re dry,” Ramirez said. “It’s what
we do out here. We survive with each
other.”

The city of Madera is one of this year’s hot
spots for dry wells. It’s where Interior
Secretary Deb Haaland visited in August,
standing in a field left fallow for lack of
water, warning that the worsening drought
crisis is an “existential threat to our
communities and our livelihoods,” and
announcing more funding for resilience
projects in the years ahead.

Those who live here point in many
directions to explain their predicament. Up
and down the roads of these dusty suburbs,
billboards call out for politicians to build
“#moreDAMstorage” and for California
Gov. Gavin Newsom (D) to “stop dumping
our farm water in the ocean.” Neighbors
stand in their barren yards and worry that the
local rock quarry, or the high school with its
green sports fields, or the subdivisions still
sprouting new houses by the thousands, or
the irrigated groves and orchards all around
them, are sucking all the water out from
underneath their wells.

“Everyone’s relying on groundwater. So, all
of us have a straw. And some of us have
deeper straws than others,” said Susana De



Anda, executive director of the Community
Water Center, which advocates for access to
clean water in California. “The reality is the
drought only exasperates the current
conditions that we have already, it worsens
the stress. For many, people are losing
water.”

When Genoveva Sanchez lost her water, she
wasn’t alone. The roughly 600 other people
who live in East Orosi, a predominantly
Hispanic farming community in Tulare
County, collectively went dry on the same
day in July, when a public well
malfunctioned amid declining groundwater
levels. Having company didn’t make it
easier.

Like many of her neighbors, Sanchez, a 40-
year-old Mexican immigrant who works at a
hamburger chain, Wimpy’s, does not have
air conditioning, and relies on a “swamp
cooler” — a window-mounted device that
cools air by evaporating water — to survive
the punishing heat of summer. On the day of
the water failure, the temperature in her
home rose to an unbearable point, she said,
and she kept her four children outside in a
park. She saw other neighbors hauling water
from a nearby canal to cool off. One house
down the street caught on fire.

“They couldn’t do anything because there
wasn’t any water,” Sanchez said.

Self-Help Enterprises delivered five cases of
bottled water to every house in East Orosi as
an emergency measure that day — and now
distributes 25 gallons every second
Thursday to each family. To supplement
failing wells, the rural communities of
Tooleville, East Seville, and Tillie Creek
together receive some 40,000 gallons of
hauled water every week.
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“We’ve seen more communities go dry this
year than we have any other year before,”
said McVay, Self-Help’s emergency
director.

When the ground water drops far enough,
homeowners on private wells have few
options. They can pay, indefinitely, for
water delivery services or try to drill deeper
wells. Self-Help, which relies on state
funding, will reimburse homeowners who
qualify for the cost of a new well. The fierce
demand, coupled with inflation, has almost
doubled prices in a year; it now costs about
$55,000 for a 600-foot well.

But so many people need them that Self-
Help has a backlog of 545 households who
have been approved for drilling. The wait
time is up to one year.

This hauled water safety-net is something
California hopes to reduce over time, by
connecting vulnerable communities to larger
water networks when possible.

“It’s a substandard living,” said Eric Zuniga,
drought response program manager with the
California State Water Resources Control
Board. “Hauled water is buckets in a First
World country. So, getting them off of that
is a priority.”

But projections for the future remain grim.
Self-Help estimates the Central Valley could
see about 8,000 dry wells — more than five
times the current level — in the next few
years. McVay expects the cost to service this
shortage will exceed $1 billion over the next
two decades.

“I have some pretty interesting nightmares,”
she said.

‘Still got water?’



When nightmares happen, people call Wes
Harmon. His company, Big River Drilling,
is one of more than a dozen contractors Self-
Help hires to drill water wells.

Harmon is a big man with a booming voice
and little patience for rules, regulations,
bureaucrats, Democrats, or any other
obstacle he believes to be blocking the path
to his next hole. He’s 59 now and has been
drilling in the ground since his roughneck
days on oil rigs in New Mexico and Texas.
He practically lives in his truck, logging 15-
hour days, crisscrossing the valley at high
speeds.

It’s a boom time but also a scary, hand-
wringing time. Harmon has a unique
vantage into the quiet panic at the heart of
this drought and how it is clawing away at
the ability of his friends and neighbors to
live here and prosper.

“I’m really busy today, Gil,” Harmon
answers another calls on his way to check on
one of his drill rigs that’s rattling away in
the backyard of walnut farmer with a dry
well.

“I just wanted to see if you remembered or
forgot,” said Gil, a vegetable farmer Harmon
was helping repair a burned-out pump that
needed another part.

“No, I didn’t forget. I'll get 'er going. Still
got water?”

“What’s up AJ?” Harmon said.

“Hey, uh, what’s going on with that
permit?” asked a landlord whose tenants had
run dry.

“They’re putting the permit in. It’s in. As
soon as it comes back, I'll drill that hole.”
“You don’t know when, huh?”
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Harmon pulled to a stop at a ranch called
Living Waters. It was named by Ernie and
Arthur Morris’s mom, who got it from the
Bible. They are brothers and next door
neighbors, part of the third generation to
subsist off this farm. They had raised dairy
cows until they had to sell off the animals,
and now they grow walnut trees on 55 acres.
One of their backyard wells ran dry this
summer.

“I didn’t wash my clothes very often,” said
Arthur Morris, 67. “I was starting to get a
little rank there for a little bit. I let it go for
two weeks before I did the wash.”

As it enters a third year, California’s
drought is strangling the farming industry
Harmon’s drilling rig was shaking and
shuddering, boring 500 feet down into the
soil. He’d been using it for 25 years but had
recently replaced the diesel motor — at a
cost of $50,000 — to make it compliant with
the latest air quality standards.

Harmon feels aggrieved by the pace of
permitting for new wells. His crews work in
12 hour shifts, drilling all night to keep up
with demand, but waiting for authorization
can prevent him from moving from one job
to the next.

Harmon chafes at the drag on his business
but it also pains him to see the unmet need.
The backyard well he drilled for the Morris
brothers solved their immediate problem,
but the trends in the valley worry Harmon as
much as anyone. The deeper agriculture
wells have also been failing or producing
less water.

“Without farming around here, California’s
done,” Harmon said.



“Plus, all the food that we feed to the world.
I mean raisins, where else do raisins come

from? Where else do walnuts come from?”
Arthur Morris asked.

“All these guys, man, this is their livelihood,
if they don’t have water, they’re going to
lose everything,” Harmon said. “And when
you’re his age and you lose everything.
Where are you at?”

“Living waters,” Ernie Morris added. “You
got to have it.”
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DECEMBER 7, 2022

REPORT OF THE DISTRICT ENGINEER
ON HYDROLOGIC CONDITIONS

Baldwin Park Key Well (see attached graph)

Located in the central portion of the San Gabriel Valley within the City of
Baldwin Park and used as a general indication of water elevations throughout the
San Gabriel Valley

One vertical foot is equivalent to about 8,000 acre-feet of groundwater in the
Main Basin

On October 28, 2022, the Baldwin Park Key Well groundwater elevation was
177.2 feet.

On November 28, 2022, the Baldwin Park Key Well groundwater elevation was
179.7 feet, no change from the prior week. The historical low was 169.4 feet on
November 21, 2018,

%+ An increase of about 3.0 feet from the prior month.

** About 3 feet lower than one vear ago (represents 24,000 acre-feet).
Includes an estimated 130,000 acre-feet of untreated imported water in
cyclic storage accounts, which represents about 16 feet of groundwater
elevation at the Key Well.

*  Producer Cyclic Storage — 53,000 AF
= MWD Cyclic Storage (for UD RDA delivery) — 49,000 AF
*  Other Cyclic Storage — 28,000 AF

4 Reservoir Storage and Releases

-

There are three dams and reservoirs located along the San Gabriel River above
San Gabriel Canyon. Their primary function is for flood control and also used to
store watershed runoff for subsequent groundwater replenishment.
% Cogswell Reservoir is located highest in the watershed and has a
maximum storage capacity of 10,475 acre-feet
%+ San Gabriel Reservoir is located downstream of and receives releases from
Cogswell Reservoir, and has a maximum storage capacity of 44,044 acre-
feet




Report of the District Engineer on Hydrologic Conditions — December 7, 2022 (continued)

Morris Reservoir is located downstream of and receives releases from San
Gabriel Reservoir and has a maximum storage capacity of 28,736 acre-
feet. Releases from Morris Reservoir and San Gabriel Reservoir are used
at local surface water treatment plants and used for groundwater
replenishment

Total storage capacity is 83,255 acre-feet

The combined minimum pool behind Cogswell, San Gabriel and Morris
Reservoirs is about 10,500 acre-feet.

Combined storage as of November 29, 2022 was 14.574 acre-feet (about
18 percent of capacity).

San Gabriel Reservoir inflow was 17 cfs and release was 0 cf’s as of
November 29, 2022,

Morris Reservoir inflow was | ¢fs and release was 15 cfs as of November
29, 2022. All of the release was diverted from the San Gabriel River at the
Azusa Duarte intake for use by Committee of Nine.

+ USG-3

# Located in San Gabriel Canyon just below Morris Dam, it represents Upper
District’s primary point of delivery of untreated imported water for groundwater
replenishment to the San Gabriel Valley. The typical delivery rate is about 190
cfs (or about 375 acre-feet per day)

% Total USG-3 deliveries.
¢ During October 2022, Upper District delivered 14,708 acre-feet
through USG-3. From this total amount delivered, there was an
over delivery of 13 acre-feet which will go into MWD’s Cyclic
Storage account. Deliveries began on October 3. 2022 at a flow
rate of about 290 cfs. Deliveries ended on October 31, 2022,
During November 2022, Upper District did not make deliveries
through USG-3.
% Three Valleys DistrictY MWD
¢ During October 2022, Three Valleys District did not make
deliveries through USG-3.
¢ During November 2022, Three Valleys District did not make
deliveries through USG-3.

4 San Gabriel Canyon Spreading Grounds

* Three Valleys District’ MWD did not make deliveries to the San Gabriel
Canyon during October 2022.
Three Valleys DistrictY MWD did not make deliveries to the San Gabriel
Canyon during November 2022,
San Gabriel District delivered 257 acre-feet to the San Gabriel Canyon during
October 2022,
San Gabriel District plans to deliver about 600 acre-feet to the San Gabriel
Canyon during November 2022.




Report of the District Engineer on Hydrologic Conditions — December 7, 2022 (continued)
+ Rainfall (see attached graphs)

# Data are readily available on a daily basis and are indicative of comparative
amount of rainfall in the San Gabriel Valley (percent of average)

Puddingstone Dam as of November 28, 2022
% Average rainfall from July 1* through November 30" of each year is 2.60
inches
# Rainfall during July 1, 2022 through November 28, 2022 is 3.66 inches.
which is 141 percent of average.
< Rainfall during July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 was 11.42 inches,
which was 63 percent of average.
Los Angeles Civic Center as of November 28, 2022
< Average rainfall from July 1* through November 30" of each year is 1.99
inches
<+ Rainfall during July 1, 2022 through November 28, 2022 is 2.37 inches,
which is 119 percent of average.
< Rainfall during July 1, 2021 through June 30, 2022 was 12.40 inches,
which was 82 percent of average.

* Water Quality

» Water systems are required by the Division of Drinking Water (DDW) to collect
water quality data from source wells and provide the results to DDW pursuant to

Title 22 (Water quality data collected through Main San Gabriel Basin
Watermaster's Basinwide Groundwater Quality Monitoring Program)
¢ During November 2022, 61 wells were sampled under Title 22
¢ During October 2022, 58 wells were sampled under Title 22
% During October 2022, Stetson Engineers Inc. received no public notice of
wells shut down due to contamination.
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RAINFALL IN INCHES

CURRENT YEAR
RAINFALL IS
3.66 INCHES *

*Data as of November 28, 2022
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CURRENT YEAR
RAINFALL 1S
2,37 INCHES *

AVERAGE
RAINFALL

*Data as of November 28, 2022
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End of
Month
Apr-05
May-05
Jun-05
Jul-05
Aug-05
Sep-05
QOct-05
Nov-05
Dec-05
Jan-06
Feb-06
Mar-06
Apr-06
May-06
Jun-06
Jul-06
Aug-06
Sep-06
Oct-06
Nov-06
Dec-06
Jan-07
Feb-07
Mar-07
Apr-07
May-07
Jun-07
Jul-07
Aug-07
Sep-07
QOct-07
Nov-07
Dec-07
Jan-08
Feb-08
Mar-08
Apr-08
May-08
Jun-08
Jul-08
Aug-08
Sep-08
Oct-08
Nov-08
Dec-08
Jan-09
Feb-09
Mar-09
Apr-09

(acre-feet)

USG-3
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

1,042.20
4,836.30
4,848.50
7,697.00
9,986.80
8,243.30
7,434.30
9,488.20

916.40

599.10
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

1,733.80
1,813.10
1,842.40
1,961.60
2,013.20
1,965.30
1,745.90
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

USG-3 DELIVERIES

1
1/
1/
1/
2/

2/

Cost
$246.65
$246.65
$246.65
$246.65
$246.65
$246.65
$246.65
$246.65
$246.65
$246.65
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$251.90
$337.00
$337.00
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End of
Month
May-09
Jun-09
Jul-09
Aug-09
Sep-09
Oct-09
Nov-09
Dec-09
Jan-10
Feb-10
Mar-10
Apr-10
May-10
Jun-10
Jul-10

Aug-10
Sep-10
Oct-10
Nov-10
Dec-10
Jan-11
Feb-11
Mar-11
Apr-11

May-11
Jun-11
Jul-11

Aug-11
Sep-11
Oct-11
Nov-11
Dec-11
Jan-12
Feb-12
Mar-12
Apr-12
May-12
Jun-12
Jul-12
Aug-12
Sep-12
QOct-12
Nov-12
Dec-12
Jan-13
Feb-13
Mar-13
Apr-13
May-13

(acre-feet)

UsG-3
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

579.50
0.00

4,620.90
10,876.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
2,052.70
10,423.30
11,439.50
1,495.50
0.00
0.00
1,302.20
1,441.70
1,974.60
5,254.90
9,186.20
4,845.80
7,394.30
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
8,753.30
3,281.40
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

USG-3 DELIVERIES

3/
3/

4/
5/

Cost
$337.00
$337.00
$337.00
$337.00
$337.00
$386.00
$386.00
$386.00
$526.00
$526.00
$526.00

$655.00
$655.00
$655.00
$655.00
$655.00
$655.00
$655.00
$655.00
$569.00
$569.00
$569.00
$569.00
$429.00
$429.00
$479.00
$479.00
$479.00
$597.00
$597.00
$597.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$640.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00

$526/$655
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End of
Month
Jun-13
Jul-13
Aug-13
Sep-13
Qct-13
Nov-13
Dec-13
Jan-14
Feb-14
Mar-14
Apr-14
May-14
Jun-14
Jul-14
Aug-14
Sep-14
Oct-14
Nov-14
Dec-14
Jan-15
Feb-15
Mar-15
Apr-15
May-15
Jun-15
Jul-15
Aug-15
Sep-15
Qct-15
Nov-15
Dec-15
Jan-16
Feb-16
Mar-16
Apr-16
May-16
Jun-16
Jul-16
Aug-16
Sep-16
Oct-16
Nov-16
Dec-16
Jan-17
Feb-17
Mar-17
Apr-17
May-17
Jun-17

USG-3 DELIVERIES

(acre-feet)

USG-3
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

16,093.80
5,120.80
4,788.80

0.00
2,315.90

2,720.20

249.40
0.00
0.00

358.40

1,204.00
1,204.00
2,695.30
3,628.90
3,211.60
3,482.10

4,729.30
6,464.30
4,877.50
3,630.40
3,355.10

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
7,854.80
8,383.30
0.00
0.00
3,000.90
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

19,421.50

17,377.00
3,701.10

0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

6/
6/
6/
71

8/
9/
10/
11/

Cost
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$673.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$697.00
$769.00
$769.00
$769.00
$769.00
$769.00
$769.00
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End of
Month
Jul-17
Aug-17
Sep-17
Qct-17
Nov-17
Dec-17
Jan-18
Feb-18
Mar-18
Apr-18
May-18
Jun-18
Jul-18
Aug-18
Sep-18
Oct-18
Nov-18
Dec-18
Jan-19
Feb-19
Mar-19
Apr-19
May-19
Jun-19
Jul-19
Aug-19
Sep-19
Oct-19
Nov-19
Dec-19
Jan-20
Feb-20
Mar-20
Apr-20
May-20
Jun-20
Jul-20
Aug-20
Sep-20
Oct-20
Nov-20
Dec-20
Jan-21
Feb-21
Mar-21
Apr-21
May-21
Jun-21
Jul-21

USG-3 DELIVERIES

(acre-feet)

USG-3
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

16,000.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

3,265.60
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

933.40

17,032.90

13,923.30
0.00
0.00
0.00

5,008.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

20,056.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

10,179.50
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00
0.00

Cost
$769.00
$769.00
$769.00
$769.00
$769.00
$769.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$798.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$834.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$858.00
$880.00
$880.00
$880.00
$880.00
$880.00
$880.00
$880.00
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USG-3 DELIVERIES
(acre-feet)

End of
Month USG-3 Cost
Aug-21 0.00 $880.00
Sep-21 0.00 $880.00
Oct-21 0.00 $880.00
Nov-21 0.00 $880.00
Dec-21 0.00 $880.00
Jan-22 0.00 $902.00
Feb-22 0.00 $902.00
Mar-22 0.00 $902.00
Apr-22 0.00 $902.00
May-22 0.00 $902.00
Jun-22 . 0.00 $902.00
Jul-22 0.00 $902.00
Aug-22 0.00 $902.00
Sep-22 0.00 $902.00
Oct-22 14,708.50 $902.00
Note:

1/ All water deliveries were for CIC/Azusa deliveries

2/ All water deliveries were for Azusa/Glendora deliveries

3/ Deliveries made through CenB-48.

4/ Of the 5,254.90 AF, 258.5 AF was delivered through CenB-48.

5/ Of the 9,186.20 AF, 564.6 AF was delivered through CenB-48.

6/ Deliveries made through UD-SGP. Deliveries were for Azusa.

7/ Of the 2,628.9 AF, 1,234.6 AF was delivered through UD-SGP.

8/ Of the 3,482.1 AF, 745.3 AF was delivered through CenB-48.

9/ Of the 4,729.3 AF, 1,626.3 AF was delivered through CenB-48.

10/ Of the 6,464.3 AF, 2,826.9 AF was delivered through CenB-48.

11/ Of the 4,877.5 AF, 1,301.5 AF was delivered through CenB-48,

*July 2014 through October 2014 reflects 1,000 AF deduction made to Canyon Basin through UD-SGP.
January 2015 through April 2015 reflects CenB-48 adjustment from 10,000 AF to 6,500 AF.
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2533

During October 2022, 58 wells were sampled under Title 22. Raw water results from active
wells that do not pump to a treatment plant follow:

Contaminant Range b MCL b
PCE ND -4.7 5*
TCE ND 5*

In addition, 61 wells were sampled under Title 22 in November 2022.

*Note: Based on rounding, results greater than or equal to 5.5 ppb are above an MCL.

J\1046\WVOCSummary\vVOC_Summary.doc
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11.
GENERAL MANAGER'S

REPORT

General Manager’s Monthly Report
December 7, 2022

Water Supply Update
Baldwin Park Key Well: 179.7 feet on 11/28/22 deliverias:
] San Gabriel Canyon: 14,574 AF combined storage USG-3 dntivgrias: none
" Rainfall: 12.40"; 82% of average
I- as of 11/29/22
for FY 21/22

= San Gabriel Reservoir: inflow 17 cfs; release 0 cfs
Morris Reservoir: inflow 1 cfs; release 15 cfs

MWD Water Supply Conditions as of November 21, 2022, are summarized as follows:

Reservoir Capacity Current Storage Compared to last year
San Luis 2.04 MAF 25%, 325 TAF 61 TAF less

Oroville 3.54 MAF 28%, 990 TAF 55 TAF less

D. Valley Lake 810 TAF 62%, 498 TAF 108 TAF less

Lake Powell 24.3 MAF 24%, 5.77 MAF 1.30 MAF less

Lake Mead 26.1 MAF 28%, 7.24 MAF 1.61 MAF less

*Storage volumes are in units of Million Acre-Feet (MAF), or Thousand Acre-Feet (TAF)

A Drought Actions

Py WSCP status: Level 2, 20% conservation target, 2 day/week outdoor watering

Tenant Improvement Project

Construction is substantially complete and staff transitioned to the new building on November 8". Punch list items
and issues with the contract and the contractor are still being worked through. With the City of Monrovia's recent
approval of the landscape design and plan, staff began coordinating with Ecotech Services, Inc. to get the project
started.

Water Use Efficiency

/'\ Residential WaterSmart Rebates Commercial WaterSmart Rebates
Since July 2022 - $224,012.38 Since July 2022 - 582,840.00

1 of 2| Page
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&

Water Smart Home Kits
Distribution Dates: November TBD
Homes Served: 28

Working to increase outreach

ki)

MAAP Funds 2023-2025 - §572,000
Reserved: 5458,000

Available: $114,000

Invoiced to MWD: 514,577 (pending 55,377)

Education and Outreach

-

AN

.

2022-23 Student Workshops
Classes: 16

Students: 859

Mew booklet printing for 2023 classes

&

2022 Water Education Grant
Applications submitted: 25

24 recommended for approval - 524,660.85 i

Upcoming Landscaping Workshops (All Virtual)
MNew Topics Begin February 2023

Brainstorming new topics pending State Allocation figures and Drought Plans

~

*
5
e

Solar Cup — Now called Water Engineering 4 Good (WE4G)

Water Engineering 4 Good (WE4G) is an online STEAM competition for middle school through high

school students. The idea is that teams will learn from water industry professionals about the current
drought and come up with a possible engineering solution, that could be used to conserve water

inside or outside the home, in industry, in agriculture, or in treatment and distribution. Teams will bulld a
physical model and do the marketing for that design. Program will run from December 2022 - March 2023.

FAS

Legislative Update

2022 Elections & 2023 Projections

California State Senate now has 31 Democrats and 9 Republicans. (21 votes required)
California State Assembly now has 63 Democrats and 17 Republicans. (41 votes required)
40 new representatives are preparing to take office in December 2022.

Passing legislation will take a much larger effort within the state overall with these
changes. Water Rights legislation is forecasted to be a very high priority in 2023.

Finance and Administration

¥YTD Use of Funds as of 10/31/22 - $8.33M

B Water Use Efficiency ® Education and
(1%), $0.11 Community Outreach
(6%), $0.52

" Water Recycling
(9%), 50.79

# Administra
tive (10%),
$0.80

$1.55

Capital Cost (19%),

Water Quality and

v':'_ Supply (2%), $0.19

Purcha
Imported (52%), $4.36

Water Cost -

Financial Highlights for October \
Treated water sales: 550 AF

L ]
Untreated water sales: D AF

YTD net operating loss: $0.63M

P
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12.
Metropolitan Report

Summary Report for
The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California
Board Meeting
November 8, 2022

CONSENT CALENDAR OTHER ITEMS — ACTION

Director Lois Fong-Sakai was elected Board Secretary for a two-year term effective January 1,
2023. (Agenda Item 6B)

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS - ACTION

Approved recommended amendments to Administrative Code Sections 2131 and 2416, as set
forth in Attachment 1 and Attachment 2 of the Board letter, and approved Equal Employment
Opportunity Investigative Procedures for the Board and its direct reports. (Agenda Item 7-1)

Ratified an emergency contract with PCL Construction, Inc. in the amount of $855,623.78 for
replacement of the expansion joint on the Upper Feeder pipeline at the Santa Ana River bridge
crossing. [Requires four-fifths vote of the Board.] (Agenda Item 7-2)

Awarded a $1,228,607.10 contract to Howard Ridley Company, Inc. to rehabilitate the concrete
liner of the Rainbow Tunnel at ten locations. (Agenda Item 7-3)

Authorize on-call agreements with GEI Consultants, Inc., HDR, Inc., and Stantec Consulting
Services Inc., in an amount not to exceed $2.5 million each, for a maximum period of five years
to support dam safety projects. (Agenda Item 7-4) (Item was withdrawn from the agenda)

Adopted CEQA determination that the environmental effects of the East County Advanced
Water Purification Local Resources project that is the subject of the proposed action was
previously addressed in Padre Dam Municipal Water District’s Mitigated Negative Declaration
and related CEQA actions and that no further CEQA review is required, and authorized the
General Manager to amend the existing Local Resources Program agreement with SDCWA and
East County Advanced Water Purification Joint Powers Authority for the East County Advanced
Water Purification Project. (Agenda Item 7-5)

Awarded an $820,852.53 procurement contract to Whipps, Inc. to furnish three slide gates and
appurtenances to rehabilitate the San Jacinto Diversion Structure. (Agenda Item 7-6)

Authorized an increase in maximum amount payable under contract for legal services with
Horvitz & Levy, LLP in the SDCWA v. Metropolitan, et al. rate litigation in the amount of
$350,000 for a total amount not to exceed $1,250,000; and authorized increase in maximum
amount payable under contract for consulting services with Cogent Legal, LLC in the amount of
$100,000 for a total amount not to exceed $150,000. (Agenda Item 7-7)



OTHER MATTERS AND REPORTS

Reported from Executive Committee on nominations for Board Secretary. (Agenda Item 5G)
Department Head Performance Evaluations [Public Employees' performance evaluations;
General Manager, General Counsel, and Ethics Officer. (Agenda Item 10-1)

(Item was deferred)

Reported on Department Head 2022 Salary Survey. (Agenda Item 10-2) (Item was deferred)

Discussed and approved Compensation Recommendations for General Manager, General
Counsel, and Ethics Officer. (Agenda Item 10-3) (Item was deferred)

THIS INFORMATION SHOULD NOT BE CONSIDERED THE OFFICIAL MINUTES
OF THE MEETING.

All current month materials, and materials after July 1, 2021 are available on the public website
here: https://mwdh2o.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx

This database contains archives from the year 1928 to June 30, 2021:
https://bda.mwdh20.com/Pages/Default.aspx




13.
WQA REPORT

Summary Report for the
San Gabriel Basin Water Quality Authority
November 16, 2022

Adopt Resolution No. 22-018 Proclaiming Statewide State of Emergency and Authorizing Teleconferencing

Meetings
Under consent, the Board of Directors adopted Resolution No. 22-018 as presented.

Administrative Procedure No. 41-Reserve Fund Policy
The Board of Directors approved the Administrative Procedure No. 41-Reserve Fund policy as presented.

Disposal of Surplus Property
The Board of Directors approved the disposal of surplus property as presented.

Closed Session Report
The Board of Directors approved the legal services agreement the S & L Environmental for PFAS litigation.
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14.
WATERMASTER
REPORT

Summary Report for the
Main San Gabriel Basin Watermaster
Regular Board Meeting
November 2, 2022

Certification of Appointments for Calendar Year 2023
The Board of Directors certified the appointments of Steven T. Placido by San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District
and Dr. Anthony R. Fellow and Jennifer Santana by Upper San Gabriel Valley Municipal Water District.

Authorization to Purchase Reliability Storage Water using Resource Development Assessment for Fiscal Year
2021-22

The Board of Directors authorized the purchase of reliability storage water using resource development assessment
for fiscal year 2021-22.

Authorization to Purchase Replacement Water Requirements for Fiscal Year 2021-22
The Board of Directors authorized the purchase of replacement water requirements for fiscal year 2021-22.
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MEMORANDUM

IPPER SAN GABRIEL VALLEY
MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

———

DIRECTORS’
REPORT (AB 1234)

Directors’ Activity Report - (AB 1234)
In accordance with CA Government Code Section 53232.3 (d)

November 2022

ANTHONY R. FELLOW, Division 1

Date Event

Description

MNov 29-30, 2022 ACWA Fall Conference

Collaboration on the Russian River: A Successful Voluntary Water
Sharing Program, SGMA Implementation in the San Joaquin Valley:
Examining the Legal Landscape, Postmortem After the Emergency
Pipeline Repair, International Program - Learning from Israel and the
Netherlands: Innovative Water Management in Times of Climate
Change, The Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund: Three Years
Later, Unpacking California's Water Supply Strategy, Impacts of
Housing Densification on Water Agencies, Workforce Crisis-
Developing and Cultivating a Diverse Workforce, How to Talk About
Drought and Climate Change

CHARLES M. TREVINO, Division 2

Date Event

Description

Nowv 29-30, 2022 ACWA Fall Conference

Collaboration on the Russian River: A Successful Voluntary Water
Sharing Program, SGMA Implementation in the S5an Joaquin Valley:
Examining the Legal Landscape, Postmortem After the Emergency
Pipeline Repair, International Program - Learning from Israel and the
Netherlands: Innovative Water Management in Times of Climate
Change, The Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund: Three Years
Later, Unpacking California's Water Supply Strategy, Impacts of
Housing Densification on Water Agencies, Workforce Crisis-
Developing and Cultivating a Diverse Workforce, How to Talk About
Drought and Climate Change

ED CHAVEZ, Division 3

Date Event

Description

Nov 29-30, 2022 ACWA Fall Conference

Collaboration on the Russian River: A Successful Voluntary Water
Sharing Program, SGCMA Implementation in the San Joaquin Valley:
Examining the Legal Landscape, Postmortem After the Emergency
Pipeline Repair, International Program - Learning from Israel and
the Netherlands: Innovative Water Management in Times of Climate
Change, The Safe and Affordable Drinking Water Fund: Three Years
Later, Unpacking California’s Water Supply Strategy, Impacts of
Housing Densification on Water Agencies, Workforce Crisis-
Developing and Cultivating a Diverse Workforce, How to Talk About
Drought and Climate Change

402 E. Huntington Drive, Suite B | Monrovia, CA $1014 | (624)
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KATARINA GARCIA, Division 4

Date Event Description
No reportable activity.
JENNIFER SANTANA, Division 5
Date Event Description

No reportable activity.
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